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CORPORATE INFORMATION
A=

DIRECTORS

Executive Directors:

Chan, Sze-wan (Chief Executive Officer)
Chan, Hoi-wan

Chan, Lok-wan

Lam, Kwong-wai

Non-executive Directors:
Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman)

Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Chan, Kwok-wai
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Ma, Tsz-chun

INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Chan, Sze-wan (Chairman)
Lam, Kwong-wai (Chief Investment Officer)
Chan, Kwok-wai

Ma, Tsz-chun

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Phillis Loh, Lai-ping (Chairman)
Chan, Kwok-wai

Ma, Tsz-chun

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Chan, Kwok-wai (Chairman)
Phillis Loh, Lai-ping
Ma, Tsz-chun

COMPANY SECRETARY

Lam, Kwong-wai

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Chan, Sze-wan

Lam, Kwong-wai
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SOLICITORS

(Listed in alphabetical order)
King & Wood Mallesons
Reynolds Porter Chamberlain
S.Y. Wong & Co.

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

BANKERS

(Listed in alphabetical order)

China Construction Bank (Asia) Corporation Limited
Deutsche Bank AG, Singapore Branch

OCBC Wing Hang Bank Limited

Oversea-Chinese Banking Corporation Limited

The Bank of East Asia, Limited, London Branch

PLACE OF INCORPORATION

Bermuda

REGISTERED OFFICE

Victoria Place, 5th Floor
31 Victoria Street
Hamilton HM 10

Bermuda

PRINCIPAL OFFICE IN HONG KONG

26th Floor, China Evergrande Centre
38 Gloucester Road

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Will be relocated in April 2020 to:
21st Floor, Chubb Tower

Windsor House

311 Gloucester Road

Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited
4th Floor North, Cedar House

41 Cedar Avenue

Hamilton HM 12

Bermuda
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CORPORATE INFORMATION AR &EX

BRANCH REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE
IN HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716

17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel:  (852) 2862 8555

Fax:  (852) 2865 0990/(852) 2529 6087

OFFICE IN THE PEOPLE'S REPUBLIC OF CHINA

Room 1003, 10th Floor, Oriental Place
No. 9 East Dongfang Road

North Dongsanhuan Road

Chaoyang District, Beijing, PRC

Post Code: 100027

Tel:  (8610) 6466 0638

Fax:  (8610) 6466 0238

WEBSITE

http://www.chineseestates.com

STOCK CODE

127

BOARD LOT

500 shares

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:
Tel:  (852) 2866 6999
Fax: (852) 2866 2822/(852) 2866 2833

E-mail:investor.relations@chineseestates.com
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. CHAN, Sze-wan, aged 41, joined the Group (the Company together
with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in 2002 and has been appointed as
an Executive Director of the Company since 2012. She acts as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company since 2015 and also acts as a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan is also the chairman of
the investment committee of the Company. She is responsible for the
Group's overall and day-to-day management including overseeing the
Group's properties' sales and leasing affairs. Ms. Chan has over 17 years
of experience in sales and marketing, management and operations. She
is the elder sister of Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan and Ms. Chan, Lok-wan, and the
aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Chan
is a director of certain substantial shareholders of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571
of the laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO").

Ms. CHAN, Hoi-wan, aged 40, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since 2017 and also acts as a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. She had joined the then associate of the
Group from 2002 to 2005 and participated in its cosmetics business,
including Two Girls products. She also possessed of more than 3.5 years'
work experience in media field in Hong Kong and gained experience in
properties and securities investments through her investments. Ms. Chan
is the younger sister of Ms. Chan, Sze-wan, the elder sister of Ms. Chan,
Lok-wan, the step-mother of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai and the sister-in-law of
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai. As at the date of this annual report, Ms. Chan is
a director of certain substantial shareholders of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Ms. CHAN, Lok-wan, aged 35, joined the Group in 2008 and has been
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 2015. She is the
Manager of Sales and Leasing Department and also acts as a director of
certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Business and Management (Marketing) from Brunel University
London and a Master Degree of Science in Communication, Information
and Society from The London School of Economics and Political Science.
She is responsible for the Group's marketing affairs, overseeing the
Group's cosmetics business, including Two Girls products, and participated
in the Group's properties’ sales and leasing businesses. Ms. Chan has over
11 years of experience in sales and marketing. She is the younger sister of
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan and Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, and the aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-

wai.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS EEf/

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (contd)

Mr. LAM, Kwong-wai, aged 64, joined the Group in 1989 and has
been appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since 2012.
Mr. Lam is the Group Financial Controller and Company Secretary of the
Company and acts as a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. He
is also a member of the investment committee of the Company and acts
as the chief investment officer. Mr. Lam is an independent non-executive
director of Lifestyle China Group Limited, the shares of this company
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. Lam is a Certified Public Accountant
(Practising) and holds a Master Degree of Business Administration from
the University of Warwick, United Kingdom. He has over 42 years of

experience in auditing, finance and accounting industries.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU, Ming-wai, aged 39, has been appointed as a Director of
the Company since 2006 and appointed as the Chairman of the board
of Directors since 2014. Mr. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws from
King's College London, a Master Degree of Laws from The London School
of Economics and Political Science, and a Doctor Degree of Philosophy
in Laws from King's College London. He worked at The Goldman Sachs
Group, Inc. and Longview Partners LP, both in London prior to joining the
Group. Mr. Lau is a registered attorney in the State of New York and a
CFA (Chartered Financial Analyst) charterholder. He is the step-son of Ms.
Chan, Hoi-wan, and the nephew of Ms. Chan, Sze-wan, Ms. Chan, Lok-
wan and Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai. As at the date of this annual report, Mr.
Lau is a director of a substantial shareholder of the Company within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

Ms. Amy LAU, Yuk-wai, aged 67, has been appointed as a Non-
executive Director of the Company since 2004. Ms. Lau is also a non-
executive director of Lifestyle International Holdings Limited, the shares
of this company are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
She was registered with the Royal College of Dental Surgeons of Ontario,
Canada and is a retired dentist. Ms. Lau holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science and a Doctor Degree of Dental Surgery from the University of
Toronto, Canada. She is the sister-in-law of Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan and the

aunt of Mr. Lau, Ming-wai.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHAN, Kwok-wai, aged 61, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2004. He is the chairman
of the audit committee and remuneration committee, and a member of
the nomination committee and investment committee of the Company.
Mr. Chan holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration from the
Monash University, Australia. He is also a member of CPA Australia and
a member of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute. He has
over 40 years of experience in finance and accounting industries. Mr.
Chan is currently a director of High Progress Consultants Limited. He is
also an independent non-executive director of China Investments Holdings
Limited, Far East Consortium International Limited, National Electronics
Holdings Limited and Tern Properties Company Limited respectively, the
shares of all these companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Ms. Phillis LOH, Lai-ping, aged 55, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 2006. She
is the chairman of the nomination committee, a member of the audit
committee and remuneration committee of the Company. Ms. Loh is an
independent non-executive director of In Technical Productions Holdings
Limited, the shares of this company are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Loh holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws
and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws, both from The University of Hong
Kong. Ms. Loh was a practising solicitor from 1990 to 1997, and has since
become a practising barrister-at-law after she was called to the Hong Kong
Bar in 1998. She was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong (1990) and
the United Kingdom (1991), and is also a barrister and solicitor in the
Supreme Court of the Australian Capital Territory (since 1991). Ms. Loh
is a CEDR (Centre for Effective Dispute Resolution) Accredited Mediator
(2009) and an appointed member of the Board of Review (Inland
Revenue Ordinance) (2018). She was appointed Deputy District Judge
in 2014 and 2016, and Temporary Deputy Registrar of the High Court in
2018.

Mr. MA, Tsz-chun, aged 54, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2008. He is a member of
the audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee
and investment committee of the Company. Mr. Ma is a Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) and has over 32 years of experience in auditing,
finance and accounting industries. He is currently a director and the
general manager of Sino-Bridge China Consulting Limited. Mr. Ma is an
independent non-executive director of In Technical Productions Holdings
Limited, the shares of this company are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Ma holds a Master Degree in Business
Administration and a Master of Science Degree in E-Commerce (Business
Programme), both from The Chinese University of Hong Kong as well as a
Master of Science Degree in China Business Studies from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Ma is a fellow member of The Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants in the United Kingdom and an associate
member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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PROFILES OF SENIOR EXECUTIVES
BRITHRAEEHN

Ms. Connie CHEUNG, Mun-yi, aged 52, joined the Group (the
Company together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) in 2007 and is
the Head of Legal Department. Ms. Cheung is a practising solicitor. She
holds a Bachelor Degree of Laws and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws,
both from The University of Hong Kong. Before joining the Group, Ms.
Cheung worked in both law firm as a solicitor and public sector as an in-
house legal counsel. Ms. Cheung is responsible for overseeing the legal
aspects of the Group's various businesses, including project development,
commercial investments, conveyancing and tenancy. She has over 28

years of legal experience.

Mr. Simon CHEUNG, Sung-fung, aged 38, joined the Group in 2007
and is the Head of Leasing Department. Mr. Cheung is a chartered
surveyor. He holds a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration
(Honours) in Marketing from the City University of Hong Kong and a
Master Degree of Science in Real Estate from The University of Hong
Kong. He is also a member of The Royal Institution of Chartered
Surveyors. Mr. Cheung is responsible for the real estate asset
management. He has over 16 years of relevant experience. Mr. Cheung

also acts as a director of a subsidiary of the Company.

Ms. Hazel LAI, Ming-yan, aged 51, joined the Group in 2000 and is
the Senior Manager— Contracts of Project Development Department. Ms.
Lai is a registered professional surveyor. She holds a Bachelor Degree of
Science in Building from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master
Degree of Science in Construction and Real Estate from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. She is also a member of The Hong Kong Institute
of Surveyors and The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors. Ms. Lai is
responsible for the quantity surveying affairs. She has over 29 years of

relevant experience.
Various businesses and functions of the Company are significantly under

the direct responsibilities of the Executive Directors who are also regarded

as senior executives of the Company.
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I am pleased to present the results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the “Year") to the

shareholders of the Company.

RESULTS

Profit for the Year attributable to owners of the Company was HK$790.2
million as compared to HK$1,015.3 million for last year. The decrease
in profit for the Year was mainly due to (a) no dividend income (2018:
HK$1,106.8 million) was recognised from the shares of China Evergrande
Group (stock code: 3333) during the Year; (b) the fair value changes of
investment properties turning to loss of HK$742.7 million as compared
with gain of HK$122.3 million; (c) recognition of an impairment loss
of goodwill of HK$322.9 million (2018: nil); and (d) no attributable
property sales profit (2018: HK$183.3 million) was recognised during the
Year despite of the result from the segment of investments and treasury
products at fair value through profit or loss turning to profit of HK$1,798.9
million as compared with loss of HK$710.8 million recorded in 2018.
Earnings per share for the Year was HK$0.41 (2018: HK$0.53).

If the net loss on the major non-cash items of HK$907.2 million (2018:
net gain of HK$297.0 million) is excluded, the Group will have a core
profit for the Year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$1,697.4
million (2018: HK$718.3 million) and a core profit per share of HK$0.89
(2018: HK$0.38).

The major non-cash items represented the attributable net unrealised fair
value loss on investment properties together with their respective deferred
tax from the Group and its associates and joint venture of HK$584.3
million (2018: net gain of HK$297.0 million) and impairment loss of
goodwill of HK$322.9 million (2018: nil).

DIVIDENDS

The board of directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board")
has recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1 cent per share
(2018: HK10 cents per share) for the Year (the “Final Dividend").

The Company had paid an interim dividend of HK1 cent per share on
27 August 2019 (2018: HK1 cent per share). Having considered the
Company's dividend policy, to preserve more cash for the Group's future
financial, property investment or securities investment opportunities, the
Board has recommended the payment of the Final Dividend of HK1 cent
per share (2018: HK10 cents per share).
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT F[EiREE

DIVIDENDS (contd)

Subject to shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on 26 May 2020 (the "2020 AGM"),
dividend warrants for the Final Dividend will be posted on or about 11
June 2020 to shareholders whose names appear on the register of

members of the Company on 2 June 2020.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of ascertaining the members' eligibility to attend and vote
at the 2020 AGM, and entitlement to the recommended Final Dividend,
the register of members will be closed during the following periods

respectively:

B E )

FRRERARRER 2T ZEFAA BT
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FHtE - REIREZ AR ﬁﬂ—rﬁ/\_7_7$/\ﬁ]‘i’—
HEAETETR _Z_TFAZBRIEAR
[ i 3

EERERRE

REERREF-_Z_ZFRRAFAGINE L
BENER  REREZE KBRS OEN  ARF]H
DRIR T ST ERERRELTFE

FiElo qz i

(1) For ascertaining eligibility to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM:

(REEHE=

Latest time to lodge transfers documents for registration

ZE R A B P A AMEE SR R R AR R

EEFRABFASYRELRENER:

20.5.2020
16:30

Closure of register of members
TR TR FE

21.5.2020-26.5.2020

(both days inclusive) (B IEERMX)

(2) For ascertaining entitlement to the recommended Final Dividend:

QAEEBRESAHRENEFR

Latest time to lodge transfers documents for registration

R E R B P X AMEE LN RRER

29.5.2020
16:30

Closure of register of members

1.6.2020-2.6.2020

EERERRERLFE (both days inclusive) (B2 fF &R MK )
Record date 2.6.2020

Bl e

To be eligible to attend and vote at the 2020 AGM, and to qualify for
the recommended Final Dividend, all properly completed share transfers
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
for registration with the Company's Branch Registrar and Transfer Office in
Hong Kong, namely Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than the respective latest time as

stated above.
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGIES

The Group's core businesses comprise property investments for rental and

property development as well as securities investments.

The Group aims at enhancing value and recurrent revenue of investment
properties through conceptualising and implementing redevelopment,
renovation works and repackaging programmes for properties as well as
actively managing a balanced tenant mix for retail properties to achieve

long-term sustainable growth.

In Hong Kong, the Group participates in developing modern industrial

properties.

The Group invested in office properties and hotel business in Mainland
China and commercial and residential properties in the United Kingdom.
All of them are located in the prestigious areas and generate stable and

recurrent rental income for the Group.

The Group is actively grasping the opportunity for acquiring properties in
Hong Kong and the United Kingdom.

The Group continues its strategy in quality partnerships with property
developers or other parties to the extent commercially feasible and

beneficial to the Group's development.

Apart from the aforesaid, the Group has conducted variety of securities
investment business, such as equity investments, debt investments and
other treasury products, with the aim to yield enhancement for treasury

management.

The Group believes that the stable rental income from its investment
properties, together with the property development and trading as well as
securities investment, forms a diversified cash flow stream which allows

the Group to weather the cyclicality of the real estate business.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&ZE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Hong Kong Property Investment

Rentals from investment properties continued to be one of the major

sources of our income.

As at 31 December 2019, the occupancy rate of the shops of Causeway

Place was approximately 96.65%.

Olympian City 3 (25% interest), the retail mall in The Hermitage
residences in West Kowloon, the occupancy rate was 100% as at
31 December 2019.

Coronation Circle (15% interest), the retail mall in The Coronation
residences in West Kowloon, the occupancy rate was approximately
78.16% as at 31 December 2019.

During the Year, the average occupancy rate of the Group's office property,

Harcourt House was approximately 88.96%.

No. 1 Hung To Road (33.33% interest), a 33-storey industrial building
in Kwun Tong, the occupancy rate was approximately 98.80% as at
31 December 2019.

Nos. 14-18 Ma Kok Street (100% interest), an industrial building in
Tsuen Wan was vacant as at 31 December 2019. It is planned to be
redeveloped into a 26-storey (including G/F and 2 levels of basement)
industrial building with a total gross floor area of approximately 228,000
square feet. The redevelopment is in planning and design stage which is
expected to be completed by end of 2024. The Group's equity interest
in the company holding Nos. 14-18 Ma Kok Street has been increased
from 50% to 51% in December 2019 and further increased from 519% to

100% in February 2020.

Hong Kong Property Development

The Hermitage (25% interest) is one of the Group's joint venture
development projects in West Kowloon. It comprises 6 residential tower
blocks and provides in aggregate 964 residential units and retail properties
with a total gross floor area of around 1,095,980 square feet. As at
31 December 2019, 99.79% of total units were sold.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Hong Kong Property Development (Cont'd)

The Coronation (15% interest) is another joint venture development
project of the Group in West Kowloon. It comprises 6 residential tower
blocks and provides in aggregate 740 residential units and retail properties
with a total gross floor area of around 650,600 square feet. As at
31 December 2019, 99.86% of total units were sold.

Grand Central (10% interest) is a joint venture development project of
the Group awarded by the Urban Renewal Authority. Its total site area
is approximately 234,160 square feet. Total gross floor area of around
1,853,561 square feet will be developed. 4 residential tower blocks with
1,999 residential units in aggregate will be built in two phases. Up to
31 December 2019, 862 units of first phase and 772 units of second
phase were presold. Superstructure works of both phases are in progress,

the whole project will be completed in the first half of 2021.

Mainland China Property Investment

Hilton Beijing (50% interest), a five-star international hotel having 506
rooms. During the Year, 15th to 25th Floors of the main tower were under

renovation, its average occupancy rate was approximately 52.35%.

Oriental Place (50% interest), a 10-storey office building next to Hilton
Beijing. Its average occupancy rate was approximately 81.07% during the

Year.

Overseas Property Investment

Overall, approximately 98.63% of the Group's investment property

portfolio in the United Kingdom has been let out during the Year.

River Court is a freehold office building situated at 116-129 Fleet
Street, London, United Kingdom. It provides a total net internal area of
approximately 431,324 square feet, together with certain car parking
spaces. During the Year, River Court was fully let. The anchor tenant will
surrender the lease in the first quarter of 2020, and thereafter asset
enhancement works will be carried out in due course when relevant study

is completed and government approval is granted.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT FEHR&ZE

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Cont'd)

Overseas Property Investment (Cont'd)

“14 St George Street” is a freehold office building located in London,
United Kingdom. The building comprises approximately 51,861 square
feet of office accommodation arranged over lower ground, ground and

four upper floors. It was fully let during the Year.

“61-67 Oxford Street and 11-14 Soho Street” is a mixed use freehold
building located in London, United Kingdom, comprising approximately
55,162 square feet in aggregate. The building provides retails, office and
residential accommodation, occupying approximately 33,850 square feet,
13,735 square feet and 7,577 square feet respectively, over lower ground,
ground and six upper floors, approximately 94.43% had been let out

during the Year on average.

“11 and 12 St James's Square and 14 to 17 Ormond Yard” is a mixed
use freehold building located in London, United Kingdom. The building
provides around 80,000 square feet office accommodation arranged over
lower ground, ground and six upper floors, approximately 93.26% had

been let out during the Year on average.

Securities Investments

Securities investment is one of the principal activities of the Group.

The Group's strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for
treasury management. As at 31 December 2019, the Group's securities
investment portfolio mainly comprised of bonds and listed equity
investments. The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are
to safeguard the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
of the Company. The Group's strategy for future investment is to invest in
a diversified portfolio to minimise risks with attractive yield, good liquidity
and issuers from reputable entities, so as to maintain a healthy financial

status and grasp every good investment chance.

The gain recognised from securities investments and treasury products
for the Year was approximately HK$1,685.7 million. Details of the
performance of securities investments are disclosed in the “Financial

Operation Review" of this annual report.

The Group will continue to closely monitor its portfolio of securities

investment to achieve satisfactory returns.
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OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD

Leasing of Windsor House - Connected Transaction and

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 28 February 2019, the Group (as tenant) entered into (a) a tenancy
agreement in relation to the leasing of the whole of 17th floor of Chubb
Tower, Windsor House; and (b) an agreement for lease in relation to
the leasing of the whole of 19th floor, the whole of 20th floor and the
whole of 21st floor of Chubb Tower, Windsor House (the “Subsequent
Tenancy”), with a company at that time indirectly owned by (i) Ms.
Chan, Hoi-wan (an Executive Director and a trustee of the substantial
shareholders of the Company (who are two of her minor children)), both
in her capacity as a trustee of her minor children and in her own capacity;
(i) Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (a Non-executive Director, the Chairman of the
Board and a substantial shareholder of the Company); and (iii) a family
trust of Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung (the spouse of Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan)
(as landlord) (the "Transactions”), for the purpose of new headquarter
of the Group. The Transactions constituted a connected transaction and
continuing connected transactions for the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange") (the “Listing Rules”) as more described
in the Company's announcement dated 28 February 2019. A tenancy
agreement in relation to the Subsequent Tenancy has been entered into
on 18 October 2019.

Adoption of Dividend Policy

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy for the Company
on 5 March 2019, details as disclosed in the “Corporate Governance

Report” of the Company's 2018 annual report.
Change of Address of Registered Office in Bermuda

As announced on 15 July 2019, the address of the Company's registered
office in Bermuda has been changed to Victoria Place, 5th Floor, 31
Victoria Street, Hamilton HM 10, Bermuda with effect from 15 July 2019.

Change of Address of Principal Registrar and Transfer Office in
Bermuda

As announced on 19 July 2019, the address of MUFG Fund Services
(Bermuda) Limited, the Company's principal registrar and transfer office in
Bermuda, has been changed to 4th Floor North, Cedar House, 41 Cedar
Avenue, Hamilton HM 12, Bermuda with effect from 19 July 2019.
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OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD (contd)

Subscription of Notes - Discloseable Transaction

On 15 November 2019,
and subscription agreement in relation to the subscription of the
US$100,000,000 9.75% senior notes due 2020 to be issued by
Zhongliang Holdings Group Company Limited (the shares of which are
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2772)), an
independent third party, at the issue price of US$98,287,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$770,305,000), representing 98.287% of the

the Group entered into a placement

principal amount of the notes (the “Subscription”). The Subscription
constituted a discloseable transaction for the Company as more described

in the Company’s announcement dated 26 November 2019.

Acquisition of Remaining Interest in Nos.14-18 Ma Kok Street,

Tsuen Wan - Discloseable Transaction

As announced on 10 January 2020, the Group has on 10 January 2020
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an independent third
party in relation to, inter alia, the acquisition of the remaining 49% interest
in Landrich (H.K)) Limited (“Landrich”) (the owner of Tsuen Wan Town Lot
No.128 situated at Nos.14-18 Ma Kok Street, Tsuen Wan, New Territories,
Hong Kong and the building erected thereon) (the "Acquisition”). The
Group initially acquired 50% interest in Landrich in March 2018 and
further acquired 1% interest in Landrich in December 2019 (the “Previous
Acquisitions”). Subsequent to the completion of the Acquisition on
28 February 2020, Landrich has become a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company. The Acquisition (aggregated with the Previous Acquisitions)
constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company under the Listing

Rules.

Disposal of Debt Securities — Major and Connected Transaction

The Group has on 29 January 2020 entered into a disposal agreement
with Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan (an Executive Director and a trustee of the
substantial shareholders of the Company (who are two of her minor
children)) in relation to, inter alia, the disposal of certain debt securities
(the "Disposal”). The Disposal constituted a major and connected
transaction of the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of the
Disposal were set out in the Company's announcement dated 29 January
2020 and circular dated 28 February 2020. The Disposal was approved
by the independent shareholders of the Company at the special general

meeting of the Company held on 23 March 2020.
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OTHER INFORMATION AND EVENTS AFTER
THE REPORTING PERIOD (contd)

Disposal of Perpetual Bond - Discloseable Transaction

On 19 March 2020, the Group disposed of the 7.5% fixed rate resetting
perpetual subordinated contingent convertible securities issued by
Standard Chartered PLC (the shares of which are listed on the London
Stock Exchange, the Stock Exchange (stock code: 2888), the Bombay
Stock Exchange in India and the National Stock Exchange in India) (the
“Perpetual Bond") in the principal amount of US$2,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$19,490,000) through over-the-counter market
for a consideration of approximately US$2,265,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$17,655,000) (inclusive of accrued interest) (the “Bond
Disposal”). The Bond Disposal (when aggregated with the conditional
disposal of the Perpetual Bond under the Disposal mentioned in
the above paragraph) constituted a discloseable transaction for the
Company under the Listing Rules as more described in the Company's
announcement dated 20 March 2020.

Outbreak of Novel Coronavirus

Since December 2019, the outbreak of novel coronavirus (“COVID-19")
has impact on the global business environment. Pending the development
and spread of the epidemic subsequent to the date of this annual report,
further changes in economic conditions for the Group arising thereof may
have impact on the financial results of the Group, the extent of which
could not be estimated as at the date of this annual report. The Group
will pay close attention to the development of COVID-19 and evaluate its

impact on the financial position and operating results of the Group.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is continuously committed to maintaining good
communication with shareholders, investors and analysts in order to
ensure their thorough understanding of the Group's strategies and
business development, thereby enhancing transparency and investor

relations.

The Company maintains a Company's website (www.chineseestates.com)
to make the Company's information available on the internet, including
the dissemination of statutory announcements and circulars etc., to
facilitate its communication with shareholders and to provide important
information to the investing public on corporate governance structure,
policies and systems, profiles of the Directors and senior executives as

well as terms of reference of Board committees.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS (contd)

The up-to-date information of the Group is available for public
access on the Company's website. The Company encourages its
shareholders to take advantage of the Company’s website and welcomes
suggestions from investors and shareholders, and invites them to
share their views and suggestions by contacting the Company at

investor.relations@chineseestates.com.

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company in writing by sending such written enquiries to
the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong at the address disclosed
in “Corporate Information” of this annual report or by email at investor.
relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to raise

questions at general meetings.

PROSPECTS

The global economic outlook had turned optimistic in face of the signing
of the Phase One Deal on the United States-China trade war, which affects
not just the two countries, but most global economies. While the road
ahead to the end point of the trade war is likely to be more challenging, it
was at least been a positive sign for the market sentiments. Nonetheless,
the markets are now faced with a new challenge — COVID-19, which
has spread across many parts of the world speedily since the Chinese
New Year. The sudden interest rate cut by 1.5% in aggregate and the
resumption of quantitative easing by the Federal Reserve of the United
States in early and mid of March 2020 posed much concerns on the
impact of the virus to economic activities. Furthermore, the sharp decrease
in oil price has brought more uncertainty to the world markets. In the
short term, it is inevitable that global markets will be hit hard and with

significant turbulence during the course.

Hong Kong economy has been hammered badly from protests and
demonstrations that have taken place since mid-2019, with the first
budget deficit in 15 years forthcoming. Coupled with the outbreak of
COVID-19 and various measures including travel restrictions and new
border control measures implemented in many countries to prevent
the spread of the virus, local retail consumption and tourist arrivals are
experiencing significant downward pressure. It is therefore expected that
a longer time would be required for our investment properties to be fully
healed.
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PROSPECTS (contd)

After over three years of uncertainty, the United Kingdom has officially
left the European Union finally. While there will likely be hard negotiations
between the United Kingdom and European Union on various trade
and other arrangements over the next 10-month transition period,
and hence market turbulence in the meantime is not unexpected, the
official departure of the United Kingdom from the European Union has
undoubtedly cleared the most significant uncertainty in investments in
the United Kingdom. Since the Group has a long-term view for the United
Kingdom, we are optimistic that her economy will be on the upside
in the long run. The Group will continue to leverage on our expertise
and experience in enhancing the values of our properties in the United
Kingdom through asset enhancement works to take benefit of the
expected economic upswing, albeit a short-term rental income plunge will

occur as during the asset enhancement works.

In the short term, the stock markets are bound to be affected by the
latest developments on COVID-19 situations, oil price movements, and

monetary policies adopted by governments and hence likely to be volatile.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue to be watchful and cautious
with our investment decisions. While there are positive signs as regards
the long-dragged United States — China Trade War and Brexit, there
are new challenges, especially locally in Hong Kong. We believe that
our continuous watchful and cautious approach in looking for quality

investments will benefit shareholders' value as a whole.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my gratitude to the
shareholders for their continuing support. | would also like to express
my sincere thanks to my fellow directors and all staff members for their

dedication and hard work.

Lau, Ming-wai

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2020
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW
MBRBEE

RESULTS

Revenue

Revenue for the year ended 31 December 2019 ("Year”) amounted
to HK$539.0 million (2018: HK$843.6 million), a decrease of 36.19%
over last year and comprised gross rental income of HK$523.0 million
and others of HK$16.0 million (2018: gross rental income of HK$544.5
million, property sales of HK$274.0 million and others of HK$25.1
million). The decline in revenue was mainly due to no property sales

recorded for the Year.

Gross Profit

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$511.5 million (2018: HK$719.1
million), a decrease of 28.9% as compared with last year which also
mainly derived from no property sales profit for the Year (2018: HK$177.7

million).
Property Leasing

For property leasing, the overall rental revenue in both non-retail and retail
sections decreased to HK$446.0 million and HK$77.0 million respectively
during the Year. The total rental income in revenue for the Year recorded
a decrease of 4.0% to HK$523.0 million as compared with last year of
HK$544.5 million.

Together with the attributable rental revenue generated from associates,
a joint venture and an investee company of HK$129.7 million (2018:
HK$139.3 million), the total attributable rental revenue to the Company
(together with its subsidiaries, “Group”) amounted to HK$652.7 million
(2018: HK$683.8 million after non-controlling interests), which represents

a decrease of 4.6% over last year.

Attributable net rental income for the Year showed HK$597.5 million, a

decrease of 4.6% over HK$626.0 million in last year.
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RESULTS (contd)

Property Development and Trading

During the Year, the Group did not dispose of any trading property. In
2018, the attributable property sales revenue and profit from the Group
and its associates and investee company recorded HK$270.8 million and
HK$183.3 million respectively, including (a) sales of 55 Conduit Road in
Mid-Levels West (70% interest) contributed an attributable profit to the
Group of HK$125.4 million; (b) sales of a workshop unit at Kwong Kin
Trade Centre in Tuen Mun (50% interest), a unit and two store rooms
at Hing Wai Centre in Aberdeen (50% interest) and parking spaces at
Greenville Residence in Yuen Long (50% interest) (properties held by
associates) generated profit of HK$1.9 million, HK$1.7 million and HK$0.3
million respectively, as reflected in the share of results of investments
accounted for using the equity method; and (c) sale of parking spaces at
The Coronation in West Kowloon (15% interest) had contributed HK$54.0

million to investment income upon recognition of dividend income.
Securities Investments

The Group has in the ordinary and usual course of business conducted
its securities investment activities, as at 31 December 2019, mainly
comprised of bonds and listed equity investments. During the Year,
the gain (excluding gain/loss recognised in financial assets measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") reserve)
recognised from securities investments and treasury products was
HK$1,685.7 million (2018: HK$280.8 million), comprised loss on
listed equity investments at FVTOCI of HK$113.2 million (2018: gain of
HK$991.6 million) and gain on investments and treasury products at fair
value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") of HK$1,798.9 million (2018: loss
of HK$710.8 million).
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FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW Bf #& % %% [ E&

RESULTS (contd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

During the Year, the Group did not dispose of any listed investments
held-for-trading (2018: no disposal). The realised gain from sales of
bonds of HK$184.2 million (2018: realised loss of HK$20.1 million)
was recognised, mainly comprising the realised gain on bonds in the
industry of the People's Republic of China ("PRC")-based real estate of
HK$82.0 million (2018: HK$7.7 million) and the realised gain on bonds
in the industry of overseas financial institutions of HK$97.4 million (2018:
realised loss of HK$23.2 million), and no disposal of bonds in the industry
of insurance (2018: realised loss of HK$2.0 million). During the Year,
the Group had acquired 19 bonds (2018:
additions to the existing bonds) in the sum of HK$3,436.7 million (2018
HK$2,602.9 million), and disposed of/redeemed 19 bonds (2018: 40
bonds) (including those with partial disposal) with carrying amounts in the
sum of HK$2,309.4 million (2018: HK$5,381.0 million). Bonds acquired
were mainly in the industry of PRC-based real estate of 96.9% (2018:
47.6%) and overseas financial institutions of 3.1% (2018: 50.7%). In

11 bonds including those

addition, realised losses on the fixed coupon notes (“FCN") and currency

option totaling HK$0.7 million were recorded during the Year.

Furthermore, the Group recorded an unrealised gain of HK$978.5 million
(2018: unrealised loss of HK$1,255.1 million) representing the changes
in fair value of bonds, which had no effect on the cash flow of the Group.
The unrealised gain (2018: unrealised loss) from changes in fair value
of bonds represented 34 bonds (2018: 25 bonds), mainly comprising
the unrealised gain from the industry of overseas financial institutions
of HK$399.8 million or increase in fair value of 12.4% over the Year;
and the unrealised gain from the industry of PRC-based real estate
of HK$518.9 million or increase in fair value of 11.5% over the Year
(2018: unrealised loss from the industry of overseas financial institutions
of HK$489.4 million or decrease in fair value of 12.0% over the year;
and the unrealised loss from the industry of PRC-based real estate of
HK$714.5 million or decrease in fair value of 20.4% over the year). The
Group believes that the increase in price of bonds in PRC-based real
estate sector in the Year, among others, was owing to the Federal Reserve
of the United States cut the Federal funds rate 3 times totaling 0.75% on
31 July 2019, 18 September 2019 and 31 October 2019 which stimulate

the investment market during the Year.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019

RAFE AEBUTEDEFMNBEEEZ LTE
B(ZZ—N\F:UELE) HEBHHER ZE“
15 U 25 £184,200,0005% 7T <_ T-NF:B2#
/&5 18 520,100,000/ 7T ) - BERE EP%AE

ful(FEPD}%tﬂth%z{a%za £35 I 25
82,000,000/ 7t ( =% — \ & : 7,700,000/ 7T ) * &
iﬂ?l\imﬁﬁ&%ﬁ%ﬂaﬁza """"" £38 U #97,400,000
B (ZZE—N\F: 2 &K E 823,200,000/ 7T ) A
&Iﬁaﬂi{%fﬁ%ﬂa%(_? N BEBE
82,000,000 7T) - RAFE - REEBA19E (=

—NF:NE(REEFREZES) )EFEE
#3,436,700,0007% 7t ( == — J\4F : 2,602,900,000
L) o RHEE /BEBEHIOE(ZZT—/\F:40
E)EHF (RREIBHPEHEZESF) EEHERER
2,309,400,0007% 7t ( == — )\ 4 : 5,381,000,000/%
L) cBBAZESFEERBPEEMETTH1596.9%
(ZZ—N\F:476%) KB BEBITENLS 1%
(ZZ—\F:50.7%)  WoN RAFEREEE L
XEZER(BAEEXFER]) REKHEZ EEREE
8154 #5700,000% 7T

o REEHRBERFZAFEEZSGH 2 REH K
% /3978,500,0008 T (ZE— \F : REREE
7%1,255,100,000% 7T) - HI AL BERERE W B
B EEZAFEESH AR NGE (Z2—\F:
KEHEBB)DREME(ZT—NF:258)EF
5 FTERERAGINSHBEBITEZRER K
399,800,000 TR ANFEE 2 A FEIEIN12.4% :
Koo Hp B o B 1T 3 2 oK 3R I 45518,900,000% 7T
FRAFEZ AFELMNIE% (ZF—\F:RE
NS RMEBITEZRERE TE489,400,000> 57T
IRFEZRAFERD120%: RFEEHETE
2 REIR E18714,500,000/8 T A EE 2 A FER
120.4%) c AEBEEERAFEFREFMETEZ
BEHFER LA DA (ERaE) BB ZEERBR

—h&EtR=+—B - —Z—hEALA+N\E

—hE+A=+—BEIREBHE
075/ - MR AFEE R HIRETIS -

=k
/Ai/:l\/ﬁi



RESULTS (contd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

During the Year, interest income from bonds amounted to HK$714.0
million (2018: HK$623.4 million), represented 8.46% (2018:
8.72%) (before effect on leverage) return on average market value of
bondholding during the Year. The interest income from the FCN amounted
to HK$1.9 million (2018: nil), represented 13.25% (before effect on
leverage) return on average market value of the FCN holding during the

Year.

Summing up the realised and unrealised gain/loss and adding the net
income from interest income, other net investment income and net
finance costs of HK$523.7 million (2018: HK$1,556.0 million (also
included net dividend income)), the gain recognised from securities
investments and treasury products was HK$1,685.7 million (2018:
HK$280.8 million).

The respective income/expense from securities investments under

different categories are further elaborated below:

Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through Profit

or Loss

The investments and treasury products at FVTPL recorded a profit before
and after net finance costs of HK$1,899.2 million and HK$1,798.9 million
(2018: loss before and after net finance costs of HK$639.8 million and
HK$710.8 million) respectively for the Year.

Gain from the investments and treasury products at FVTPL reflected in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the Year comprised
a realised gain on fair value changes of bonds of HK$184.2 million and
realised losses on fair value changes of the FCN and currency option
totaling HK$0.7 million (2018: realised loss of bonds of HK$20.1 million),
an unrealised gain on fair value changes of bonds of HK$978.5 million
(2018: unrealised loss of HK$1,255.1 million), interest income of bonds
and the FCN of HK$715.9 million (2018: bonds of HK$623.4 million) and
other investment income of HK$21.3 million (2018: HK$12.0 million).
Net relevant finance costs for the Year was HK$100.3 million (2018:
HK$71.0 million) including interest expense of HK$103.8 million (2018:
HK$79.8 million) and exchange gain of HK$3.5 million (2018: HK$8.8

million).
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RESULTS (contd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

The respective income/expense from securities investments under

different categories are further elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through Profit
or Loss (Cont'd)

The table below summarises the performance of bonds and treasury

products during the Year:

Slle E .
EE

BERE (B)

TR TRRR 2 BHIRE WA/ B3 R —
S ()

BBEBEURBRAFPEZKRERHEER (&)

TERMAAFEEFRHEEMRIRER:

Realised gain (loss) Unrealised gain (loss) Interest income Total profit (loss)
BRRNE (FR) FERKE (FR) FSHA wR ()88
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$ million HK$ milion  HK$ million HK$ milion  HK$ million HK$ milion  HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEAT BEET AEET BEER AEET AEETR BEAT
Bond issuers by industry REFROAZGE
Overseas financial institutions e pEE 914 (232) 399.8 (489.4) 278.1 3042 1759 (208.4)
PRC-based real estate hEEE 820 77 5189 (7145) 413.9 2941 10148 (@127)
Insurance R - (20) - - - 12 - (08)
Others £ 48 (26) 59.8 (512) 214 29 86.0 (299)
1842 (0.) 9785 (1,255.1) 7140 6234 1,876.7 (6518)
Treasury products HEER
FCN TEERE (0.4) - - - 19 - 15 -
Currency option B g (0.3) - - - - - (0.3) -
(0.7) - o - 19 - 12 -
1835 (0.) 9785 (1,255.1) 7159 6234 18779 (6518)
Other investment income HiRERA 213 120
Profit (loss) before net finance costs BBBRTEAZ
w (BR) 1,899.2 (639.8)
Net finance costs HBERER (100.3) (71.0)
Profit (loss) after net finance costs BBERFRKL
wH (B8) 1,798.9 (7108)
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RESULTS (contd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

The respective income/expense from securities investments under

different categories are further elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other

Comprehensive Income

@

®)

Implication on Profit or Loss for the Year

Dividend income (if any), other investment income and relevant
finance costs of holding listed equity investments at FVTOCI were
recognised in profit or loss for the Year. During the Year, no dividend
income was recorded from holding of 860,000,000 shares of
China Evergrande Group (stock code: 3333) (“China Evergrande”)
(“Evergrande Shares”) and another listed equity investment at
FVTOCI, hence the results from listed equity investments at FVTOCI
recorded a net loss of HK$113.2 million (2018: net gain of
HK$991.6 million) mainly represented its net relevant finance costs
(2018: comprised net dividend income of HK$1,106.5 million (after
transaction costs), other investment income of HK$0.7 million and
net relevant finance costs of HK$115.6 million). Subsequent to the
end of the reporting period, the Group received dividend income
from the Evergrande Shares of HK$1,357.1 million which would be
recorded in profit or loss for the year ending 31 December 2020.

Implication on Other Comprehensive Expenses for the Year

During the Year, the unit share price of China Evergrande had
dropped from HK$23.45 as at 31 December 2018 to HK$21.60 as
at 31 December 2019, or 7.9% over the Year, hence an unrealised
loss on fair value change of listed equity investment at FVTOCI of
HK$1,591.0 million (2018: HK$3,052.2 million) was recognised in
other comprehensive expenses. Together with unrealised gain on
fair value change of another listed equity investment at FVTOCI of
HK$0.4 million (2018: nil), the total unrealised fair value change
was loss of HK$1,590.6 million (2018: HK$3,052.2 million).
Realised gain/loss on fair value change is a cash item while
unrealised fair value change is a non-cash item and will not affect
the cash flow of the Group. The Group believes that the decrease
in share price of China Evergrande for the Year, among others, was
owing to the unstable business environment in the PRC, and China
Evergrande, a PRC-based company with United States dollar (“"US$")
debt exposure against a weakened Renminbi (“RMB") currency, was

adversely impacted.
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RESULTS (contd)

Securities Investments (Cont'd)

The respective income/expense from securities investments under

different categories are further elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other

Comprehensive Income (Cont'd)

The table below summarises the performance of listed equity investments

at FVTOCI during the Year:

At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F
+-A=+-A°
Purchase BA

Unrealised fair value changes ~ REBATEEH
Unrealised fair value changes ~ REBATER

Net finance costs HBERTE

Loss/other comprehensive RFEFE/
expenses for the Year Hit2EXH

At 31 December 2019 RZE-hE
t=B=t+-H

Representing R&E

Percentage to total assets (SEEBEZEA L

At 31 December 2019 RZB-AE
t=A=t-8

At 31 December 2018 R=_E—-N\E
TZA=+-A

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Stock Number of
code shares

k4
s RG#E

3333 860,000,000
9988 12,800

3333
9988

3333 860,000,000
9988 12,800
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consolidated statement of
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RESULTS (contd)

Other Income and Expenses

Other income for the Year, which mainly came from net building
management fee income, rental services income, property management
services, leasing administration services and property administration
services income and overprovision of costs in respect of a development
project, net, decreased to HK$59.9 million (2018: HK$173.1 million
(also included consultancy fee income, exchange gain, net and reversal
of impairment in respect of other receivable and interest thereon)),
representing a decrease of 65.4%. The decrease was mainly due to
absence of consultancy fee income and reversal of impairment in respect
of other receivable and interest thereon for the Year while a total of
HK$104.0 million was recorded in 2018.

During the Year, administrative expenses increased by 5.5% to HK$269.5
million (2018: HK$255.5 million). Finance costs increased by 7.3% to
HK$370.2 million (2018: HK$345.0 million) during the Year, including
exchange gain of HK$4.3 million (2018: HK$9.5 million) on translation of
foreign currency other borrowings hedged for foreign currency securities
investments and exchange gain of HK$9.5 million (2018: exchange loss of
HK$2.6 million) on translation of a foreign currency bank borrowing. The
increase in finance costs was mainly due to the increase in interest rates

during the Year.

Other gains and losses for the Year recorded a loss of HK$12.3 million
comprised loss on dissolution of subsidiaries of HK$10.6 million, write-
down of stock of properties of HK$0.7 million and impairment loss
recognised in respect of advances to associates of HK$1.0 million (2018:
HK$2.6 million mainly comprised write-down of stock of properties of
HK$2.5 million). The Group recognised a full impairment loss of goodwill
of HK$322.9 million (2018: nil) attributable to the cash-generating
unit operated in the United Kingdom for the Year, which includes an
investment property in the United Kingdom (details are disclosed in
Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report).
Recognition of impairment loss is a non-cash item and will not affect the

cash flow of the Group.
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RESULTS (contd)

Investments Accounted for Using the Equity Method

The share of results of investments accounted for using the equity method
for the Year recorded a profit of HK$209.7 million (2018: HK$232.3
million), comprised profit from the share of results of associates and a
joint venture of HK$5.0 million (2018: HK$228.8 million) and HK$204.7
million (2018: HK$3.5 million) respectively. The decrease in profit from
share of results of associates was mainly due to the decrease in fair value
of investment properties held by associates while the increase in profit
from share of result of a joint venture was mainly due to the increase in

fair value of investment property held by the joint venture.
Fair Value Changes on Investment Properties

Investment properties of the Group in Hong Kong and Mainland China
were revalued at 31 December 2019 by B.l. Appraisals Limited (“B.l.
Appraisals”) whereas investment properties in the United Kingdom were
revalued by Peak Vision Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision Appraisals”). B.I.
Appraisals and Peak Vision Appraisals are independent property valuers.
An unrealised loss on fair value changes of investment properties of
HK$742.7 million (2018: gain of HK$122.3 million) was recorded during
the Year. The unrealised fair value change is a non-cash item and will not

affect the cash flow of the Group.

PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE, CASH PAYMENT RATIO AND
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES

Profit

Profit for the Year attributable to owners of the Company was HK$790.2
million as compared to HK$1,015.3 million for last year. The decrease
in profit for the Year was mainly due to (a) no dividend income (2018:
HK$1,106.8 million) was recognised from the Evergrande Shares during
the Year; (b) the fair value changes of investment properties turning to
loss of HK$742.7 million as compared with gain of HK$122.3 million;
(c) recognition of an impairment loss of goodwill of HK$322.9 million
(2018: nil); and (d) no attributable property sales profit (2018: HK$183.3
million) was recognised during the Year despite of the result from the
segment of investments and treasury products at FVTPL turning to profit of
HK$1,798.9 million as compared with loss of HK$710.8 million recorded
in 2018. Earnings per share for the Year was HK$0.41 (2018: HK$0.53).
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PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE, CASH PAYMENT RATIO AND
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES (contd)

Core Profit

If the net loss on the major non-cash items of HK$907.2 million (2018:
net gain of HK$297.0 million) is excluded, the Group will have a core
profit for the Year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$1,697.4
million (2018: HK$718.3 million) and a core profit per share of HK$0.89
(2018: HK$0.38).

The major non-cash items represented the attributable net unrealised fair
value loss on investment properties together with their respective deferred
tax from the Group and its associates and joint venture of HK$584.3
million (2018: net gain of HK$297.0 million) and impairment loss of
goodwill of HK$322.9 million (2018: nil).

Dividends

Final dividend of HK10 cents (year ended 31 December 2017: HK10
cents) per share in total amount of HK$190.8 million for the year ended

31 December 2018 was paid in cash on 12 June 2019.

Interim dividend of HK1 cent (half year ended 30 June 2018: HK1 cent)
per share in total amount of HK$19.1 million for the half year ended
30 June 2019 was paid in cash on 27 August 2019.

Total dividends of HK$209.9 million were paid in cash during the Year.

Repurchase

During the Year, the Company had not repurchased any of the Company's
share.

Cash Payment Ratio

Based on (a) the core profit for the Year of HK$1,697.4 million or
HK$0.89 per share (2018: HK$718.3 million or HK$0.38 per share);
(b) cash final dividend for the Year of HK1 cent (2018: HK10 cents) per
share proposed; and (c) cash interim dividend for 2019 of HK1 cent
(2018: HK1 cent) per share paid, the ratio of such cash payment to the
core profit is 2.2% (2018: 28.9%).
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PROFIT, CORE PROFIT, DIVIDENDS,
REPURCHASE, CASH PAYMENT RATIO AND
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSES (contd)

Total Comprehensive Expenses

Total comprehensive expenses for the Year attributable to owners of
the Company was HK$283.6 million or HK$0.15 per share (2018:
HK$2,117.0 million or HK$1.11 per share), which comprised (a) profit
for the Year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$790.2 million
(2018: HK$1,015.3 million); and (b) other comprehensive expenses for
the Year attributable to owners of the Company of HK$1,073.8 million
(2018: HK$3,132.3 million) which mainly included unrealised loss on
fair value changes of listed equity investments at FVTOCI of HK$1,590.6
million (2018: HK$3,052.2 million), details are disclosed in the sub-
paragraph headed “Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through
Other Comprehensive Income (b) Implication on Other Comprehensive
Expenses for the Year" of paragraph headed “Securities Investments”

above.

NET ASSET VALUE

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's net asset value attributable to
owners of the Company amounted to HK$33,568.9 million (2018:
HK$34,062.4 million), a decrease of HK$493.5 million or 1.4% when
compared with 31 December 2018. With the total number of ordinary
shares in issue of 1,907,619,079 as at 31 December 2019 and 2018,
the net asset value per share attributable to owners of the Company
was HK$17.60 (2018: HK$17.86). The movement in net asset value was
mainly due to (a) total comprehensive expenses for the Year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$283.6 million; and (b) final and interim
dividends recognised as distribution during the Year totaling HK$209.9

million.

During the Year, loss on fair value changes of the listed equity investments
categorised as financial assets measured at FVTOCI of HK$1,590.6 million
(2018: HK$3,015.5 million, as well as the transaction cost of disposal
of certain Evergrande Shares of HK$1.0 million) was recorded in other
comprehensive expenses. The cumulative amount of gain on fair value
changes of listed equity investments included in financial assets measured
at FVTOCI reserve was HK$4,980.4 million as at 31 December 2019
(2018: HK$6,571.0 million).
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NET ASSET VALUE (contd)

Other than the disposals of debt securities and the acquisition of the
remaining 49% interest in Landrich (H.K.) Limited (as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Other Information and Events After the Reporting
Period"
report) and those disclosed in the final results, the Group did not have

in the section headed “Chairman’s Statement” of this annual

material acquisition or disposal of assets and any future plans for material
investment or capital assets.

NET CURRENT LIABILITIES

The Group recorded net current liabilities as at 31 December 2019
of HK$1,138.6 million (2018: HK$2,749.8 million), of which current
assets were HK$8,653.9 million (2018: HK$7,104.6 million) and current
liabilities were HK$9,792.5 million (2018: HK$9,854.4 million). The
position was mainly due to certain of the Group's current liabilities had

been utilised to finance the Group's non-current assets.

In the consolidated statement of financial position and within securities
investment activities, which comprised of bonds and listed equity
investments, the total carrying amount as at 31 December 2019 was
HK$27,554.2 million (2018: HK$26,852.5 million). Included in non-
current assets were part of the bonds in the sum of HK$1,607.4 million
(2018: HK$1,271.6 million) presented as financial assets measured at
FVTPL and listed equity investments in the sum of HK$18,578.7 million
(2018: HK$20,167.0 million) presented as financial assets measured
at FVTOCI. Included in current assets were part of the bonds in the
sum of HK$7,368.1 million (2018: HK$5,413.9 million) presented as
financial assets measured at FVTPL. Margin loans utilised to finance the
securities investments in both non-current and current assets in the sum
of HK$7,128.4 million (2018: HK$7,330.5 million) were presented as

borrowings in current liabilities.

If the margin loans of HK$7,128.4 million (2018: HK$7,330.5 million)
were allocated into the securities investments secured according to the
respective non-current and current assets presentation, HK$3,431.4
million (2018: HK$4,240.4 million) and HK$3,697.0 million (2018:
HK$3,090.1 million) were secured by the securities investments in non-

current and current assets respectively.
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NET CURRENT LIABILITIES (contd)

If the margin loans secured by the securities investments in non-
current assets of HK$3,431.4 million (2018: HK$4,240.4 million) were
reclassified as non-current liabilities, the net current liabilities position of
the Group would become net current assets position as at 31 December
2019 of HK$2,292.8 million (2018: HK$1,490.6 million).

The ratio of margin loans against securities investments was loan-to-
value ratio, which was 25.9% as at 31 December 2019 (2018: 27.3%).
In accordance with the terms and conditions of margin loans facility
agreements of the Group with financial institutions, among others, as long
as the securities investments maintained market value which is in excess
of pre-defined loan-to-value ratios as set out by the financial institutions,
the margin loans upon interest payment due date would be roll-overed
month-for-month, and repayment of margin loans by the Group to
financial institutions would not be required. As such, very often margin
loans of the Group which were presented as current liabilities would not
be current and would be repayable over one year. In the event that the
Group intends to reduce or repay part of the margin loans, the Group
might, among others, dispose of some of the securities investments to

effect the payment.

Securities investments and treasury products of the Group were
frequently traded in the market, and formed part of the Group's treasury
management. They were presented as non-current assets and current

assets according to their intended holding periods.

If the entire securities investments and treasury products of the Group
as at 31 December 2019 were presented as current assets, current
assets would be increased by HK$20,186.1 million (2018: HK$21,438.6
million), and net current liabilities position of HK$1,138.6 million (2018:
HK$2,749.8 million) would become net current assets position of
HK$19,047.5 million (2018: HK$18,688.8 million).

The Group believes that the net current liabilities position as at
31 December 2019 would not have adverse financial effect to the
Group's liquidity or gearing position and the Group has ability to continue

as a going concern.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS

The Group's strategy is to maintain securities investment portfolio for
treasury management and invest in securities investments and treasury
products with attractive yield and good prospect in order to bring stable
and satisfactory realised return in long run. During the Year, the Group
diversified the bonds portfolio comprised of the bonds issued by overseas

financial institutions and PRC-based real estate companies.

As at 31 December 2019, the portfolio of securities investments and
treasury products of HK$27,554.2 million (2018: HK$26,852.5 million)
comprised (a) bonds (financial assets measured at FVTPL (non-
current and current assets in aggregate)) of HK$8,975.5 million (2018
HK$6,685.5 million); and (b) listed equity investments (financial assets
measured at FVTOCI) of HK$18,578.7 million (2018: HK$20,167.0
million), representing 57.0% (2018: 55.1%) of total assets.

The respective securities investments under different categories are

elaborated below:

Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other

Comprehensive Income

In prior years, the Group had acquired 860,000,000 shares of China
Evergrande and recorded as financial assets measured at FVTOCI. During
the Year, no acquisition or disposal of shares of China Evergrande. The
Group held 860,000,000 shares of China Evergrande, representing
approximately 6.5% of the total issued share capital of China Evergrande
as at 31 December 2019.

As at 31 December 2018, the cumulative unrealised gain on fair value
change of the Evergrande Shares was HK$6,571.0 million and the
carrying amount of the Evergrande Shares was HK$20,167.0 million. After
deducting the unrealised fair value loss of HK$1,591.0 million for the
Year, the carrying amount of the Evergrande Shares as at 31 December
2019 was HK$18,576.0 million, representing 38.4% (2018: 41.4%)
of total assets. The cumulative unrealised gain on fair value change
of the Evergrande Shares was reduced from HK$6,571.0 million as at
31 December 2018 to HK$4,980.0 million as at 31 December 2019,
which was recorded in the financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

The respective securities investments under different categories are
elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Listed Equity Investments at Fair Value Through Other

Comprehensive Income (Cont'd)

China Evergrande group is principally engaged in property development,
property investment, property management, new energy vehicle business,
hotel operations, finance business, internet business and health industry
business in the PRC. According to the audited consolidated financial
statements of China Evergrande for the years ended 31 December
2018 and 2017, the revenue and profit attributable to shareholders were
RMB466.2 billion (2017: RMB311.0 billion) and RMB37.4 billion (2017:
RMB24.4 billion) respectively; while the total assets and total equity were
RMB1,880.0 billion (2017: RMB1,761.8 billion) and RMB308.6 billion
(2017: RMB242.2 billion) respectively, the net debt was RMB468.9
billion (2017: RMB444.9 billion). In accordance with the unaudited
consolidated financial statements of China Evergrande for the six months
ended 30 June 2019, the revenue and profit attributable to shareholders
were RMB227.0 billion and RMB14.9 billion respectively; while the total
assets and total equity were RMB2,098.5 billion and RMB345.3 billion
respectively, the net debt was RMB525.2 billion. Net debt is calculated as

total borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash.

During the Year, the Group acquired another listed equity investment at
HK$2.3 million (including transaction costs), and an unrealised gain on
fair value change of HK$0.4 million was recorded in other comprehensive
expenses. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount was HK$2.7

million.

As at 31 December 2019, the listed equity investments recorded as
financial assets measured at FVTOCI was HK$18,578.7 million and
cumulative unrealised gain on fair value changes of HK$4,980.4 million
was recorded in the financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve. The
unrealised fair value change is a non-cash item and will not affect the cash

flow of the Group.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

The respective securities investments under different categories are
elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through Profit or

Loss

As at 31 December 2018, the carrying amount of the bonds presented as
financial assets measured at FVTPL was HK$6,685.5 million. During the
Year, the bonds portfolio was increased by a net acquisition of HK$1,127.3
million. After adding the fair value gain of HK$1,162.7 million, the bonds
portfolio of the Group became HK$8,975.5 million as at 31 December
2019, representing 18.6% (2018: 13.7%) of total assets, which formed

part of the Group's cash management activities.

As at 31 December 2019, the bonds portfolio comprised of bonds issued
by overseas financial institutions of 40.5% (2018: 53.7%), PRC-based
real estate companies of 55.9% (2018: 41.6%) and other industries
of 3.6% (2018: 4.7%). They are denominated in different currencies
with 97.0% (2018: 96.7%) in US$ and 3.0% (2018: 3.3%) in Pound
Sterling (“GBP"). The bonds denominated in US$ carry at fixed rate range
from 4.750% to 13.750% (2018: 4.750% to 9.375%) per annum of
which notional amount of US$937.0 million (2018: US$911.4 million)
are callable, all bonds denominated in GBP carry at fixed rate range from
5.875% to 7.250% (2018: 5.875% to 7.250%) per annum of notional
amount of GBP24.5 million (2018: GBP22.5 million) are callable. As at
31 December 2019, the bonds portfolio comprised of 34 bonds (2018:
25 bonds); in terms of credit rating, investment grade, non-investment
grade and unrated were 5 bonds, 26 bonds and 3 bonds (2018:
5 bonds, 16 bonds and 4 bonds) respectively. In terms of maturity,
17 bonds (2018: 14 bonds) were contingent convertible bonds issued
by overseas financial institutions which were perpetual with no fixed
tenor. 17 bonds (2018: 11 bonds) issued by issuers other than overseas
financial institutions will be matured between 2020 to 2046 and no
perpetual bond (2018: 8 bonds would be matured between 2021 to
2046 and the remaining 3 bonds were perpetual).
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

The respective securities investments under different categories are
elaborated below: (Cont'd)

Investments and Treasury Products at Fair Value Through Profit or

Loss (Cont'd)

Details and movement of the bonds portfolio at the end of the reporting

period are set out below:

Movement of bonds portfolio

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2018
Purchases

Disposals

Fair value changes

At 31 December 2019

Percentage to total assets

At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

Bond issuers by industry

Overseas financial institutions

PRC-based real estate
Others

Bonds by currency

Uss

GBP
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Coupon rate
(per annum)

REENZR

4.750% to
13.750%
4150E 2
13.750E

5.875% to
1.250%
58715E 2
1250

EERE®

ATHFRAR 2 BHRE L (8)

BRESURRATEZRERVEER (B)

REERAEREE 2 BEREDRIIMT -

Overseas

financial PRC-based
institutions real estate Others Total
BAERBE HEELE Hity BE
HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million HKS$ million
BEET HEET BEBT BEBT
3,588.3 2,780.9 3163 6,685.5
106.1 3,330.6 - 3,436.7
(559.2) (1,6973) (52.9) (2,309.4)
4972 600.9 64.6 1,162.7
3,632.4 5,015.1 328.0 8,975.5
1.5% 10.4% 0.7% 18.6%
7.4% 5.7% 0.6% 13.7%

Carrying amounts
REE

At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

RZZB-NF+t=A=t-H RZE-N\E+-A=+—-H
Percentage Percentage
HK$ million to total HK$ million to total
_ HEE o (k-
BEAT Bk BEET Bt
3,632.4 40.5% 3,588.3 53.7%
5,015.1 55.9% 2,780.9 41.6%
328.0 3.6% 3163 4.7%
8,975.5 100.0% 6,685.5 100.0%
Carrying amounts
wad
At 31 December 2019 At 37 December 2018
R=B-nE+=A=+-8 RZE-NE+-A=t+-H
Percentage Coupon rate B Percentage
HK$ million to total (per annum) HK$ million to total
_ % o B@Es
BEER At RRERE AEAT At
8,710.3 97.0% 4.750% to 6,466.6 96.7%
9.375%
4750EE
9375
265.2 3.0% 5.875% to 2189 3.3%
7.250%
5875EZE
7250
8,975.5 100.0% 6,685.5 100.0%

ANNUAL REPORT 2019




SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

Investment in China Evergrande

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's securities investment in an entity
with a value which exceeds 5% of the Group's total assets is investments
in China Evergrande. The Group's securities investments in China
Evergrande including listed shares and bonds amounted to HK$20,012.0

million or 41.4% of total assets.

The Group held 860,000,000 shares of China Evergrande at a total
consideration (including transaction costs) of HK$13,596.0 million. As
at 31 December 2019, the market value of the Evergrande Shares was
HK$18,576.0 million (2018: HK$20,167.0 million), there was no dividend
income for the Year (2018: net dividend income of HK$1,106.5 million
(after transaction costs)). As at 31 December 2019, the Group also held
5 bonds which were issued by China Evergrande and its indirect wholly-
owned subsidiary, Scenery Journey Limited (collectively “Evergrande

Group”).

Details and the performance of the 5 bonds issued by the Evergrande

Group as at and for the year ended 31 December 2019 are summarised

as follows:
Acquisition Market
Bonds Name of issuer cost price
&% BAIAER WERE [ |
HK$ million %
BEER
Evergrande 10.5% China Evergrande Group 3925 94,6665
R 105% PEEARE
Evergrande 10% China Evergrande Group 3925 95.0290
1R 10% PEEARE
Evergrande 8.75% China Evergrande Group 310.1 86.1250
X 8.75% TEEARE
Scenery Joumey 13% Scenery Journey Limited 4385 102.1017
212 13% SREARAH
Scenery Journey 13.75% Scenery Journey Limited 157 102.3585
113.75% SREARALH
Evergrande Group's bonds RZB-n%¥+t=B=1+-8
at 31 December 2019 EXEEZES 1,549.3

Evergrande 10.5% bond carries fixed coupon rate of 10.5% per annum. It
is denominated in US$ and matures on 11 April 2024. The bond is listed
on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited (“SGX-ST") and

1

rated "B2" by Moody's Investors Service, Inc. ("Moody's").

Evergrande 10% bond carries fixed coupon rate of 10% per annum. It is
denominated in US$ and matures on 11 April 2023. The bond is listed on
the SGX-ST and rated “B2" by Moody's.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENTS (contd)

Investment in China Evergrande (Cont'd)

Evergrande 8.75% bond carries fixed coupon rate of 8.75% per annum.
It is denominated in US$ and matures on 28 June 2025. The bond is
listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange, the SCX-ST and the Stuttgart Stock
Exchange and rated “B3e" by Moody's.

Scenery Journey 13% bond carries fixed coupon rate of 13% per annum.
It is denominated in US$ and matures on 6 November 2022. The bond is
listed on the SGX-ST and rated “B2e” by Moody's.

Scenery Journey 13.75% bond carries fixed coupon rate of 13.75% per
annum. It is denominated in US$ and matures on 6 November 2023. The
bond is listed on the SGX-ST and are rated “B2e" by Moody's.

China Evergrande group is principally engaged in property development,
property investment, property management, new energy vehicle business,
hotel operations, finance business, internet business and health industry
business in the PRC. Its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (stock code: 3333). China Evergrande is one of the leading
real estate developers in the PRC with strong property sale and reasonable
profit margin. The Group believes that dividend payment from the
Evergrande Shares will provide steady income to the Group. Bonds issued
by the Evergrande Group carry attractive coupon interest rates which
the Group believes that it will enhance investment return from treasury

management perspective.
Unlisted Securities Investments

The Group invested in an exempted limited partnership formed under
the Exempted Limited Partnership Law (Revised) of the Cayman lIslands
(which was included in financial assets measured at FVTOCI) and the
carrying amount was HK$408.1 million as at 31 December 2018.
During the Year, the Group has contributed US$2.6 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$20.0 million) and received distribution of US$2.6
million (equivalent to approximately HK$20.0 million), after adding the
fair value gain for the Year of HK$59.8 million (which was recognised in
financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve), the carrying amount was
HK$467.9 million as at 31 December 2019, representing 1.0% (2018:
0.8%) of total assets.
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RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group has established adequate risk management procedures that
enable it to identify, measure, monitor and control various types of risk it
faces. This is supplemented by active management involvement, effective
internal controls and adequate internal audit in the best interests of the

Group.

EQUITY

The number of issued ordinary shares as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
were 1,907,619,079.

DEBT AND GEARING

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's total debt amounted to
HK$13,574.3 million (2018: HK$13,747.7 million), comprised bank and
other borrowings of HK$13,442.3 million (2018: HK$13,747.7 million)
and lease liabilities of HK$132.0 million (2018: nil). Cash and deposits at
banks amounted to HK$565.3 million (2018: HK$714.6 million), pledged
deposits amounted to HK$274.2 million (2018: HK$237.4 million) and
net debt (including lease liabilities) amounted to HK$12,734.8 million
(2018: HK$12,795.7 million). Upon the initial application of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard 16 “Leases” on 1 January 2019 (details are
set out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report), recognition of lease liabilities gave rise to increase in total debt
and net debt of the Group.

Total debt to equity ratio (including lease liabilities) was 40.4% (2018:
40.3%) and net debt to equity ratio (including lease liabilities) was 37.9%
(2018: 37.5%), which are expressed as a percentage of total debt, and
net debt, respectively, over the total equity of HK$33,590.4 million (2018:
HK$34,143.6 million).

If the securities investments and treasury products of HK$27,554.2 million
(2018: HK$26,852.5 million) are included, there would be a net cash
position of HK$14,819.4 million (2018: HK$14,056.8 million).
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DEBT AND GEARING (contd)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's bank and other borrowings of
HK$13,442.3 million, 68.7%, 16.5% and 14.8% were repayable within
1 year, 1 to 2 years and 2 to 5 years respectively. Of which the Group's
bank and other borrowings were denominated in HK$ (50.3%), GBP
(30.3%) and US$ (19.4%) before entering the cross currency swap. HK$,
GBP and US$ securities investments were hedged by HK$, GBP and US$
borrowings. During the Year, the Group has entered into short term US$/
HK$ cross currency swap to enhance interest payable on borrowing, and
as at 31 December 2019, notional amount of approximately US$158.1
million was outstanding. The Group's bank borrowings were carried at
interest rates calculated with reference to cost of funds, Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR") or London Interbank Offered Rate; other
borrowings were carried at interest rates calculated with reference to cost
of funds or HIBOR. As at 31 December 2019, all the Group's borrowings
were on floating rate basis. Except as disclosed, no hedging for interest

rate is subsisted at the end of the reporting period.
PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had pledged the following assets

with their respective carrying amounts:

(a) The Group's investment properties of HK$12,248.6 million (2018:
HK$12,770.6 million) and bank deposits of HK$255.8 million
(2018: HK$208.6 million) were pledged to the banks to secure

general banking and loan facilities granted to the Group.

(b) The Group's bonds and listed equity investments with carrying
amounts of HK$27,554.2 million (2018: HK$25,445.5 million) and
cash deposits of HK$18.4 million (2018: HK$28.8 million) were
pledged to the financial institutions to secure margin and securities
facilities granted to the Group in respect of securities transactions, of
which HK$7,128.4 million (2018: HK$7,330.5 million) was utilised

as at 31 December 2019 as borrowings due within one year.

(c) Interests in certain subsidiaries of the Company have been pledged
as part of the security to secure certain bank borrowings granted to

the Group.

In addition, the Group had subordinated and assigned its advance to a
joint venture of HK$158.8 million to a bank to secure a banking facility

granted to the joint venture as at 31 December 2019.
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FINANCIAL AND INTEREST INCOME/
EXPENSES

Interest income was included in revenue and investment income (2018:
revenue, investment income and other income). Interest income for the
Year was HK$724.9 million, representing an increase of 7.7% over last
year of HK$673.3 million, mainly due to increase in bond interest income

during the Year.

Finance costs included interest expenses on bank and other borrowings
and lease liabilities (2018: interest expenses on bank and other
borrowings); exchange difference on translation of foreign currency
borrowings; and arrangement fee and facility and commitment fee
expenses. Interest expenses (excluding interest expenses on lease
liabilities) for the Year amounted to HK$375.8 million, representing an
increase of 9.8% over last year of HK$342.4 million and the increase was
mainly due to the increase in interest rates during the Year. The average
interest rate over the year under review was 2.67% (2018: 2.28%),
which was expressed as a percentage of total interest paid (excluding
interest on lease liabilities) over the average total interest-bearing

borrowings.

REMUNERATION POLICIES, SHARE OPTION
SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD SCHEME

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed a total of 481 staff (2018:
476 staff) including about 235 staff (2018: 237 staff) employed under
the estate management company in Hong Kong and 1 staff (2018: nil) in
the United Kingdom.

Employees were remunerated on the basis of their performance,
experience and prevailing industry practice. Remuneration packages
comprised salary and year-end discretionary bonus based on market
conditions and individual performance. The executive directors of the
Company continued to review employees’ contributions and to provide
them with necessary incentives and flexibility for their better commitment

and performance. No share option scheme was adopted during the Year.

FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW Bf #& % %% 5] &

MBERIMEWA BEX

WARKBBEBRA(ZZE-NF WA -RERAR
HAW )G BEMBRA - RFEZHBRAR
724,900,000/ 7T * #2 % 9 2 673,300,000/% 7T 3 HN
77% EE2HRAFEESN S WAL MATER -

MHERBEERITEEREMEEUNREEREY
FERZ (ZE-—NF RITEERAMEEZFE
Fx) INEEEMEAZEREZR : UARLHER
HEBERARERRAY AFEZMERXZ (TEE
HEAEZFBFY) A375800,000%8 T A F
2.342,400,00078 7T 119.8% * %38 I & Z AR A A
FEMEXLEAMK-REBFANZFHFER267
B (ZZ—N\F:228E) AR EZNE2%E (T8
FHEABZFEIRUNFHEFTEBERERLZ
Baothe

MEBR BREFEIRKRGER
ar &

RZEBE-NFE+ZA=+—8 rEEHREES48]
A(ZZE—NF 476 \) RIEZEREAWEEE
rAElZEE i’7235}\(:ﬁ—)\ir%ﬂx)tx&mé
HEZEBIA(ZE-NF &)

BEHS HRBEERE KRLBAXAEMNEE -
MeeRHFeURBTALRBAARREE 2 FRE
BRRA-ARRZHBTEERERNEEZARMR
ARFRUAT 2 EBREE FEFRATER
BEERR - AFEWERABAET S

“E-NEFFHR FEAEXEE

41



42

FINANCIAL OPERATION REVIEW Bf #& % %% [ E&

REMUNERATION POLICIES, SHARE OPTION
SCHEME AND SHARE AWARD SCHEME (contd)

The Company had adopted a share award scheme (“Share Award
Scheme") in 2009 which was valid and effective until 13 January 2019
(“Expiry"). The Share Award Scheme was to recognise and reward
certain employees for their contributions to the Group and to give long-
term incentives for retaining them for the continued operations and
development of the Group. Details were set out in the paragraph headed
“Share Award Scheme” in the section headed "Directors’ Report” of this
annual report. No share was granted under the Share Award Scheme
during the period from 1 January 2019 to the Expiry and during the life of
the Share Award Scheme.

UNITED KINGDOM AND MAINLAND CHINA

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's investment properties in the
United Kingdom with carrying amount of GBP788.2 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$8,051.1 million) (2018: GBP855.4 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$8,501.5 million)) incurred a net loss of HK$813.0
million (2018: HK$21.4 million) to the Group for the Year, the loss mainly
included in gross profit, fair value changes on investment properties,
finance costs, taxation and impairment loss of goodwill. GBP exchange
gain of foreign operations included in other comprehensive expenses
for the Year amounted to HK$114.3 million (2018: exchange loss of
HK$259.5 million). As at 31 December 2019, the Group's net investment
in the United Kingdom amounted to HK$4,129.6 million (2018
HK$4,826.2 million) representing 12.3% (2018: 14.1%) of the Group's
total equity.

Loss incurred by the Group's investment in Mainland China (mainly
included in investment income, loss on dissolution of subsidiaries, share
of results of investments accounted for using the equity method and
taxation) for the Year amounted to HK$24.5 million (2018: profit of
HK$69.0 million mainly included in other income, share of results of
investments accounted for using the equity method and taxation). RMB
exchange loss of foreign operations included in other comprehensive
expenses (including share of investments accounted for using the
equity method) for the Year amounted to HK$11.6 million (2018:
HK$25.4 million). The Group's net investment in Mainland China as at
31 December 2019 amounted to HK$536.6 million (2018: HK$574.1
million) representing 1.6% (2018: 1.7%) of the Group's total equity.
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PROPERTY VALUATION

Property valuations in respect of the Group's investment properties in
Hong Kong and Mainland China as at 31 December 2019 and 2018
were carried out by B.l. Appraisals, independent qualified professional
valuer. For the investment properties in the United Kingdom, the property
valuations as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were carried out by Peak
Vision Appraisals, another independent qualified professional valuer. Their
valuations were based on investment method and/or direct comparison
method as the valuation methodologies and were used in preparing 2019

final results.

The Group's investment properties were valued at HK$14,759.5 million
(2018: HK$15,280.8 million), a decrease of 4.8% over 2018 after
adjusted for the additions and exchange adjustments of investment
properties during the Year. The decrease in fair value of HK$742.7 million
was recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
for the Year. The Group also shared an increase in fair value of investment
properties held by associates and a joint venture of HK$163.5 million in

total for the Year.

The decrease in fair value of HK$742.7 million was mainly derived from
the decrease in fair value of River Court and 61-67 Oxford Street and 11-
14 Soho Street located in the United Kingdom. The fair value change is a

non-cash item and will not affect the cash flow of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEELBRES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The board of directors (the “Directors” or the “Board”) and management
of the Company (together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) are
committed to principles of good corporate governance so as to safeguard

the interests of shareholders and enhance value to the shareholders.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2019 (the "Year”), the
Company had applied the principles and complied with substantial
code provisions (the “Code Provisions”) and certain recommended best
practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code")
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the
“Listing Rules”).

THE BOARD

Board Composition

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors (“ED(s)"), two
Non-executive Directors ("NED(s)") and three Independent Non-executive
Directors (“INED(s)"), with INEDs representing one-third of the Board.
Names of each member of the Board are set out in this Corporate

Governance Report.

During the Year, Mr. Lau, Ming-wai acted as the Chairman of the Board
(the “Chairman”) and Ms. Chan, Sze-wan acted as the Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ"). The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated

and their respective roles and responsibilities were set out in writing.

“List of Directors and their Role and Function” has been maintained at
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Directors’
biographies and the relationship among the Board members, if any, are
set out in the Profiles of Directors of this annual report and available on
the Company's website. Save as disclosed in such profiles, there is no
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship among

the Directors.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Responsibilities of Directors

The NEDs and INEDs with diversified expertise, skills and experience play
an important role on formulating strategy and ensuring that the Board
maintains high standards of corporate governance as well as taking the
lead where potential conflict of interests arises. The Board has received
from each INED a written annual confirmation of his/her independence
and satisfied that the independence of INEDs up to the date of this

annual report is in accordance with the Listing Rules.

On monthly basis, senior management provides the Directors with
operational and financial reports of the Group's performance, position and
prospects. All Directors are kept informed of and duly briefed of major
changes and information that may affect the Group's businesses in a

timely manner.

Directors could have recourse to seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company's expense and are encouraged
to access and consult with the Company's senior management or the

company secretary (the “Company Secretary”) independently.
Retirement by Rotation and Specific Term of Office

The Company's Bye-laws provides that no Director (save for the executive
chairman and any managing director) shall hold office for a continuous
period in excess of three years, or past the third annual general meeting,
following the Directors’ appointment or re-election, whichever is longer,
without submitting himself/herself for re-election by the shareholders at
the annual general meetings. Accordingly, Directors shall retire by rotation
at least once every three years and a specific term of office has been
fixed for appointment of Directors. During the Year, there was no executive

chairman or managing director in the Board.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Board Meetings

The Board met regularly throughout the Year to discuss the overall
strategy, the operational and financial performance of the Group. Four
regular Board meetings were held during the Year. Advance notices of not
less than fourteen days were served upon each Director for regular Board
meetings. All accompanying Board papers were sent to the Directors in a
timely manner and at least three days before the meetings (or such other
period as agreed). Adequate explanation and information were given to
the Directors by the management to facilitate the Directors in decision-
making. Each Director has to declare his/her interest and abstain from
voting on any Board resolution in which he/she or any of his/her associate
has a material interest in accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company

and the Listing Rules.

The agenda of each Board meeting is set by the Chairman in consultation
with members of the Board such that they are given an opportunity to
include agenda items. Draft and executed Board minutes were sent in
good time to all Directors for their comments and records. Minutes of the
Board meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company

Secretary.
Board and Management Functions

The functions reserved to the Board are basically provided in the Bye-
laws of the Company and the Board from time to time delegates certain
functions to senior management whenever required. In short, the Board
has reserved for its decision on matters relating to the Group's strategy,
major acquisitions and disposals, major capital expenditure, annual and
interim results, Directors’ appointment and other significant financial and

operational issues.

On top of daily business operation, senior management is responsible for
the preparation of annual and interim consolidated financial statements
for the Board's approval, execution of business strategies and initiatives
adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate system of internal
control and sound risk management practices and is required to report to
the Board and obtain its prior approval on important matters at all times.
Notwithstanding the delegation, the Directors acknowledge that it is the
responsibility of the Board for preparing the financial statements, which

give a true and fair view of the financial results of the Group.
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THE BOARD (contd)

Directors’ Training and Support

The Company encourages its Directors to possess up-to-date knowledge
in order to discharge their duties. Information regarding major changes
in Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Listing Rules as well as

other laws/rules/regulations had been provided to the Directors.

During the Year, the Company has arranged Directors’ training regarding
“INEDs’ Role in Corporate Governance”. Meanwhile, Directors had
provided their record of trainings to the Company. The Board considered
the trainings attended by the Directors are sufficient to discharge their
duties. A summary of the trainings attended by the Directors during the

Year is as follows:—
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Executive Directors HITES
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan BREFRE et b b = €
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Ms. Chan, Lok-wan BREmmE T b b = c
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai MAE T E ab&c ab&c a&ec c
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai Bl pegies b b - c
(Chairman) (£/)
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai BEELL b b - c
Independent Non-executive Directors BV FHTES
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Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping EENMLL b&c ba&c c c
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun BEEREE a,b&c ab&c c c
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee
and Nomination Committee (collectively, the “Board Committees”) with
clear written terms of reference which are of no less exacting terms than
those set out in the CG Code. Details of the respective committee’s terms
of reference are available at the Company's and the Stock Exchange's
websites. All the INEDs, i.e. Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-
ping and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun are members of the Board Committees with
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai acts as chairman of the Audit Committee and the
Remuneration Committee while Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping acts as chairman
of the Nomination Committee. The members of Audit Committee
possess appropriate professional qualifications, accounting or related
financial management expertise, which is higher than the Listing Rules’

requirement.

All accompanying meeting papers were sent to the members in a timely
manner and at least three days before the meetings (or such other period
as agreed). Draft and executed minutes of the meetings were sent in
good time to all members for their comments and records. Minutes of
the meetings recorded in sufficient details were kept by the Company
Secretary. Professional advice and sufficient resources would be given
whenever necessary to allow the Board Committees to discharge their

duties.

Audit Committee

Role and Function

The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Group's corporate
governance, financial reporting, risk management and internal control. It

plays an advisory role and makes relevant recommendations to the Board.

Meetings

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the Year, with the
presence of the representative(s) of the Group's internal audit department
(the “Internal Audit Department”) in those meetings involving discussion
on internal audit reports prepared by Internal Audit Department. Senior
management was co-opted to join the meetings of the Audit Committee
to explain the financial and business conditions of the Group to the

committee members from time to time.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019

EEgBETZES

EXeNLTEREZES FMEER
& (% ﬁéﬂé%@ﬁ é% ) &EB

B2k %4#ﬁﬂ§$ Wﬁl&%i BRI
TEBHERE HREFEHETLZEEKE  HAF
REEEEHEBRZEZEGRFMEZES IR M
BEYZITHERZRZBEEEIR -ERZEEKE
BABEENEEER S ARMBEESEXEN
BB EMRAUZERBR

MERBSEXHHERGRRITARI=A (X
Hih i 2 i) MR R 28K E - FHRE TR
RERTERFXREERNEUHBSFRHERLLE

B RAAMEEERFHANSES 2GR &
FERTZEENE Eﬁ%?ﬁ{/\ﬂ%%ﬁ&ﬁiﬁ
TR LAEEBITRE -

EREEE

A K Ee

EZZECAREN BRI ASEZCEER W
BER RREELRANTEZE BREEQREERER
Ae TMEZFgREERRER -

S

ERZEERAFERTNRGH ~AEEALE
ZE ([ABEZB) 2REITBELEE@IHAN
HERNEFE s ALEZBRE 2 E8Z S RERE
MR ESLEERZEeeH NEEEKER
BAREE 2 B REBARR -



BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)

Works Performed

The works performed by the Audit Committee in the Year are summarised

below:—
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reviewed the Group's final and interim results and draft
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2018 and for the six months ended 30 June 2019 respectively
before recommending them to the Board for approval, with the
presence of the Company's external auditors (the “Independent

Auditors”) in the meeting reviewing final results;

reviewed the overall performance including the performance of

investment properties and development properties of the Group;

reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and the requirements of the Listing Rules and statutory

compliance;

recommended to the Board the re-appointment of the Independent

Auditors for shareholders' approval;

reviewed the Group's internal control, risk management, financial

reporting and auditing matters;

reviewed and discussed significant audit findings in a meeting with

the presence of Independent Auditors;

prepared and submitted to the Board an audit committee report
detailing the works performed by the Audit Committee during 2018,
presented its findings and made recommendations to the Board for

consideration;

carried out annual review on the continuing connected transactions

of the Group;

reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff of the Group's accounting, financial reporting and internal

audit functions, and their training programmes and budget;
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)

Works Performed (Cont'd)

(10) discussed with Independent Auditors the nature and scope of the
annual audit and reporting obligations of the Independent Auditors

for the Year; reviewed and approved the terms of engagement

letters, and fees for audit and non-audit services for the Year;

(11) reviewed the arrangement for employees to raise concerns about

possible improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other

related matters;

(12) reviewed and discussed internal audit reports prepared by Internal

Audit Department;

(13) considered and approved the internal audit plan for the year 2020;

(14) reviewed the effectiveness of internal audit function;

(15) reviewed the Company's policies and practices on corporate

governance, compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the

Corporate Governance Report;

(16) reviewed the Company's policies and practices on compliance

with legal and regulatory requirements and the compliance of such

policies and practices;

(17) reviewed the code of conduct for the Directors and the compliance

of such code;

(18) reviewed the code of practice for employees;

(19) reviewed the sufficiency of training and continuous professional

development for the Directors and senior executives;

(20) reviewed the progress of risk management;

(21) reviewed the effectiveness and adequacy of risk management and

internal control systems; and

(22) reviewed the impact of adoption of new Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed (Cont'd)

In March 2020, the Audit Committee reviewed (i) the Group's final results
and draft audited consolidated financial statements for the Year; (ii) the
Company's compliance with the CG Code during the Year and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report; (iii) the sufficiency of training and
continuous professional development for Directors and senior executives
for the Year; (iv) the effectiveness and adequacy of risk management
and internal control systems for the Year; and (v) the effectiveness of
internal audit function of the Group for the Year. The Audit Committee also
made recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring
Independent Auditors for shareholders' approval at the forthcoming

annual general meeting (the “2020 AGM").
Independent Auditors

In order to enhance independent reporting by Independent Auditors, the
engagement director of the Independent Auditors is subject to periodical
rotation, and the nature and ratio of annual fees payable to Independent
Auditors for non-audit services and for audit services are subject to
scrutiny by the Audit Committee. A policy of non-audit services from
Independent Auditors was established. The Audit Committee considers
whether there is clear efficiency and value-added benefit to the Company
from that work being undertaken by the Independent Auditors; whether
there is adverse effect on the independence of their audit work or the
perception of such independence; the nature of the non-audit services
envisaged to be provided by the Independent Auditors; and the related
fee levels individually and in aggregate relative to the audit fees. In
addition, a policy restricting the employment of employees or former
employees of Independent Auditors as senior executives or financial

positions with the Group has also been in place.

During the Year, the Independent Auditors had been engaged in providing
non-audit services in relation to annual review of continuing connected
transactions at a fee of HK$100,000. The audit fees of the Independent
Auditors for auditing the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the Year was HK$2,015,000. The relevant engagement letters had
been reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Audit Committee (Cont'd)
Independent Auditors (Cont'd)

Prior to the commencement of the audit of accounts of the Group, the
Audit Committee had reviewed the Independent Auditors’ independence
and objectivity as required under the Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, reviewed the terms of their engagement as well as the

nature and scope of the audit and reporting obligations.

The Audit Committee was satisfied with the findings of their review of the
engagement process, effectiveness, independence and objectivity of the

Independent Auditors.
Remuneration Committee
Role and Function

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for reviewing the
remuneration policies for all Directors and senior executives. The
Remuneration Committee is also responsible to review regularly and
make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration package of
individual EDs and senior executives as well as the remuneration of NEDs.
It would consult the Chairman or the CEO on the remuneration proposals

whenever it thinks fit.

The objective of remunerating the Directors and senior executives of the
Company is to ensure that there is an appropriate level of remuneration
to attract and retain experienced businessmen or professionals of high
calibre to act as the Directors and senior executives to oversee the
Company's businesses and development.

Meetings

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the Year.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Remuneration Committee (Cont'd)
Works Performed

The works performed by the Remuneration Committee in the Year are

summarised below:—
(1) assessed the performance of EDs;

(2) reviewed and recommended to the Board the EDs' and senior

executives' remuneration packages for the Year;
(3) noted the annual discretionary bonus to employees;

(4) recommended to the Board to fix the Directors’ fee of NEDs for the

Year; and

(5) reviewed and recommended to the Board the ED's and
senior executives' remuneration packages for the year ending
31 December 2020, including the adjustment of ED's monthly
salary of (i) Ms. Chan, Lok-wan to HK$63,000 and (ii) Mr. Lam,
Kwong-wai to HK$195,100 and such adjustment has approved by
the Board with reference to their duties and responsibilities in the

Group as well as the prevailing market conditions.
Remuneration Policy for EDs

The primary goal of the remuneration policy on EDs' remuneration
package is to enable the Company to retain and motivate EDs by linking
their reward with performance as measured against corporate objectives.
In determining guidelines for each reward element, the Company refers to

remuneration surveys on companies operating in similar businesses.
Remuneration Policy for NEDs and INEDs

The Directors' fees of NEDs and INEDs are subject to annual assessment
with reference to their duties and responsibilities and the prevailing market
conditions as appropriate. Reimbursement is allowed for out-of-pocket

expenses incurred in connection with performance of their duties.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee

Role and Function

The role of the Nomination Committee is to lead the process and make
recommendations for appointments to the Board, whether as additional
appointment or to fill up the casual vacancy of directorship as and when
they arise, in the light of challenges and opportunities facing the Company,
as well as business development and requirements of the Company.
Meeting

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year.

Works Performed

The works performed by the Nomination Committee in the Year are

summarised below:—

(1) reviewed the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;

and

(2) recommended to the Board on the re-appointment of Directors for

shareholders" approval.
After the Year end, the Nomination Committee made recommendation

to the Board on the re-appointment of retiring Directors for shareholders'
approval at the 2020 AGM.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (contd)

Nomination Committee (Cont'd)
Nomination Policy, Procedures, Process and Criteria

The Nomination Committee reviews the structure, size, composition
and diversity (including the evaluation of skills, knowledge, professional
experience, cultural and educational background, gender and age of the
Board members and assessment on the independence of the INEDs) of
the Board at least annually. It is responsible for making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company's
corporate strategy and succession planning for the Directors from time
to time and selecting suitable and qualified individuals to become Board
members. In evaluating and selecting candidate(s) for directorship,
the Nomination Committee considers the character and integrity; skills
and expertise; professional and educational background; potential time
commitment for the board and/or committee responsibilities; and
the elements of the Board Diversity Policy as stated below etc. The
Nomination Committee makes recommendation to the Board to appoint
the appropriate person among the candidates nominated for directorship.
The Board appoints suitable candidate(s) in accordance with the Bye-laws

of the Company and the Listing Rules.
Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises and embraces the benefit of having a diverse
board, and sees increasing diversity at board level as an essential
element in maintaining a competitive advantage and achieving long-term
sustainable growth for the Group. A board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) has been adopted since September 2013. Elements of
the Board Diversity Policy include gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills and knowledge of Directors.
The said elements have substantially been included in the current Board

composition.
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INVESTMENT COMMITTEE

Investment Committee had been established since 15 April 2014,
comprising Ms. Chan, Sze-wan as chairman, Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai as chief
investment officer, Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai and Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun as members
with written terms of reference in place. It is empowered to manage the
investment business of the Group (other than real estate investment) and
to make recommendations and provide advice to the Board in relation to

investment or potential investment.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS

Attendance record of each of the Board members is as follows:—

REZESE

REZEGE T NFEATHBKY AR
BATHEIER MEFEERERERE RERE
FER SRR LR B AKX B E R E T
BEHlE - REZEGRRREEAKRBEZRER
(FHERERIN) URAEAHEREREERER
BREFEREZELER -

EEHETE

BREZGNBZHFELERIIMT : —

Attendance Record of Directors == i 37 &

No. of meetings attended/held in 2019 (Percentage of attendance in total) R =F— hEHE /ETEEHE (AHER)

Regular Audit  Remuneration Nomination Investment Annual
Board Committee Committee = Committee =~ Committee General
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
EHEE® BNKZEE® HMZEEe REZEE® REZEE® RREF
Name of Directors EZpg = = = = = V-1
Executive Directors HTES
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan (CEO) BREFBA T (770485) 4/4(100%) N/ATER  NATER  NATEAR  4/4(100%) 1/1 (100%)
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan BmelBLt 4/4 (1000) NATER NATER NATER NATER  1/1(100%)
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan CES . 3/4(75%)  N/ARER  NATEAR  NATEA  NATER  Absent HfE
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai MHE K& 4/4 (100%) N/ATEA  NATEB  NATER  4/4 (100%) 1/1 (100%)
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman) BRBEE(ZE) 3/4(75%) NATER  NATER NATER NATERB  Absent HE
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai HES e 4/4 (100%) N/ATEA  NATEB NATER NATER 1/1(100%)
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFH{TES
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai FREI(& 55 4 4/4 (100%)  4/4 (100%)  3/3 (100%) 1/1(100%)  4/4 (100%) 1/1 (100%)
Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping BREN LT 4/4 (100%)  4/4 (100%) 3/3 (100%) 1/1(100%) N/A @A 1/1 (100%)
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun BEELE 4/4 (100%)  4/4 (100%)  3/3 (1000%) 1/1 (100%)  4/4 (100%) 1/1 (100%)

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms without deviation from the required
standard set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules (the
“Model Code"). All Directors, after specific enquiries by the Company,
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out in

the Model Code and the said code of conduct during the Year.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
(Cont'd)

The Company has also adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by relevant employees on terms no less exacting than the
required standard set out in the Model Code. All the relevant employees
(the "Relevant Employees”) who, because of office or employment, are
likely to be in possession of unpublished inside information in relation
to the Group's securities had been requested to follow such code when
dealing in the securities of the Company. All Relevant Employees, after
specific enquiries by the Company, confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard set out in the said code during the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to ensure that the Group
maintains an effective risk management and internal control systems
and review of their effectiveness through the Audit Committee at least
annually. The Board oversees the Company's senior management in
the design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems and acknowledges that such systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss. Internal Audit
Department is responsible for reviewing relevant financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions, and reporting their

findings and advice to the Audit Committee.

Internal Audit

Internal Audit Department reports directly to the Audit Committee and is

independent of the Company’'s management, with key tasks to:—

(1) assess and monitor internal controls of the Group with unrestricted
direct access right to any levels of management whenever it

considered necessary;

2) conduct comprehensive internal audits of the practices and
P P
procedures, income and expenditures, and internal control of all

business units of the Group on a regular basis; and

(3) carry out special reviews and investigations on areas of concern

identified by the management for corrective actions.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont'd)

Internal Audit (Cont'd)

Internal Audit Department produces an annual internal audit plan
based on a risk assessment methodology for the Audit Committee’s
approval. Internal audits are carried out on a regular basis according to
the approved plan. Internal audit reports summarising audit findings
and recommendations are prepared from time to time for the Audit
Committee's review and discussion. Management is responsible for
ensuring that control weaknesses highlighted in internal audits are rectified
within a reasonable period. Internal Audit Department would monitor the

proper implementation of corrective measures.

During the Year, Internal Audit Department had conducted six internal
audits, relevant reports had been submitted to the Audit Committee for
consideration. The Audit Committee was satisfied with the scope and
quality of works done, and the extent and frequency of communication
of internal audit reports by the Internal Audit Department. The Audit
Committee was also satisfied with the effectiveness of the internal audit

function of the Group.

Risk Management

Risk Management Framework

The Company established an Enterprise Risk Management Framework
that includes a risk management policy and procedures, as well as
a designated risk management officer who helps to deploy the risk

management process across the business.

Risk Management Process

Our risk management process includes risk identification, risk assessment
and prioritisation, risk owner appointment, risk treatment and upward
reporting and monitoring of identified risks to the Audit Committee. A
corporate risk register has been established to track and document the
identified risks, risk owners, mitigating actions and control measures, and

facilitates continuous update of risk treatments.

Half-yearly reviews were conducted to follow up on the significant risks
and related actions as documented in the corporate risk register, and the
results reported to the Audit Committee. The year end risk management
assessment result was reported to the Board through the Audit
Committee. The Company will continue to enhance and standardize our

approach to manage risks.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
(Cont'd)

Risk Management (Cont'd)

Risk Management Process (Cont'd)

Subsequent to the Year, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
effectiveness and adequacy of risk management system for the Year and
the Board is satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of the risk
management system of the Group and considered that the Company had
complied with the Code Provisions in respect of risk management during
the Year.

Internal Control

Annual Review

Based on the annual assessment made by the Independent Auditors and
the works done by Internal Audit Department, the Audit Committee and
the Board are satisfied with the effectiveness and adequacy of the system

of internal control of the Group and concluded that:—

(1) the Company had complied with the Code Provisions in respect of

internal control during the Year;

(2) aframework of prudent and effective controls had been established

to identify, evaluate and manage the risks;

(3) internal control and accounting systems of the Group were effective

and adequate;

(4) significant risks and control failings or weaknesses (if any) that
may influence the Group and the changes since last annual review
had been identified, evaluated and managed through the ongoing

monitoring process;

(5) material transactions were executed with the management'’s

authorisation;

(6) the Company's processes for financial reporting and Listing Rules

compliance were effective; and

(7) the resources, qualifications and experience of staff of the Group's
accounting, financial reporting and internal audit functions, and their

training programmes and budget were adequate.
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COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company acknowledges that general meetings are good
communication channel with shareholders that the Directors and the
chairmen of the Board Committees are encouraged to attend and answer
questions from shareholders at general meetings. The chairmen of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee as well as the Independent Auditors had attended the annual
general meeting of the Company held on 24 May 2019 (“2019 ACM") to

answer questions from shareholders.

At the commencement of each general meeting, the chairman of the
meeting had explained the procedures for conducting a poll to the
shareholders and the shareholders were allowed to raise any question
concerning the poll procedures. At each of the meetings, separate
resolutions were proposed by the chairman of the meeting and put
forward to the shareholders for poll voting. Details of poll results are

available at the Company's website (www.chineseestates.com).

As a channel to promote effective communication, the Company
maintains a corporate website (www.chineseestates.com) to disseminate

the Group's information.

The Company regulates the handling and dissemination of inside
information as set out in the corporate communications manual to
ensure inside information remains confidential until the disclosure of
such information is appropriately approved, and the dissemination of
such information is efficiently and consistently made. Such manual also
provides guidance for coordinating the disclosure of material information
to investors, analysts and media, identifies who could speak on the
Company's behalf, and outlines the responsibility for communication with

various stakeholder groups.
A shareholders’ communication policy for enhancement of the corporate

governance had been established and the Board had reviewed the

shareholders’ communication policy during the Year.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has approved and adopted a dividend policy for the Company
on 5 March 2019 that aims to set out the principles and guidelines of the
Company in relation to the declaration, recommendation and payment of
dividends to its shareholders (the “Dividend Policy").

Under the Dividend Policy, the Company does not have any pre-
determined dividend payout ratio. Distribution of dividends should be
in the interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. When
considering dividend declaration or recommendation, the Board shall take

into account the following factors:—

(1) business condition and strategy of the Group;

(2) capital requirement for the Group's existing/potential project or

investment;

(3) earnings, financial and cash flow position and distributable reserves

of the Company and the Group; and

(4) other factors that the Board deems relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends is subject to the provisions of
the Bye-laws of the Company, the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as
amended from time to time) and any other applicable laws, rules and

regulations.

The Company's dividend distribution record in the past may not be used
as a reference or basis to determine the level of dividends that may be

declared or paid by the Company in future.

The Board has the sole discretion to recommend or not to recommend
final dividends to the shareholders for approval; and to declare or not to
declare any other dividends, including but not limited to interim and/or
special dividends, after taking into consideration the factors as stated in
(1) to (4) above.

The Dividend Policy may be updated, amended, modified and/or
cancelled from time to time as the Board may think fit and necessary.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convene a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the right
of voting at general meetings of the Company can at all times submit
a signed written requisition, specifying the purpose, to the Board or the
Company Secretary to request the convening of a special general meeting
("SGM") and deposit the requisition at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda, the

addresses are disclosed in “Corporate Information” of this annual report.

If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene the SGM, the requisitionist(s), or any of them representing more
than one half of the total voting rights of all of them, may convene a SGM,
but any SGM so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three

months from twenty-one days of the deposit.
Put Forward the Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting

Shareholder(s) representing not less than one-twentieth of the total voting
rights of all shareholders having a right to vote at the general meeting at
the date of the requisition or shareholders not less than 100 in total can
submit a written requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary to

propose a resolution at the general meeting (the "Written Requisition”).

The Written Requisition must be accompanied by (i) the proposed
resolution; and (ii) a statement of not more than 1,000 words with
respect to the matter referred to in the proposed resolution or the
business to be dealt with at the general meeting. The Written Requisition
must contain the signatures of all the requisitionist(s). The Written
Requisition must be deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda, the
addresses are disclosed in “Corporate Information” of this annual report,
not less than six weeks before the general meeting in the case of a
requisition requiring notice of a resolution and not less than one week

before the general meeting in the case of any other requisition.
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SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS (contd)

Put Forward the Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting (Cont'd)

Provided that if, after a copy of the Written Requisition requiring notice of
a resolution has been deposited at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong or the registered office of the Company in Bermuda, an
annual general meeting is called for a date which is six weeks or less after
the copy has been deposited, the copy though not deposited within the
time required shall be deemed to have been properly deposited for the

purposes thereof.

The shareholders concerned must deposit a sum of money reasonably
sufficient to meet the Company’s expenses in serving the notice of the
resolution and circulating the statement given by the requisitionists to all
shareholders in accordance with the requirements under the applicable

laws and rules.

Propose a Candidate for Election as a Director at an Annual

General Meeting

Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a
Director had been established and published at the Company's website

(www.chineseestates.com).
Shareholders’ enquiries

Shareholders can raise their enquiries to the Board or the Company
Secretary in writing by sending such written enquiries to the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong at the address disclosed
in "Corporate Information” of this annual report or by email at
investor.relations@chineseestates.com. Shareholders also have right to

raise questions at general meetings.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no change in the Company's constitutional

documents.
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DEVIATIONS FROM CODE PROVISIONS

Non-executive Directors Attending General Meeting

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai, a NED, was unable to attend the 2019 ACM as he had

business engagement.

Chairman Attending Annual General Meeting

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai, the Chairman, was unable to attend the 2019 AGM
as he had business engagement. Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai, the chairman of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee, was elected as
the chairman of the 2019 AGM to ensure effective communication with
shareholders of the Company at the 2019 AGM. The chairman of the
Nomination Committee, Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping had also attended the
2019 AGM.

CONCLUSION

The Company believes that corporate governance principles and practices
are essential to the business communities. Ongoing effort will be put
to review its corporate governance practices from time to time so as
to accommodate the changing circumstances. The Company will strive
to maintain and strengthen the standard and quality of its corporate

governance.
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The directors of the Company (the “Directors” or the “Board") are pleased
to present to the shareholders their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2019 (the "Year").

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the Year, the Company acted as an investment holding company
and its subsidiaries were principally engaged in property investment
and development, brokerage, securities investment, money lending and

cosmetics distribution and trading.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year, discussion on
the Group's future business development and description of possible
risks and uncertainties that the Group may be facing can be found in the
Chairman’s Statement of this annual report. Furthermore, the financial
risk management objectives and policies of the Group can be found in
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements. Particulars of important
events affecting the Group that have occurred since the end of the Year
are contained in the Chairman’s Statement of this annual report. An
analysis of the Group's performance during the Year using financial key
performance indicators is provided in the Financial Operation Review of
this annual report. Discussions on the Group's environmental policies and
performance, relationships with its key stakeholders, and compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Group are provided/will be provided in the Chairman’s Statement, the
Corporate Governance Report, the Directors’ Report of this annual report
and/or the 2019 Environmental, Social and Governance Report to be
available on the websites of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

(the “Stock Exchange") and the Company respectively.

OPERATING SEGMENTS INFORMATION

The Group's revenue and contribution to profit for the Year from
operations analysed by principal activities are set out in Notes 7 and 8 to

the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURE

Particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries, associates and joint
venture as at 31 December 2019 are set out in Notes 48 and 49 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated

statement of comprehensive income on pages 97 to 98.

During the Year, the Board had declared and paid an interim dividend of
HK1 cent per share (payment date: 27 August 2019) (2018: HK1 cent

per share).

The Board resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK1

cent per share (2018: HK10 cents per share) for the Year.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five years is set out on pages 258 to 259.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES AND PROPERTY
DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS

Details of the principal properties and property development rights of the
Group as at 31 December 2019 are set out on pages 260 to 264.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in property, plant and equipment during the Year are set out

in Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the Year, the Group did not acquire or dispose of any investment

properties (2018: nil).

Other movements in investment properties during the Year are set out in

Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$116,000 (2018: HK$173,000).
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GROUP BORROWINGS AND INTEREST
CAPITALISED

Details of secured bank borrowings and other borrowings repayable within
one year or on demand and long-term secured bank borrowings are

shown in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

During the Year, no interest capitalised (2018: nil) by the Group.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the Year are set out on
pages 102 to 106.

As at 31 December 2019, the Company's reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), amounted of approximately HK$16,422,734,000
(2018: HK$16,631,893,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Movement in the share capital of the Company during the Year is set out

in Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

No pre-emptive rights exist under the laws of Bermuda, being the

jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had

purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share award scheme adopted on 14 January 2009 (valid and
effective until 13 January 2019), the Company has not entered into any

equity-linked agreement for the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of

the Company's businesses were entered into or existed during the Year.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The revenue and aggregate revenue attributable to the Group's largest
customer and five largest customers accounted for approximately 32%

and 50% of the Group's total revenue for the Year respectively.

At no time during the Year did a Director, a close associate of a Director or
a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors
own more than 5% of the Company's share capital) have an interest in

any of the Group's five largest customers.

The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers

amounted to less than 30% of the Group's total purchases for the Year.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this Directors’ Report

are.—

Executive Directors:

Ms. Chan, Sze-wan (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan

Ms. Chan, Lok-wan

Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai

Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lau, Ming-wai (Chairman)
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai

Ms. Phillis Loh, Lai-ping

Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun

Ms. Chan, Sze-wan, Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan and Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai will retire
from office at the forthcoming annual general meeting pursuant to Bye-
law 111 of the Bye-laws of the Company and all being eligible will offer

themselves for re-election.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employer within one year

without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong (the “SFQ")) as
recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Appendix 10 of Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in the Rules Governing the Listing of

Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) were as follows:—
1 The Company
Number of

Shares Held
KRG &R

Name of Directors

EEHS

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai 1,430,700,768 &
("“Mr. MW Lau")

RS IESLE ([RIISIELEE])

Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan 1,430,700,768 W

("Ms. HW Chan")
FRelag e+ ([BRelaE L))
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Percentage of
Issued Share

Capacity Capital
54 | ERTREAESL
Founder and beneficiary of trust 74.99%
and other
BB ARR A REAM
Interest in controlled 74.99%

corporation, trustee, interest
of children under 18 and
other

R AR 2 e 5rEA
Rm18BR T2 2 i m R oAb

Notes:

* Mr. MW Lau was deemed to be interested in 1,430,700,768 shares of
the Company in aggregate. 476,425,000 shares of the Company were
directly owned by Century Frontier Limited, which was wholly owned by
Alto Trust Limited as trustee of a discretionary trust of which Mr. MW Lau
is the founder and a beneficiary. Mr. MW Lau was also deemed to be
interested in 954,275,768 shares of the Company indirectly held by Ms.
HW Chan as the trustee for her minor children Lau, Chung-hok and Lau,
Sau-wah by virtue of the right of first refusal granted to Century Frontier
Limited for those 954,275,768 shares.

* Ms. HW Chan was deemed to be interested in 1,430,700,768 shares
of the Company in aggregate. 954,275,768 shares of the Company
were indirectly owned by Sino Omen Holdings Limited, the entire issued
share capital of which was held by Ms. HW Chan as the trustee of her
minor children Lau, Chung-hok and Lau, Sau-wah. Ms. HW Chan was
also deemed to be interested in 476,425,000 shares of the Company
indirectly held by Alto Trust Limited as trustee of a discretionary trust of
which Mr. MW Lau is the founder and a beneficiary by virtue of the right
of first refusal granted to Sino Omen Holdings Limited, Solar Bright Ltd.
and Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited for those 476,425,000
shares.

BT -

* 2INS 1B AR A A BB 1,430,700,7688 7
A A5 - 476,425,0008% 2 22 &) B% 1 B Century
Frontier Limited B # # 4 + Century Frontier Limited
FAlto Trust Limited (1ERA—TERBEE 255
A MEISEREERZMBEEECAIARS =
NEEBRB -BBELENERAES R
BT (ERERKFEFLRAMHERRFEZF
SN B E 2954275768 A A RIBE D B
Century Frontier Limitedit 7% % 954,275,768% f% 17
BERTELREE-

* PR\ ER 2 T AR A KA 1,430,700,768 AR X
A&7 » 954,275,7688 AR X A I& 17 B3 Sino Omen
Holdings Limitedl# %A - A 22 HITRAE
MR BLT (ERERKFFREHMEKE
FEZEXNFE - RIBLLITEERESR
HAlto Trust Limited (1EA—BEIBEE 2157
A MERELEERZMBEERZBLARR
W A ) B 4%5 2476,425,000 8 K R AR5
& Sino Omen Holdings Limited * Solar Bright Ltd. %
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES'
INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF THE
COMPANY AND ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS
(Cont'd)

Il Associated corporations of the Company

Name of Name of Associated Number of
Director Corporations Share(s) Held
EEpE B EE AR RO EE

Ms. HW Chan Sino Omen Holdings Limited 1,000 &
Bel@z L

Ms. HW Chan Solar Bright Ltd. 1 o
Bel@x L

EERRSTHRAERALQTRE
BEEcESERS @

N RATZHEBEE

Percentage of
Issued Share

Capacity Capital
5 | ERTREES
Trustee and 100%
interest of children under 18
ERARKBISHR TR EE
Interest in controlled corporation, 100%

trustee and

interest of children under 18
REED AR 2 e EEAR
w185 T 22

Note:

* Ms. HW Chan (as the trustee for her minor children Lau, Chung-hok and
Lau, Sau-wah) directly held the entire issued share capital of Sino Omen
Holdings Limited. Sino Omen Holdings Limited directly held the entire
issued share capital of Solar Bright Ltd.. Therefore, Ms. HW Chan as the
trustee for her said minor children was also regarded as interested in the
entire issued share capital of Solar Bright Ltd..

The interests stated above represent long position. The percentage
shown was the number of shares the relevant Director was interested
in expressed as a percentage of the number of issued shares as at 31
December 2019.

Save as disclosed above, none of the other Directors and chief executives
of the Company had or were deemed under the SFO to have any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) as at 31 December 2019.

During the Year, none of the Directors and chief executives of the
Company nor their spouses or children under 18 years of age were
granted or had exercised any right to subscribe for any securities of the

Company or any of its associated corporations.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2019, so far as are known to any Directors or chief
executives of the Company, the following parties (other than Directors or
chief executives of the Company) were recorded in the register kept by
the Company under section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to be

interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:—

Name of Substantial Number of
Shareholders Shares Held
FTERRER iR & E

Mr. Joseph Lau, Luen-hung 1,430,700,768 A&
("Mr. Joseph Lau")
RS ([RERTE])

Sino Omen Holdings Limited 1,430,700,768 &
(Incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands)

(REBEB RS EMAL)

Solar Bright Ltd. 1,430,700,768 W
(Incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands)

(RERBHEBRESEMAKIL)

Alto Trust Limited 1,430,700,768 &
(Incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands)

(RERBHEBAREFSEMAIL)

Century Frontier Limited 1,430,700,768 i
(Incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands)
(REBHEBRESIMA)

Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited 707,409,820 i
(Incorporated in the British Virgin

Islands)

(RERBERRESEMAIL)
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FTERRRAEAQT 2EFER

BEFHARARSTHRAEMAT R-T—H
FTZA=+—H FTRARBEEF LB bﬂH%
3361RARTF 2 B MAMZEIRITHEAR
?%i?aﬁ?%i‘?ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁ%ﬁKAETE%??J&$5%
SN ERBEZ AL (BEFRARAEFTHRARR
SMIEATR -

Percentage of

Issued Share
Capacity Capital
S BEBTREAEI T

Interest of spouse, interest of 74.99%
children under 18 and other
FlfB 2 #am  Rim18E TR 2
R N EAD

Interest in controlled corporation 74.99%
and other

REIZHI AR Z s R EA

Beneficial owner, interest in 74.99%

controlled corporation and

other
BEmEAA RIEHAF 2
e R EA

Trustee, interest in controlled 74.99%

corporation and other

(S-S NI 5958

i)
Beneficial owner and other 74.99%
BEmEA AREAM
Beneficial owner and other 37.08%
EnlEa AREM
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN

THE SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY (Contd)

Notes:

o Mr. Joseph Lau was deemed to be interested in the same parcel of
shares that his spouse, Ms. HW Chan, and his minor children, Lau,

Chung-hok and Lau, Sau-wah, deemed to have interests.

* Sino Omen Holdings Limited held the entire issued share capital
of Solar Bright Ltd. and therefore was regarded as interested in the
same parcel of shares held by Solar Bright Ltd.. Solar Bright Ltd. held
the entire issued share capital of Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments
Limited and therefore was regarded as interested in the same parcel
of shares held by Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited. Joseph
Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited directly held 230,984,820 shares
of the Company while Solar Bright Ltd. directly held 723,290,948
shares of the Company. Sino Omen Holdings Limited, Solar Bright Ltd.
and Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited were also deemed to
be interested in 476,425,000 shares of the Company directly held by
Century Frontier Limited by virtue of the right of first refusal granted
to them for those 476,425,000 shares. As such, Solar Bright Ltd.
and Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited were deemed to be
interested in 1,430,700,768 shares and 707,409,820 shares of the
Company in aggregate respectively; Sino Omen Holdings Limited was
deemed to be interested in 1,430,700,768 shares of the Company,
which were referred to in the interests of Ms. HW Chan as disclosed
under “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests in the Securities of the

Company and Associated Corporations”.

* Alto Trust Limited as trustee of a discretionary trust of which Mr. MW
Lau is the founder and a beneficiary held the entire share capital of
Century Frontier Limited and therefore was regarded as interested in the
same parcel of shares held by Century Frontier Limited. Century Frontier
Limited directly held 476,425,000 shares of the Company. Century
Frontier Limited was also deemed to be interested in 954,275,768
shares of the Company directly held by Solar Bright Ltd. and Joseph Lau
Luen Hung Investments Limited in aggregate by virtue of the right of first
refusal granted to it for those 954,275,768 shares. As such, each of Alto
Trust Limited and Century Frontier Limited was deemed to be interested
in 1,430,700,768 shares of the Company in aggregate, which were
referred to in the interests of Mr. MW Lau as disclosed under “Directors’
and Chief Executives' Interests in the Securities of the Company and

Associated Corporations”.

All the interests stated above represent long positions. As at 31 December

2019, no short positions were recorded in the register kept by the

Company under section 336 of the SFO.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019

FERRRAQATBZESFERS ®

B

LSRR N

EEREREAEAEEETRIBL I RER
PR F R B R R B FEBAR RES 2R — itk
R

Sino Omen Holdings Limited¥7 Solar Bright Ltd.Z
2 EE BT - 8415 R ¥ A Solar Bright Ltd.
P 2 R —HEAZH #E %5 © Solar Bright Ltd.#5 A
Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited > % &
B 1 THRA - BUi48 A% A Joseph Lau Luen Hung
Investments Limitedf 3548 2 B —#t R H s o
Joseph Lau Luen Hung lnvestments Limited B # %
230,984,820 A A » M Solar Bright Ltd.
E&H*ﬁ723,290,948ﬂx$ THXTJJ > Sino Omen
Holdings Limited * Solar Bright Ltd.}&Joseph Lau
Luen Hung Investments Limited 7815 &% 8 A
Century Frontier LimitedE #3582 476,425,000
BA At R an - 1% 7% 476,425,000/
A7 JE R T 18 S R B #E - Bt - Solar Bright Ltd. &
Joseph Lau Luen Hung Investments Limited %> 51l
B R A & #£1,430,700,768% % 707,409,8200%
AR AR - MSino Omen Holdings Limited# 17
/3 HEE1,430,700,7680% 7 21X R f& 15 - BD Fﬁ%&
BEiTBABRARRNE REBER L FS5Ea

BT HERINBLZ T 2R FTiE 2w

Alto Trust Limited ({73 —THMIEEFEZEFEA
MBS ESEERZMBERZBIZARERA)
# & Century Frontier Limited” 2 282 21T AN -
MU AR & % A Century  Frontier Limitedfi% A 2
B —H#EAL {9 #E 25 ° Century Frontier Limited & 1% 4%
476,425,000 A& 2 A J& 15 © Century Frontier
Limited 7845 4% & % A B Solar Bright Ltd. & Joseph
Lau Luen Hung Investments LimitedE Z#FH A
$£954,275 768 A A B R D i A Z 5
954,275,768 I (X T & S R B HE - FH1t - Alto
Trust Limited & Century Frontier Limited& & #18 &
¥EH & #£1,430,700,768k A A A I - AN [E F
REBITBABRAD R RABEEE 2 &5 ]
BT EBERNSIE E R FTIE 2 e

~NEFZR=+-

B RIBEARQEIZE %&ﬁﬁi@?{lﬂﬂ%B%ﬂﬂ%ﬁZ%
FC T P BB B AR R o



DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the Year, Ms. Chan, Sze-wan, Ms. HW Chan and Mr. MW Lau had
personal and/or directorship interests in private companies engaged in
property investment business and securities investment business. As
such, he/she was regarded as being interested in such businesses, which

competed or might compete with the Group.

In addition, Mr. Joseph Lau, a former executive Director, Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive Officer of the Company, had through certain
private companies wholly-owned by him acquired the retail shops of
York Place, Excelsior Plaza (include Laforet) and Southorn Centre (also
known as Wanchai Computer Centre) from the Group in 2010, certain
floors and car parking spaces constituted part of the properties known
as Silvercord and the properties known as The ONE from the Group in
2015 as well as the properties known as Windsor House from the Group
in 2016 (collectively the “Private Properties”). Each of Ms. Chan, Sze-
wan, Ms. HW Chan and Mr. MW Lau was a director of or deemed to have
certain interests in one or more of the said companies during the Year.
There might be potential leasing competition for existing and prospective
tenancies between the Private Properties and investment properties held
by the Group. In order to manage such potential leasing competition,
Mr. Joseph Lau had provided certain undertakings and the Company
had agreed with the Stock Exchange to implement certain measures
for monitoring the compliance of such undertakings. Details of such
undertakings and monitoring measures were set out in the circulars of
the Company dated 18 June 2010, 23 September 2014, 7 January 2015
and 15 January 2016. The independent non-executive directors of the
Company (“INEDs") had carried out an annual review on the compliance
of the said undertakings and monitoring measures and confirmed that
such undertakings and monitoring measures were duly complied with
and considered adequate monitoring measures were in place to avoid the

potential leasing competition during the Year.

The Directors are aware of their fiduciary duties and will act honestly and
in good faith in the interests of the Company and will avoid any potential
conflict of interests and duties. The Company comprises three INEDs and
all of them are audit committee members of the Company, so that the

interest of its shareholders can be adequately represented.

Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors were interested in
any businesses apart from the Company’s businesses, which competed
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the Company’s

businesses.
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DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

According to the Company's Bye-laws, each Director shall be entitled to
be indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or
liabilities (to the extent allowed by the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended)) which such Director may sustain or incur in or about the
execution of the duties of the Director’s office or otherwise in relation
thereto. The Company has provided indemnity to INEDs since July 2014
by issuing a letter to each of the INEDs. The Company has also arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the
Directors and officers of the Group which was in force during the Year and

up to the date of this Directors’ Report.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

There were no arrangements to which the Company or any of the
Company's subsidiaries was a party to enable the Directors to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the

Company or any other body corporate during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as the agreement(s) disclosed under the heading “Connected
Transactions” below and the facility agreement(s) entered into between
the Group and Ms. HW Chan as disclosed under “Material Related Party
Transactions” in Note 47 to the consolidated financial statements, there
were no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
in relation to the Company's businesses, to which the Company or
any of the Company’s subsidiaries was a party, subsisting at the end of
the Year or at any time during the Year, and in which a Director or an
entity connected with a Director had, whether directly or indirectly, a
material interest, nor there were any other transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance in relation to the Company's businesses between
the Company or any of the Company's subsidiaries and a controlling

shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transaction

On 29 January 2020, Chase Master Company Limited, Lucky Way
Company Ltd. and City Gateway Limited (all being indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company) as sellers entered into a disposal agreement
with Ms. HW Chan as purchaser in relation to, inter alia, the disposal
of certain debt securities at a consideration of 100% of the principal
amount or market bid price (whichever is higher) (the “Disposal”). The
total consideration for the Disposal was estimated to be not less than
US$840,415,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$6,543,135,000),
capped with a maximum total transaction amount of HK$8,000 million
(the "Cap Amount”).

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios under Chapter 14
of the Listing Rules in respect of the Disposal by reference to the Cap
Amount exceeded 25% but less than 75%, accordingly the Disposal
constituted a major transaction for the Company. In addition, as at the
date of the relevant announcement, Ms. HW Chan was an executive
Director and a trustee of the substantial shareholders of the Company
(who are two of her minor children), Ms. HW Chan was a connected
person of the Company. Accordingly, the Disposal also constituted a
connected transaction for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules and was therefore subject to the reporting, announcement, circular
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to the
Listing Rules. An announcement in respect of the Disposal was made on
29 January 2020.

The Disposal was approved by the independent shareholders of the
Company at the special general meeting of the Company held on
23 March 2020. Details of the Disposal were set out in the Company's
circular dated 28 February 2020.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions

On 28 February 2019, Chinese Estates, Limited (being a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company) (“CEL") (as tenant) entered into (a) a
tenancy agreement in relation to the leasing of the whole of 17th floor of
Chubb Tower, Windsor House (the “First Tenancy Agreement”) at a rent of
HK$1,025,000 per month (excluding service charges and rates) for a term
of 3 years commencing from 1 March 2019 to 28 February 2022 (the
“First Tenancy"); and (b) an agreement for lease in relation to the leasing
of the whole of 19th floor, the whole of 20th floor and the whole of 21st
floor of Chubb Tower, Windsor House (the “Framework Agreement”) at
a rent of HK$1,084,000, HK$1,044,000 and HK$1,056,000 per month
(excluding service charges and rates) respectively for a term of 3 years
commencing from a date or dates to be agreed between the parties
provided that the commencement date(s) shall not be earlier than
1 November 2019 or later than 29 February 2020 (the "Subsequent
Tenancies”), with Windsor House Limited (“WHL") (as landlord) for the
purpose of new headquarter of the Group. On 18 October 2019, a
tenancy agreement for the Subsequent Tenancies was entered into for
a term of 3 years commencing from 1 November 2019 to 31 October

2022 (the “Subsequent Tenancy Agreement”).

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 28 February 2019,
the caps of the service charges and rates payment as well as the fit-
out administration fee payment payable by CEL to WHL under the First
Tenancy and the Subsequent Tenancies for the period from 1 March 2019
to 31 December 2019 were set at HK$2,900,000 and HK$3,100,000
respectively (the “Charges Caps"). Moreover, the cap of the total value
of the right-of-use asset relating to the Subsequent Tenancies for the
period from 1 November 2019 to 31 December 2019 was set at
HK$108,256,000 (the “Cap for Right-of-use Asset”).
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions
(Cont'd)

As at the date of the relevant announcement, WHL was indirectly owned
by (i) Ms. HW Chan (an executive Director and a trustee of the substantial
shareholders of the Company (who are two of her minor children)),
both in her capacity as a trustee of her minor children and in her own
capacity; (i) Mr. MW Lau (a non-executive Director, the chairman of the
Board and a substantial shareholder of the Company); and (iii) a family
trust of Mr. Joseph Lau (the spouse of Ms. HW Chan), hence WHL was
a connected person of the Company. Therefore, under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules, (a) in respect of the First Tenancy, the entering into of
the First Tenancy Agreement and the rental payment thereof constituted
a connected transaction for the Company and the fit-out administration
fee payment as well as the service charges and rates payment thereof
constituted continuing connected transactions for the Company; and
(b) in respect of the Subsequent Tenancies, the entering into of the
Framework Agreement and the transactions contemplated thereunder
(including the entering into of the Subsequent Tenancy Agreement,
the rental payment, the fitout administration fee payment as well as
the service charges and rates payment thereof) constituted continuing

connected transactions for the Company.

Given that (i) one or more of the applicable percentage ratios in respect
of the value of the right-of-use asset under the First Tenancy and the Cap
for Right-of-use Asset under the Subsequent Tenancies, on an aggregated
basis, exceeded 0.1% but less than 5%; (i) one of the applicable
percentage ratios of the Charges Caps exceeded 0.19% but less than
5% at the date of entering into the First Tenancy Agreement and the
Framework Agreement, therefore the First Tenancy and the Subsequent
Tenancies (and the transactions contemplated thereunder) were exempt
from the shareholders’ approval requirement, but were subject to the
reporting, announcement and (to the extent constituting continuing
connected transactions for the Company) annual review requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions, the
INEDs, pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules on the requirement
to carry out an annual review on the continuing connected transactions,
confirmed that the transactions were made in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Company, on normal commercial terms and
in accordance with the First Tenancy Agreement and the Subsequent
Tenancy Agreement governing them on terms that were fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as a

whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Connected Transaction and Continuing Connected Transactions
(Cont'd)

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules,
confirmed in their letter made in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that the subject continuing
connected transactions had received the approval of the Board, had been
entered into in accordance with the agreements and had not exceeded
the caps disclosed in the announcement of the Company made on
28 February 2019. The Company provided a copy of such letter to the
Stock Exchange.

Continuing Connected Transactions

On 31 October 2017, CEL entered into a contract for services with
Mr. Joseph Lau regarding the provision of (i) leasing administration
services (including without limitation matters relating to dealing with
tenants, rent collection and taking legal actions, but excluding services
in relation to the referral of potential tenants and the negotiation with
existing and/or potential tenants regarding terms of lease of properties),
(ii) sale administration services (including without limitation the
appointment of and coordination with estate agents for such sale but
excluding any sale agency service), (iii) property management services
(including matters relating to management, maintenance, operation,
servicing and repairs of properties), (iv) property administration
services (including without limitation accounting, company secretarial,
recruitment, human resources administration works, taxation, marketing
and information technology services) (the "Property Administration
Services”), (v) asset management and maintenance services (including
property, household and other management and maintenance services
in relation to properties and assets) (the “Asset Management and
Maintenance Services”), (vi) rental services (including rental of motor
vehicles, car plates, vessels, car parking spaces, premises and such other
rental services) (the “Rental Services”), (vii) advisory and consultancy
services (including general advisory, consultancy, administration, liaison,
personnel support services and such other services (including without
limitation accounting, taxation and company secretarial services) ancillary
and/or incidental thereto) (the “Advisory and Consultancy Services"),
and (viii) other ordinary services (including without limitation securities
and other financial services) to Mr. Joseph Lau, his associates and/
or relatives for a term of 3 years commencing from 1 November 2017
to 31 October 2020 (the “Contract”). The cap of the service charges
payable by Mr. Joseph Lau to CEL for the Year under the Contract was
set at HK$116,000,000 (the “Cap”) as disclosed in the Company's
announcement dated 31 October 2017.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Contd)

As at the date of relevant announcement, Mr. Joseph Lau being the
spouse of Ms. HW Chan, accordingly an associate of Ms. HW Chan (an
executive Director and a trustee of the substantial shareholders of the
Company (who are her two minor children)). Therefore, Mr. Joseph
Lau was a connected person of the Company and the Contract and the
transactions contemplated thereunder constituted continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules. As the applicable
percentage ratios for the expected annual caps for the transactions
contemplated under the Contract exceeded 0.1% but were expected to
be less than 5%, the Contract and the annual caps were only subject
to the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements but
exempted from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement

pursuant to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Having reviewed the subject continuing connected transactions, the
INEDs, pursuant to rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules on the requirement
to carry out an annual review on the continuing connected transactions,
confirmed that the transactions were made in the ordinary and usual
course of business of the Company (other than household management
and maintenance services under the Asset Management and Maintenance
Services, the Property Administration Services, the Rental Services and
the Advisory and Consultancy Services), on normal commercial terms and
in accordance with the Contract governing them on terms that were fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company
as a whole. Having considered the reasons and benefits in respect of the
provision of household management and maintenance services under the
Asset Management and Maintenance Services, the Property Administration
Services, the Rental Services and the Advisory and Consultancy Services
as mentioned in the Company's announcement dated 31 October
2017, the INEDs were of the view that, although the provision of such
services contemplated under the Contract were not in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group, the terms of such services were
fair and reasonable so far as the Group were concerned and on normal
commercial terms, and were in the interests of the Company and its

shareholders as a whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Continuing Connected Transactions (Contd)

The auditors of the Company, pursuant to rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules,
confirmed in their letter made in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected
Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants that the subject continuing
connected transactions had received the approval of the Board, were in
accordance with the pricing policies of the Company, had been entered
into in accordance with the Contract and had not exceeded the Cap
disclosed in the announcement of the Company made on 31 October

2017. The Company provided a copy of such letter to the Stock Exchange.

Save as aforesaid, there were no other discloseable non-exempted
connected transaction or non-exempted continuing connected transaction
under the Listing Rules during the Year and up to the date of this

Directors' Report.

Save as aforesaid, none of the “Material Related Party Transactions” for
the Year as disclosed in Note 47 to the consolidated financial statements
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or non-

exempted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

To the extent of the above "Material Related Party Transactions”
constituted connected transactions or continuing connected transactions
as defined in the Listing Rules, the Company had complied with the
relevant requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the

Year.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21 OF
THE LISTING RULES

As disclosed in the Company's announcement dated 23 November 2018,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Borrower”) as
borrower has on 23 November 2018 entered into a facility agreement
(the “Facility Agreement”) with a bank (the “Bank") as lender in respect
of a term loan facility (the “Facility”) in the principal sum of up to
HK$674,000,000 and it is a term of the Facility Agreement that the
Company entered into a guarantee (the “Guarantee”). The Facility will be
repayable in 12 successive quarterly instalments with the final repayment
date falling 36 months after the date on which the advance under the

Facility is made.

Pursuant to the Facility Agreement and the Guarantee, the Borrower
and the Company shall procure that the substantial shareholders of the
Company (as disclosed at pages 69 to 70 of the 2017 annual report of
the Company) and/or their ultimate beneficial owners together with their
respective associates and connected persons in aggregate shall maintain
not less than 30% shareholding in and remain a single largest shareholder

of the Company.

A breach of the abovementioned undertaking may constitute an event
of default under the Facility Agreement, whereby the Bank may, among
others, cancel the Facility and declare that all sums accrued or outstanding
(including accrued interest) under the Facility Agreement be immediately
due and payable. The occurrence of such event may trigger the cross
default provisions of other banking or credit facilities available to the
Group and, as a possible consequence, these other facilities may also be

declared by the relevant lenders to be immediately due and payable.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates two retirement benefit schemes:—

(1) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Occupational
Retirement Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 426 of the laws of Hong
Kong (the “ORSO Scheme"); and

(2) the provident fund scheme as defined in the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance, Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong
(the "MPF Scheme").

Both the ORSO Scheme and the MPF Scheme are defined contribution
schemes and the assets of both schemes are managing by their

respective trustees accordingly.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES (contd)

The ORSO Scheme is available to the Group's full-time permanent staff
employed in Hong Kong before 1 December 2000. Contributions to the
ORSO Scheme are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5% or 10% based on
the staff's basic salary depending on the length of service. Staff members
are entitled to 100% of the Group's contributions together with accrued
returns after completing 10 years of service or more, or attaining the
retirement age, or are entitled at a reduced scale between 30% to
90% of the Group's contributions after completing a period of service
of at least 3 years but less than 10 years. The ORSO Scheme allowed
any forfeited contributions (made by the Group for any staff member
who subsequently left the ORSO Scheme prior to vesting fully in such
contributions) to be used by the Group to offset the current level of

contributions of the Group.

The MPF Scheme is available to all employees aged 18 to 64 and with
at least 60 days of service under the employment of the Group in Hong
Kong. Contributions are made by the Group at 5% based on the staff's
relevant income. The maximum relevant income for contribution purpose
is HK$30,000 per month. Staff members are entitled to 100% of the
Group's contributions together with accrued returns irrespective of their
length of service with the Group, but the benefits are required by law to

be preserved until the retirement age of 65.

In order to provide similar benefits to those who joined the MPF Scheme
and the ORSO Scheme, the Group provided an additional portion (the
“Top-up Portion”) for those who joined the MPF Scheme. The purpose
of the Top-up Portion is to match up the benefits of the MPF Scheme
with that of the ORSO Scheme by providing those staff under the MPF
Scheme with basic salary over HK$30,000 and/or years of service over 5.
Contributions to the Top-up Portion are made by the Group at 5%, 7.5%
or 10% of the staff's basic salary less the Group's mandatory contribution

under the MPF Scheme as mentioned above.

The Group's total cost for the schemes charged to consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2019
amounted to approximately HK$8,408,000 (2018: HK$8,450,000). In
addition, an amount of forfeited employer's contributions for the schemes
amounted to approximately HK$331,000 (2018: HK$716,000) was
utilised towards reducing the Group's contributions during the Year. As at
31 December 2019, no (2018: HK$46,000) available balance to reduce

future contributions.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme") to recognise the contributions of certain employees and help
in retaining them for the Group's operations and further development. It
was adopted by the shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 14 January 2009 (the “Adoption Date") and valid and
effective until 13 January 2019.

The Board may from time to time, at its absolute discretion and subject
to such terms and conditions as it may think fit (including the basis of
eligibility of each employee determined by the Board from time to time),
after having taken into account recommendations made by members of
the Group and assessment of individual performance pursuant to internal
appraisal system, select an employee for participation in the Share Award
Scheme as a Selected Employee (“Selected Employee”) and determine
the number of shares which may be awarded to such Selected Employee
pursuant to the terms of the Share Award Scheme (“Awarded Share(s)").
A Selected Employee shall qualify to be allotted and issued the Awarded
Shares after all the qualifying conditions have been fulfilled, unless

otherwise determined by the Board at its discretion.

The issue price for each Awarded Share shall, subject to the terms of
the Share Award Scheme, be an amount equal to its nominal value and
shall be paid or satisfied in cash by the relevant member of the Group
engaging the Selected Employee or, if payment by the relevant member
of the Group engaging the Selected Employee is not permitted under
applicable law, any member of the Group, upon the allotment and issue
of the Awarded Shares.

The total number of shares which may be issued in response to the
Share Award Scheme and any other incentive or option schemes of
the Company (if any) shall not in aggregate exceed 207,775,007, being
10% of the total number of shares in issue on the Adoption Date. The
maximum number of Awarded Shares to be granted to each Selected
Employee under the Share Award Scheme in any 12-month period shall
not exceed in aggregate 1% of the shares in issue as at the date of such

grant.

As at the date of this Directors’ Report, the Share Award Scheme has been
expired. No granting of Awarded Shares has been made for the Year and

during the life of the Share Award Scheme.

Details of the Share Award Scheme were set out in the circular of the
Company dated 23 December 2008.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company had maintained the
prescribed amount of public float during the Year and up to the date of

this annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements for the Year were audited by
HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB") who would retire at the
conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting, and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will be proposed to the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting to re-appoint HLB

as the auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Lam, Kwong-wai

Director

Hong Kong, 23 March 2020

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019

NBEFERE

BREBARBAFSENRRAENRESAANL ARQF
REAFEARBERFHRAYILERETRURE
MEHEEHEZARKFRE -

B BL A

AERFZGAMBHRRABHEFMEHMERA
A ([E#]) &% - Z ST HREIERIT 2R
BFRAEERBEINGR ERERYLBEEEE
F-REBRTZRFBFRE L BRHEBRER
AREZBENRRREZ —BRER -

KRE=S
EFE
MK

BEE —E-FEF=A=-+=H



M st F BT A R
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chinese Estates
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 97 to 257, which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial

statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the

Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements on a

going concern basis

Refer to Note 3 to the consolidation financial statements

The Group had net operating
cash outflows of approximately
HK$838,424,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2019,
and as of that date, the Group's
current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by approximately
HK$1,138,575,000.

To support the going
concern basis in preparing
the consolidated financial
statements, management of
the Group has prepared a
cash flow projections of the
Group covering a period of
not less than twelve months
from 31 December 2019 and
concluded that there would
be sufficient funds from the
Group's existing cash resources,
available facilities from banks
and a director and cash flows
to be generated from its
operations to finance its future
operations and enable it to
meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due in
the next twelve months from
31 December 2019.

The cash flow projections
involved key assumptions
such as revenue growth, gross
profit margin, planned capital
expenditures, and availability of
facilities to the Group.

Our procedures in relation to the
preparation of the consolidated
financial statements on a going
concern basis included, but were not
limited to:

- assessing the appropriateness
of the key assumptions in the
cash flow projections, including
revenue growth, gross profit
margin and planned capital
expenditures by referencing to
actual historical performance
of the Group and making
reference to the Group's future
development plan, and testing
the mathematical accuracy of
the projections;

- confirming the cash resources
and available facilities from
banks and the director as at
year end by circularisation of
confirmations and assessing the
probability of banking facilities
renewal during the projection
period by examining historical
records of renewal pattern,
and reviewing management
assessment on the present and
forecast status of compliance
with restrictive loan covenants,
where relevant; and
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Preparation of the consolidated financial statements on a
going concern basis (Cont'd)
Refer to Note 3 to the consolidation financial statements (Cont'd)

Our procedures in relation to the
preparation of the consolidated
financial statements on a going
concern basis included, but were not
limited to: (Cont'd)

- evaluating the sensitivity of the
projected available cash by
considering downside scenarios
through applying reasonably
plausible changes to the key
assumptions, including revenue
growth and gross profit margin.
We have also considered the
appropriateness of the relevant
disclosures.

We found the use of going concern
basis of accounting to be supportable
by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

Valuation of investment properties

How our audit addressed the key

audit matter

Refer to Notes 19 and 24 to the consolidated financial statements

Management has estimated
the fair value of the Group's
investment properties to be
approximately HK$14,759,507,000
as at 31 December 2019 with
a net loss on fair value changes
for the year ended 31 December
2019 recorded in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income of approximately
HK$742,659,000. Independent
external valuations were obtained
in respect of all of the portfolio
of the Group, also with the
investment properties held by its
associates and joint venture in
order to support management's
estimates.

The valuations are dependent
on certain key assumptions that
require significant management
judgment including reversionary
yield and rental income from
future reversion leases in light
of current market conditions.

Our procedures in relation to

management's valuation of

investment properties included, but

were not limited to:

evaluating the independent
external valuers’ competence,

capabilities and objectivity;

assessing the methodologies
used and the appropriateness
of the key assumptions and
parameters based on our
knowledge of the property
industry and using our audit
valuation experts; and

checking, on sample basis, the
accuracy and relevance of the
input data used.

We found the key assumptions were

supported by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Classification and fair value measurement on financial

assets

Refer to Notes 5(c), 27 and 28 to the consolidated financial

statements

As at 31 December 2019,
the Group held equity
securities with carrying
amount of approximately
HK$20,182,543,000 which
were irrevocably elected and
designated as financial assets
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income.

As at 31 December 2019,
the Group held unlisted
equity securities (including
limited partnership)
and club and corporate
debentures with carrying
amount of approximately
HK$1,603,891,000 and
HK$62,820,000 respectively.
These financial instruments
do not have a quoted market
price in an active market (the
“Unquoted Investments”). They
were classified as financial
assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive
income or financial assets
measured at fair value through
profit or loss and measured at

fair value.

Our procedures over the classification
of financial assets and fair value
measurement of the Group's portfolio
of the Unquoted Investments
included, but were not limited to:

—  assessing management's

evaluation in relation to the
classification of financial
assets based on the Group's
business model for managing
the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the financial
assets;

—  reviewing management'’s

the
classification of financial assets

memorandum for

and the irrevocable election
to designate investment in
equity instruments that would
be measured subsequent
changes in fair value in other
comprehensive income;

- enquiring the management

including fund manager and
assessing the methodologies
used in fair value measurement
and the appropriateness of
the key assumptions and
parameters based on our
knowledge of the investment
and using our audit valuation
experts;
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Classification and fair value measurement on financial

assets (Cont'd)

Refer to Notes 5(c), 27 and 28 to the consolidated financial

statements (Cont'd)

The valuation of the Unquoted
Investments is complex and
requires the application of
significant judgment by the

management.

The Unquoted Investments are
valued on a basis considered
the most appropriate by the
management and independent
external valuers, depending on
the nature of the underlying
business which has been

invested in.

Our procedures over the classification
of financial assets and fair value
measurement of the Group's portfolio
of the Unquoted Investments
included, but were not limited to:
(Cont'd)

- enquiring the management
the assumptions around the
sustainability of earnings based
on the plans of the investee
companies and whether these
were achievable;

- obtaining management
information including budgets
and forecasts from the portfolio
companies being valued and
using these to corroborate the
key inputs in the valuation
model;

- checking, on sample basis,
the accuracy and relevance
of the input data used such
as comparing key underlying
financial data inputs to
external sources and investee
companies’ audited financial
statements and management
information as applicable;

—  obtaining market second
hand prices independently
and comparing them to the
valuation model;

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019

FAEETEE

HEETEE

FFt P mAEE
HRETER

EHEEZDBR A FETE (#)

BRRGEE B EEN E5(c) 27 K%28(4&)

HREREREETR
BENFEEER BE
REEBEERAEXRY
4 o

BERERERTKRE
HEAEBZMEE LT
B E RB YN A
MRARREEZE
EEITHE

==
=
P53

PAN
=

%

EREeRMEEZDR

EREEREREMR
NEFFEMRIRZ
BEETRR: (&)

EREERANT
ZEEl AR Bl
TEN - WERES
078 MR T
2 Rk

BEThEzA
RAZERE
CBEBEERRE
A B REEHER
Arp Z B 8UE

=
AN
=
#

xR E AR
ZEBENREY
- flan L B A 2 4R
B R 15 BUR AN R
AR ARLEES
BERA 2 REZ
MBEHRREEEREE
#(Ems)

BIRBHE _F
B A B ERN
2 %



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT B #Z B Fi R &=

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Classification and fair value measurement on financial

assets (Cont'd)

Refer to Notes 5(c), 27 and 28 to the consolidated financial

statements (Cont'd)

Our procedures over the classification
of financial assets and fair value
measurement of the Group's portfolio
of the Unquoted Investments
included, but were not limited to:
(Cont'd)

—  evaluating the independent
external valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity; and

—  checking the arithmetical
accuracy on the valuation
model.

We considered management’s
classification and fair value
measurement on financial assets were
supported by the available evidence.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (contd)

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key
audit matter

Impairment assessment on goodwill

Refer to Notes 4 and 23 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group made full
impairment of goodwill in
relation to the property leasing
business in the United Kingdom.
Management performed
impairment assessment of
goodwill and concluded that an
impairment loss on goodwill of
approximately HK$322,938,000
was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2019 in
relation to the property leasing
business in the United Kingdom.
This conclusion was based
on value-in-use calculation
that required significant
management judgment with
respect to the discount rate and
the underlying cash flows, in
particular future gross income
and revenue growth and capital
expenditure. Independent
external valuation was
obtained in order to support

management's estimates.

Our procedures in relation to
management's impairment
assessment of goodwill included, but

were not limited to:

- evaluating the independent
external valuer's competence,

capabilities and objectivity;

- assessing the methodologies
used and the appropriateness
of the key assumptions and
parameters based on our
knowledge of the relevant
industry and using our valuation
experts;

- checking, on a sample basis,
the accuracy and relevance of
the input data used.

We found the key assumptions made
by management for impairment
assessment were supported by the
available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the Group's 2019
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements

and our auditors' report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic

alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group's financial

reporting process.
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of

users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures

made by the directors.
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (contd)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also: (Cont'd)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditors' report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going

concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where

applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (contd)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest

benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent

auditors’ report is Ng Ka Wah.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Ng Ka Wah
Practising Certificate Number: PO6417

Hong Kong, 23 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
REEHEWRERR

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZE =T —hF+ A=+ —HILFE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Investment income, net

Administrative expenses

(Loss) gain on disposals of equipment, net

Fair value changes on investment properties

Finance costs

Other gains and losses

Impairment loss of goodwill

Share of results of investments accounted
for using the equity method

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive expenses
Items that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss
Gains and losses on investments in
equity instruments measured
at fair value through other
comprehensive income
Share of other comprehensive (expenses)
income of investments accounted for
using the equity method

Items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss
Exchange differences on translation of

foreign operations
Reclassification adjustment related to
dissolution of foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive expenses
of investments accounted for
using the equity method

Other comprehensive expenses for the year
(net of tax)

Total comprehensive expenses
for the year
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Notes
ihg=2

11
12
23

13

14

2019 2018
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FAT
538,986 843,618
(27,535) (124,507)
511,451 719,111
59,910 173,062
1,885,677 542,002
(269,516) (255,506)
(173) 1,181
(742,659) 122,301
(370,185) (344,990)
(12,341) (2,559)
(322,938) -
209,684 232,252
948,910 1,186,854
(157,258) (127,041)
791,652 1,059,813
(1,187,045) (2,847,447)
(38) 132
(1,187,083) (2,847315)
106,977 (274,773)
10,678 -
(4.344) (10,182)
113,311 (284,955)
(1,073,772) (3,132,270)
(282,120) (2,072,457)
—E-NEEHR EABEXESE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME #R&Z2HEWHE R X
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

Notes
M
Profit for the year attributable to: AR FERF
Owners of the Company ZN/NEIEZ 2SN
Non-controlling interests SRR
Total comprehensive expenses BiEAEFE2EHAR:
for the year attributable to:
Owners of the Company RARERA
Non-controlling interests FEE RS
Earnings per share (HKS) ERER (BRx) 18
Basic and diluted BEARR#E

2019 2018
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FAT
790,167 1,015,290
1,485 44,523
791,652 1,059,813

(283,605) (2,116,980)
1,485 44,523

(282,120) (2,072,457)
0.414 0.532

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated #R& B BHEM TG AMBREN—IH -

financial statements.
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Non-current assets

Investment properties

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Intangible assets

Goodwill

Investments accounted for
using the equity method

Advances to associates

Advance to a joint venture

Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income

Advances to investee companies

Advance to a non-controlling shareholder

Deferred tax assets

Pledged deposits

Prepayments

Current assets
Stock of properties
Financial assets measured at fair value
through profit or loss
Inventories
Debtors, deposits, other receivables and

prepayments

Securities trading receivables and deposits

Tax recoverable
Pledged deposits
Time deposits, bank balances and cash

Sales proceeds held by stakeholders

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
B IR R B R

At 31 December 2019 R -Z—AFE+-A=+—H

FRBEE

KEME
ERREE
BIVEE

e

R RZIE

EA RNk WNCIE ]

BN —HAERFNE
EREEEEPN TS
RFEFEZERMEE
BB E M 2 Y s A R
RNFEFEZERMEE
BRI RERRFRA
B — IR R OR
ELERAEE

EIRTE R

BN FRIA

REBEE

ZES
1818 25 AR
AFEHEZ SHAE
%

Notes

ot

19
20
21(a)
22
23

24
25
26

27

28
29(a)
29(b)

30
31(a)

32

33

27
34

FEWRRIR - 12 - HtEURIA

MIA IR
JE W38 75 R 5 iR IB M F R
REEEE S
EIRTE R

EHEFER RITEHRLERE

RE AT IHE FIS30R

32
31(b)

31(a)
31(c)

2019 2018
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FAT
14,759,507 15,280,848
45,524 36,654
136,899 -

- 322,938
2,433,328 2,276,177
48,111 49,259
158,818 154,218
1,670,271 1,350,090
20,182,543 21,367,307
105,902 652,304

- 11,170

1,592 1,899
100,002 83,203
15,388 -
39,657,885 41,586,067
224,380 228,799
7,368,082 5,415,827
2,328 3,187
301,181 517,562
16,961 22,497
1,432 15,670
174,221 154,195
565,319 714,572

- 32,327
8,653,904 7,104,636
—E-NEEHR EABEXESE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

At 31 December 2019 R-Z—HALF+-A=+—8H

Current liabilities RBEE
Creditors and accruals JE A5 BR T8 I 5T R IE
Securities trading and margin payable ENEAFRXZGRBARRES
Deposits and receipts in advance R RFEWFRIE
Lease liabilities HEBE
Tax liabilities MIEBE
Borrowings fBE
Derivative financial instrument MTHEEMIE
Net current liabilities REBAEFE
Total assets less current liabilities EELABERRBEE
Equity attributable to owners of AAREEAELEREER
the Company
Share capital [N
Financial assets measured at fair value 3 38 H A 2 TET M 2 A
through other comprehensive income REATFEFEZ
reserve CREEZREE
Statutory reserve ETE
Special reserve R 1
Capital redemption reserve B ARFEE
Translation reserve b 5
Retained profits RE RN
— proposed final dividend —BURARH RS
- others —HAth
Non-controlling interests FERER
Total equity AR

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019

RE MR /R

Notes

ot

35

21(b)

36
37

38

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
151,010 247187
11,246 22,295
218,235 218,633
47,929 -
117,700 62,656
9,240,299 9,303,688
6,060 -
9,792,479 9,854,459
(1,138,575) (2,749,823)
38,519,310 38,836,244
190,762 190,762
5,829,284 7,016,367
668 668
2,499,685 2,499,685
138,062 138,062
(479,897) (593,208)
19,076 190,762
25,371,285 24,619,270
33,568,925 34,062,368
21,436 81,201
33,590,361 34,143,569




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION #R&

Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Borrowings 3=
Amounts due to associates REEE R AIRIA
Amounts due to investee companies REAEZRERNEIRIE
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders /% & JF %2 A% % 58 3%
Lease liabilities HEEBE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEHIEEE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 23 March
2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Chan, Sze-wan PR FF 88
Director EZH

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

At 31 December 2019 %

Notes

ot

36
39
39
39
21(b)
30

B 7 AR R R =
—hFE+=—A=+—8©

2019 2018
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FAT
4,201,960 4,443 987
212,419 171,619
368,563 -
333 24,177
84,125 -
61,549 52,892
4,928,949 4,692,675
38,519,310 38,836,244

EREFEN_ZT_FTF=-A_ + S 8
B YR TIEERREETER

Lam, Kwong-wai MR E
Director EE
fFRE BB ImR M T AR

—E-NEERH

BRI o -

EABXEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERETEREFX

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZE =T —hWF+-A=+—HILFE

At 1 January 2018

Profit for the year
Gains and losses on investments in
equity instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income
— Listed equity investment
— Unlisted investments
Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations
Share of other comprehensive expenses of

investments accounted for using the equity method

Total comprehensive expenses for the year
Transfer of reserve upon disposal of
the investment in an equity instrument
measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders
Interim dividend for 2018 paid
Final dividend for 2017 paid
Unclaimed dividends forfeited (note (iv))

At 31 December 2018

Attributable to owners of the Company

EDREEARGERAER
Financial assets
measured
at fair value
through other
Share comprehensive Statutory
capital income reserve reserve
BREMZAKRS
URBATENE
BE ZeRMEEZRE EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TET TAT
(note (i) (note (ii))
(PEEG)) (PR EEGi) )
RZE-N\F—A—H 190,762 10,204,417 668
KEZRT - - -
BBEM ARG ARS
ATEHEBZBRATAREY
Yo RIE#E
- ETRARE - (3,016,524) -
—FEmRE - 169,077 -
BONEBREECERESR
B EREANRREZ
Hit 2 A% - 132 -
AEEREZLASE - (2,847315) -
REEBBEDE2ENGEARS
ATEHEZRATARER
BRZREE
- (340,735) -
ERFEERRERS - - -
ENZE-\FHHRE - - -
ENZE—tEREKRE - - -
RUCAR KA 2 RS (FF 5T (v)) - - -
RZE-N\E+-A=+—-H 190,762 7,016,367 668
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Attributable to owners of the Company

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZREeRAERZ S H X
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

ARAREARGEREER
Capital Non-
Special redemption Translation Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
&X BRAER
RRGRE BEf#E ERfE REEN B FERES B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET
(note (iii))
(B3E (i)
2,499,685 138,062 (308,253) 23,660,575 36,385,916 107,086 36,493,002
- - - 1,015,290 1,015,290 44,523 1,059,813
- - - - (3,016,524) - (3,016,524)
- - - - 169,077 - 169,077
- - (274,773) - (274,773) - (274,773)
- - (10,182) - (10,050) - (10,050)
- - (284,955) 1,015,290 (2,116,980) 44,523 (2,072,457)
- - - 340,735 - - -
- - - - - (70,408) (70,408)
- - - (19,076) (19,076) - (19,076)
- - - (190,762) (190,762) - (190,762)
- - - 3,270 3,270 - 3,270
2,499,685 138,062 (593,208) 24,810,032 34,062,368 81,201 34,143,569
—E-NEEH  FAREEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZEeRAEZ ST &
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERARBARERSER
Financial assets
measured
at fair value
through other
Share comprehensive Statutory
capital income reserve reserve
BRHEM2EWS
URMAFETE
BRE ZeRBEZHE EERE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FEL FET
(note (i) (note (ii))
(PEEG)) (PR EEGi) )
At 1 January 2019 R-Z-hnF—H—B 190,762 7,016,367 668
Profit for the year KEFEH - = =
Gains and losses on investments in BBEM ARG ARS
equity instruments measured at ATEHEBZBRATAREY
fair value through other comprehensive income WR kAR
~ Listed equity investments - ETRAEE - (1,590,629) -
- Unlisted investments —JFETRE - 403,584 -
Exchange differences on translation of BNEBEECELREZR
foreign operations - - -
Redlassffication adjustment related to BBENEBRACEN D BHE
dissolution of foreign operations - - -
Share of other comprehensive expenses of B EREANRREZ
investments accounted for using the equity method ~ Ef1 2 H X - (38) -
Total comprehensive expenses for the year AEEZEZLASE - (1,187,083) -
Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders ERFEERRERS = = =
Interim dividend for 2019 paid ERZZ-NEHHRE - - =
Final dividend for 2018 paid ERZZ-NERBRE - - =
At 31 December 2019 RZZ-hE+=-A=1+-8H 190,762 5,829,284 668
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZREeRAERZ S H X
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARAREARGEREER
Capital Non-
Special redemption Translation Retained controlling Total
reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
&X BRAER
RRGRE BEf#E ERfE REEN B FERES B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TER TET TER TET TER
(note (iii))
(B3E (i)
2,499,685 138,062 (593,208) 24,810,032 34,062,368 81,201 34,143,569
- - - 790,167 790,167 1,485 791,652
- - - - (1,590,629) - (1,590,629)
- - - - 403,584 - 403,584
- - 106,977 - 106,977 - 106,977
- - 10,678 - 10,678 - 10,678
- - (a,344) - (8,382) - (8,382)
- - 113,311 790,167 (283,605) 1,485 (282,120)
- - - = = (61,250) (61,250)
- - - (19,076) (19,076) - (19,076)
- - - (190,762) (190,762) - (190,762)
2,499,685 138,062 (479,897) 25,390,361 33,568,925 21,436 33,590,361
—E-NEEH  ZEAEXEE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY #ZEeRAEZ ST &

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

Notes: BT -

(i)  The cumulative amount of the gain on listed equity investments (i)
classified as financial assets measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI") was approximately
HK$4,980,414,000 as at 31 December 2019 (2018:
HK$6,571,043,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the unrealised loss on fair
value change from holding shares of China Evergrande Group (stock
code: 3333) (“Evergrande Shares”) of HK$1,591,000,000 was recorded
in financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the loss of the Evergrande
Shares of approximately HK$3,016,524,000 including unrealised loss
of approximately HK$3,052,253,000, realised gain of approximately
HK$36,715,000 and the transaction costs of the disposal of certain
Evergrande Shares of approximately HK$986,000 was recorded in
financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve. Upon completion of
the disposal of certain Evergrande Shares during the year ended
31 December 2018, the cumulative fair value gain and the transaction
costs in the financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve that related
to the disposal amounted to approximately HK$340,735,000 was
transferred to retained profits.

(i) The statutory reserve of the Group refers to the People’s Republic of (i)

China (“PRC") statutory reserve fund. Appropriations to such reserve
fund are made out of profit after tax as recorded in the statutory
financial statements of the PRC subsidiaries. The amount should not be
less than 10% of the profit after tax as recorded in the statutory financial
statements unless the aggregate amount exceeds 50% of the registered
capital of the PRC subsidiaries. The statutory reserve can be used to
make up prior year losses, if any, and can be applied in conversion into
the PRC subsidiaries capital by means of capitalisation issue.

(i) Special reserve represented the difference arising from the aggregate of  (iii)
the share capital and premium amount of the former holding company
and the Company upon redomicile of the holding company as a
Bermuda Company in 1989 and is non-distributable.

(iv)  Unclaimed dividends forfeited represented dividends declared by  (iv)
the Company on or before 17 August 2011 remaining unclaimed
by shareholders of the Company on 28 February 2018. During the
year ended 31 December 2018, unclaimed dividends amounted to
approximately HK$3,270,000 were forfeited and transferred to retained
profits.

RZZE—NF+_A=+—8 ETREAERES
HARBBEMEEWE AR TE ([BBEAMm
2HEREARBRAFE]FEZEMEE Y 25
I %54 5849 /54,980,414,0005 7T ( —F — )\ 5 :
6,571,043,000/& 7T ) °

REBE-_Z-AE+-_A=+—BILFERN @&
BEMEERFIARBAFEFEZSREEL
FEEPHGREFEPEERER (BRMHARR:

3333) [ ([MERRD]) 2 A FEERE 2 RER
E5481,591,000,0005 7T ©

RBE-_Z-N\E+-_A=+—HILFE @8
HipzmBEURB AT EFEZEREE 2
ER ISR B E AR 2 518 493,016,524,0007%8
JT BHE R IR E5 18 493,052,253,00058 7T« B &
I %5 #936,715,000%8 7T )k B E & T1E KRD 2
R B AHI986,0008TL - REZE T — \F+=
B=+—BLEFEANTREEE FTERBKMDE-
BBEMEERSURBRAFEFEZEREE
2 RHBFHEEHEZ R A FERKSRRZKA
£ %8#340,735,000/8 L E B E (R E 5

REEZRERBIETEARKMNME ([FE )X
EREES ARFEBESFELZBRIBES
B /8 % BETE B 75 $R 3R 2 BR B 4% 01 1 - Bk 3 P 93
SR EEERT BB R RN EARZ50%
BRIZSENSENEEFBIRKRAMES 2R
BN Z100% X ERBE IR BEFBEFEBHA
(B RIEH X AEBE AL EITRA AL IR
RPBMBARZER-

FRIRETEER AR RARA R —NNANEF
BMZERARNASBRERRF ZRALEBER
BEEEZEZREERTAIDE-

RIMAG B Z R ETHIEARNRR =T ——F )\
A+EtHZZAERMARRZERER=Z—N\
FZAZF+NBDARERZBRE -REE=-ZF—N
F+ZA=Z+—RHIEFERN DAKERZRKE
S EA# /3,270,000 7T B 402 U B 48 R B i
F o

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated 474 Bf#MAMI FF VR MEHMERH —LLH »

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
MERERERX

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZE =T —hF+ A=+ —HILFE

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
iks3 FHERT FAET
Operating activities REEY
Profit before tax x5 A A 948,910 1,186,854
Adjustments for: SR ESEIA RS
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - WERRETE 7,384 6,806
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 19,680 -
Write-off of creditors and accruals BLPE AT AR 1B I FE R RRIE 2 MEH (135) -
Interest expenses ) BB 52 376,856 342,356
Interest income FEHA (724,505) (672,652)
Dividends income from listed and ITRFLTHRE
unlisted investments SN PN - (1,161,570)
Allowance for doubtful debts reversed MEWE ZRIE 2
in respect of trade receivables RERBEEE (a3) @
Write-off of trade receivables BIENE 5 RRTE 2 i 8H 16 13
Impairment loss reversed in respect of B— I fth E U BR IE B [ 2
an other receivable B E 1R = (49,245)
Write-off of other receivables ot L 4t B Wt AR 1B 2 i 8 18 247
Unrealised (gain) loss arising from change in B2 AT EES
fair value of bonds MELZREIR (W) EIE (978,452) 1,255,094
Unrealised loss (gain) arising from change in GRELNAEFZATEEDY
fair value of club and corporate mEEZ REREE (W)
debentures 13,090 (8,592)
Realised gain arising from change in MBERUARBRATENEZ
fair value of financial assets measured at TRIEEZ A TEES
fair value through profit or loss imEEz 2 #H K (30,024) -
Unrealised loss (gain) arising from change in TEemMIAZATEZS
fair value of derivative financial instrument MEE 2 RSIREE (W) 6,060 (1,921)
Loss (gain) on disposals of equipment, net HERBZEE (W) 8 173 (1,181)
Impairment loss of goodwill B REER 23 322,938 -
Share of results of investments accounted for BRI EARKRAEZ
using the equity method ES (209,684) (232,252)
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BN E ARRIBERZ
advances to associates BB E R 982 -
Fair value changes on investment properties REMEZ AT EES 742,659 (122,301)
Overprovision of costs in respect of M—EEREBEHZ
a development project, net PR BE AR (6,452) -
Write-down of stock of properties MEFEZRE 681 2,549
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries P /8 2 B AR 2 1R 10,678 -
Exchange gain, net P 5 a5 78 (13,080) (11,227)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #ZEaRE&FREXR
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

Operating cash flows before movements in
working capital

Decrease in stock of properties

Decrease (increase) in inventories

Decrease in debtors, deposits, other receivables
and prepayments

(Increase) decrease in financial assets measured
at fair value through profit or loss

Decrease in securities trading receivables
and deposits

Decrease (increase) in sales proceeds
held by stakeholders

Decrease in creditors and accruals

Decrease in securities trading and margin payable

Increase (decrease) in deposits and

receipts in advance

Cash (used in) generated from
operating activities

Income tax paid, net

Net cash (used in) generated from

operating activities

KERBRE
MEFERD
FER A (35hn)
fEY BRI R E b RURBRIA K
TEA SRR
BRBHEARRIFEFEZ
SRERE (88n) RS
e E 7 2 5 BRIE S T K
D
RE AT HE S HUR
B ()
JEA BRI K JE SRR RL A
RNERRHERARRE SR
e MIEWRIA
g Omd)

(AR REREEBz2ES
EENR RS TIEE |

(AR)REREXBZREFR
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Notes

ot

2019 2018
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FAT
487,750 532,971
- 71,064
859 (527)
238,655 307,085
(1,416,954) 2,798,134
5,536 90,114
32,341 (42,217)
(100,291) (90,149)
(11,049) (94,688)
3,034 (16,621)
(760,119) 3,555,166
(78,305) (388,284)
(838,424) 3,166,882




Investing activities

Dividends received from listed and unlisted
investments

Dividends received from associates

Interest received

Payments for investment properties

Payments for purchases of equipment and
leasehold improvement

Proceeds from disposals of equipment

Subscription of equity interest in a joint venture

Advances to associates

Advances from associates

Advance to a joint venture

Advances to investee companies

Repayments from an investee company

(Increase) decrease in pledged deposits

Increase in time deposits with maturity greater
than three months

Payments for stock of properties

Net proceeds from disposals of financial assets
measured at fair value through profit or loss

Purchase of a financial asset measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Net proceed from disposal of a financial
asset measured at fair value through other

comprehensive income

Net cash generated from investing

activities

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #ZERE&REXR
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

REXEH
BRETRIELTREZ
e
EYRE & R R 2 IR
[EEEs)
XN REWESRIA
IBEREBELREENERE
IR
HERBREHRA
RE-—HABERRZBAERE
BNl NCI S|
HRAWE DR ZHE
BN —EAERRZHIA
BNEREERBZHE
BEE —REIREQRF ZHE
IR FRZ ()R
FRYPZNR=EAZ
TE B TE BRI h0
X MEFERA
HERBERARMRAFEFE
ZEBEEZISHREFE
BEBBHEMEE R
NRBRAVEFEZSRERE
HERBEMEE RS
AR AFEFEZ
SREEZ S HRIBFE

om

REREXBZREFH

Notes

ot

2019 2018
HK$"000 HK$'000
F&ET FAT
- 1,106,820

48,212 61,500
694,870 809,407
(861) -
(32,449) (2,130)

8 1,563
- (150)
(151) (55)
40,800 29,200
(4,600) (154,218)
(155,787) (46,350)
1,070,752 54,000
(39,154) 18,344
(44,959) (19,876)
(886) (15,136)
139,254 -
(2,281) (546,352)

- 473,558
1,712,768 1,770,125
—E-NEEHR EABEXESE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS #ZEaRE&FREXR
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HIEFE

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
3t FERT FAERT
Financing activities MEXEH
Dividends paid BERRE (209,838) (209,838)
Dividend paid to a non-controlling shareholder B —FEIEERERRR S (50,000) -
Interest on bank borrowings and BfTRTEERAEMEEZ
other borrowings paid FE (374,926) (343,343)
Payments for lease liabilities (including interest) ~ S NHE&E (B2EFE) (11,600) -
New bank borrowings and MIBRITEER
other borrowings raised HEMEE 7.172,415 7,859,842
Loans from a director raised FIEEEE R - 410,229
Repayments of bank borrowings and BERETEER
other borrowings EMEE (7.570,936) (10,347,409)
Repayments of loans from a director BEEEEXN - (2,245,346)
Repayment to a non-controlling shareholder B8 —FIEERR R 2 RIB (23,924) (25,000)
Net cash used in financing activities ARBEXB 2 REFHE (1,068,809) (4,900,865)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and ReERREEEEARZ
cash equivalents CRA) B hniF R (194,465) 36,142
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—B—-HB2ZRERRELEEER 605,872 570,578
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes Exgg o e 1,783 (848)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=ZA=+—-HZ
31 December RERRESEEER 413,190 605,872
Analysis of the balances of cash and ReRBESESEEBEEESRIN
cash equivalents
Time deposits, bank balances and cash EHGFHR RITEHB LIRS 565,319 714,572
Less: Time deposits with maturity greater than W ERHER=EAZ
three months EEIE R 31(0) (152,129) (108,700)
413,190 605,872

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated #R& M EHEAM TG EYBREN—E 5 -

financial statements.

110 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEPHHRERME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BEZE =T —hF+ A=+ —HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in Bermuda
with limited liability and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”). The addresses of the
Company's registered office and principal office in Hong Kong are
disclosed in the section head “Corporate Information” of this annual
report. Details of the substantial shareholders of the Company
are disclosed in the paragraph headed “Substantial Shareholders’
Interests in the Securities of the Company” in the section headed

"Directors’ Report” of this annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar ("HK$"), which is same as the functional currency of the
Company and all amounts are rounded to the nearest thousand
(HK$'000) except otherwise indicated.

The Company's principal activity is investment holding and the
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 48

and its principal associates and joint venture are set out in Note 49.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs

The accounting policies adopted in these consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 are consistent
with those followed in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“Group”) for the

year ended 31 December 2018 except as described below.

1.

—REH

ARBRR—HRBRETMR L2 ER AR
RE EROREBBARZAER AR ([H
R Ef e ARBZ MM ERREELE
MERZHU R AFRIABEM] —FPF
AT AR ETERRZHBRAFRE
ZEREET | —HP[EERERERRZE
FhEm| —BRATARKE-

REEEMBHRRABT (BT 25 BT
NRARBZNER,  BBRZBHAIN
BRBEHOBRAAZEREOZ TRE(TE

JT) e

ARB 2 TEXEBRITEER METE2WE
RAZ EBEBEIINH T48 AR X B R
REAIRAEBRR 2 EBEBHTINMH 49 -

R REEIT TR BER

H2EA

BTdEN BE-Z-AF+_A=1+—H
LEFEZGAVBRRMER G BRE
BERARAREMBAR ([REEDH#HEZ
E-N\F+_RA=1+"HILFEZGELUB
WRATIKEE 2

“E-NEFFHR FEAEXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Cont'd)

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time, the
following new Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard ("HKFRS"),
new interpretation and amendments to existing HKFRSs (“2019
new HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA"), which are effective for the current financial
year of the Group. The 2019 new HKFRSs adopted by the Group in
these consolidated financial statements are set out below:

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015-2017 Cycle

HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKAS 19 (Amendments) Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
Settlement

HKAS 28 (Amendments) Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

HKFRS 16 Leases
Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the identification
of lease arrangements and accounting treatments for both lessors
and lessees. HKFRS 16 superseded Hong Kong Accounting
Standard ("HKAS") 17 “Leases” and the related interpretations
when it became effective. The standard sets out the principles
for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of
leases and requires lessees to account for most leases under a
single lessee accounting model. It distinguishes leases and service
contracts on the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled
by a customer. In addition, HKFRS 16 requires sales and leaseback
transactions to be determined based on the requirements of
HKFRS 15 “Revenue from Contracts with Customers” as to whether
the transfer of the relevant asset should be accounted as a sale.
HKFRS 16 also includes requirements relating to subleases and

lease modifications.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019 (Cont'd)

Subject to limited exceptions for short-term leases and low-value
assets, distinctions of operating and finance leases are removed
for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model where a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding liability have to be recognised for
all leases by lessees. However, the standard does not significantly

change the accounting of lessors.

The Group adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified restrospective
method of adoption with the date of initial application of 1 January
2019. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard
recognised at the date of initial application and the comparative
information for 2018 was not restated. The Group elected to
use the transition practical expedient allowing the standard to be
applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) — Int 4 “Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease” at the date of initial application.

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for office premises and equipment.
As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as operating
leases. Under HKFRS 16, the Group applies a single approach to
recognise and measure right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all
leases, except for two elective exemptions for leases of low-value
assets (elected on a lease-by-lease basis) and short-term leases
(elected by class of underlying asset). The Group has elected not
to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for (i) leases of
low-value assets; and (i) leases, that at the commencement date,
have a lease term of twelve months or less. Accordingly, the Group
recognises the lease payments associated with those leases as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. In addition,
lease payments in relation to lease liability are allocated into a
principal and an interest portion which are presented as financing
cash flows in the consolidated statement of cash flows by the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-Z

“NEFTZA=t—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED 2.

HKFRSs (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019 (Cont'd)
Impacts on transition

In accordance with the transitional provision under HKFRS 16, the
Group applied the simplified transition approach on 1 January
2019. Lease liabilities were recognised at the present value of
the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee's
incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application. All right-
of-use assets were measured at the amount of lease liabilities on
adoption (adjusted for any prepaid or accrued lease expenses, if

any).

In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the
following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

. applied the short-term lease recognition exemption to leases
with lease term that ends within twelve months at the date of

initial application; and

. excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the

right-of-use assets at the date of initial application.

The impacts arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 as at 1 January
2019 are as follows:

Assets BE

Increase in right-of-use assets ERAEEEEM
Properties L7ES
Equipment B

Liabilities =L

Increase in lease liabilities HEAaREEM
Non-current portion SERENEL 5
Current portion MENER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& Bt 3R &R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+-_A=+—HIEFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019 (Cont'd)
Impacts on transition (Cont'd)

The weighted average discount rate applied to the lease liabilities
on 1 January 2019 was 2.73%. The lease liabilities as at 1 January

2019 reconciled to the operating lease commitments as at

31 December 2018 is as follows:

BRI RGBT TR BER

#E B

HER @)
ERUBR SN E 163 —HE (B)

e N - AEERAZEHEE (B
BEEE ()

—h&—A— EUTFHWE%\:@ 2 m
$E$i’75£fﬁi7%273ﬁ —nEF—HA—
EIZ%EEE%&?F’:‘f?—)\E-I—:H:‘T’—
AzaEREREZHERENT

HK$'000
FA&T

Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 R-ZT— \F+-A=+—HZEEHERIE 20,138
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases B B EHE 2 A (1,688)

Leases not yet commenced on 1 January 2019 —NWE—-A—BrKRRAKBZEE (10,375)

8,075
Discounted operating lease commitments, —NWF—A—BERHEERE
lease liabilities recognised as at 1 January 2019 (EEEE@%%EE%%) 7,825
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019 (Cont'd)
Summary of new accounting policies

As a result of the adoption of HKFRS 16, the new accounting
policies of the Group which have been applied from the date of

initial application are set out below:
Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement
date of the lease (i.e. the date which the underlying asset is
available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use
assets includes the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial
direct costs incurred, estimated costs to be incurred by the lessee
in restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease incentives received.
Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the
leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised right-of-
use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of its estimated useful life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets

are subject to impairment.
Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises
lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed

payments (including in-substance fixed lease payments).

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses
the incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date
if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is
increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the
lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease
liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification (i.e. a change
in future lease payments arising from change in an index or rate,
a change in the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in the assessment to purchase the

underlying asset).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd)
Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019 (Cont'd)
Summary of new accounting policies (Cont'd)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to short-term leases of assets (i.e. those leases that have a lease
term of twelve months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). The Group also applies the
lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office
equipment that are considered as low value. Lease payments on
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as

an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Significant judgment in determining the lease term of contracts with

termination option

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term
of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.
The Group has the option, under some of its leases, to terminate
the lease with prior written notice without any compensation. The
Group applies judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise the option to terminate. That is, the Group
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it
to exercise the termination option. After the commencement date,
the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event
or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its

ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Cont'd)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Cont'd)

Accounting policies applied from 1 January 2019 (Cont'd)
Amounts recognised in consolidated financial statements

The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and lease

liabilities and the movements during the year ended 31 December

2019 are as follows:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HIEFE

R KRBT ERBM B

£ 28| )

EEMBREENE16N-HE (B)
ZE-NF-—F-—HBERZETHE (&)
REGEHBREF BRZ 2H
ZIK'%IZEWEEQF&%E%\@ ZIREER

REBEE-Z-NF+-_A=1+—HLFER
Z“@MZDT:

Right-of-use Lease

assets liabilities

ERAEEE HESE

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT FET

At 1 January 2019 —hE—H—H 7,825 7,825

Additions NE 148,754 134,743

Depreciation (Note 14) E (M5E14) (19,680) -

Interest expense (Note 11) B (FFFET) - 1,086
Lease payments HER - (11,600)

At 31 December 2019 R-ZB-NE+=A=+—8H 136,899 132,054

Analysed for reporting purpose as: ERE Rk 2 DT

Non-current FERBIE 136,899 84,125

Current mEEE - 47,929

136,899 132,054

The Group recognised rental expenses from short-term leases of
approximately HK$37,602,000 (Note 14) during the year ended
31 December 2019

Save as disclosed above, the application of the 2019 new HKFRSs
had no material effect on how the results and financial position for
the current or prior accounting periods are prepared and presented.

Accordingly, no prior period adjustment has been required.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019

REE-ZE—NF+-_A=+—HBLFEAN"
AEEERCHEE 22X 437,602,000
BT (MsE14) ©

BREXFEZREN BAZS—NENES
MR ERA T g AT HEBT s
HEzXERUBRRZHEREENFAE
REAYE WHEFDRTHEAE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDED
HKFRSs (Cont'd)

The Group has not early adopted the following new HKFRS and
amendments to existing HKFRSs (“new and amended HKFRSs")

that have been issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business'

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and Interest Rate Benchmark Reform?

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

(Amendments) an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture?
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®
HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material?
(Amendments)

! Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for
which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the
first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be
determined

In addition to the above new and amended HKFRSs, a revised
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting was issued in 2018.
Its consequential amendments, the Amendments to References to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are in the process of
assessing the potential impact of the new and amended HKFRSs
but are not yet in a position to determine whether the new and
amended HKFRSs will have a significant impact on how the Group's
results of operations and financial position are prepared and
presented. The new and amended HKFRSs may result in changes in
the future as to how the results and financial position are prepared

and presented.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, HKASs and Interpretations) issued by the
HKICPA and accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong. In addition, these consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622).

The Group had net operating cash outflows of approximately
HK$838,424,000 for the year ended 31 December 2019, and as of
that date, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets
by approximately HK$1,138,575,000 (2018: HK$2,749,823,000).
Notwithstanding the above result, these consolidated financial

statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

The management closely monitors the Group's financial
performance and liquidity position. The validity of the going concern
basis depends upon the success of the Group's future operations,
its ability to generate adequate cash flows in order to meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due, and its ability to
refinance or restructure its borrowings such that the Group can

meet its future working capital and financing requirements.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had unutilised bank facilities.
Based on the latest communications with the banks, the Directors
are not aware of any intention of the principal banks to withdraw
their bank facilities or require early repayment of the borrowings,
and the Directors believe that the existing bank facilities will be
renewed or roll-overed when their current terms expire given
the good track records and relationships the Group has with
the banks. Further, the Group has unutilised loan facility from
a Director. In addition, the Group held a portfolio of securities
investments and treasury products presented as non-current
assets as at 31 December 2019 in aggregate of approximately
HK$20,186,103,000 of which approximately HK$1,051,880,000
will be realised into cash as the debt securities were contracted for

sale under the transaction as disclosed in Note 51(ii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

The Directors have reviewed the Group's cash flow projections
prepared by the management. The cash flow projections cover
a period of not less than twelve months from 31 December
2019. Based on the cash flow projections, the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due in the coming twelve months from
31 December 2019. The management has made key assumptions
on the projections with regard to the anticipated cash flows from
the Group's operations, capital expenditures and the continuous
availability of bank facilities. The Group's ability to achieve the
projected cash flows depends on the continuous availability of bank

facilities from the banks.

In view of the above, the Directors are of the opinion that there will
be sufficient financial resources available to the Group to enable
it to meet its liabilities as and when they fall due and to continue
as a going concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared these

consolidated financial statements on a going concern basis.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for certain properties and financial
instruments, which are measured at their fair values as explained in

the accounting policies set out below.
Fair value measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability,
the Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement
date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that are within
the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”, leasing transactions
that are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1
January 2019) or HKAS 17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or

value-in-use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of Assets”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value

measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the

degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are

observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurements in its entirety, which are described as follows:

Level 1: inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;

Level 2: inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3: inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

(a) Basis of consolidation

Subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities (including
structured entities) controlled by the Company and its
subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company: (i) has
power over the investee; (ii) is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and

(i) has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to

one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the profit or loss from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-ZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(a)

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

the profit or loss as incurred.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially
measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of
measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified
in another HKFRS.

Total comprehensive income and expense of subsidiaries is
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-
controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling

interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in

line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of

the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(a

Basis of consolidation (Cont'd)

Subsidiaries (Cont'd)

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in

existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries that do not result in the Group losing control
over the subsidiaries are accounted for as equity transactions.
The carrying amounts of the Group's interests and the non-
controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiaries. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests
are adjusted and the fair value of the consideration paid or
received is recognised directly in equity and attributed to

owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any retained
interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any
non-controlling interests. All amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in relation to that subsidiary
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary, that is, reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs. The fair value
of any investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost that is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
“Financial Instruments”, when applicable, the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint

venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising from an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any (see the

accounting policy above).

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after
reassessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer's previously held equity interest in the acquiree
(if any), the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss

as a bargain purchase gain.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs")
(or groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A CGU to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for
impairment annually, or more frequently when there is
indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable
amount of the CGU is less than its carrying amount, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to
the other assets of the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment
loss for goodwill is recognised directly in profit or loss. An
impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in

subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant CGU, the attributable amount of
goodwill is included in the determination of the gain or loss

on disposal.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-Z

“NEFTZA=t—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(9

Investments accounted for using the equity method

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee

but is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities

require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates and joint
ventures are incorporated in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting, except
when the investment, or a portion thereof, is classified
as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current Assets Held for Sale
and Discontinued Operations”. Under the equity method,
an investment in an associate or a joint venture is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share
of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate or joint venture. When the Group's share of losses
of an associate or a joint venture exceeds the Group's interest
in that associate or joint venture (which includes any long-
term interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's
net investment in the associate or joint venture), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses. Additional
losses are recognised only to the extent that the Group has
incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments

on behalf of the associate or joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(9

Investments accounted for using the equity method
(Cont'd)

An investment in an associate or a joint venture is accounted
for using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate or a joint venture. On
acquisition of the investment in an associate or a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is

acquired.

The requirements of HKFRS 9 are applied to determine
whether it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss
with respect to the Group's investment in an associate or a
joint venture. When necessary, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value-in-use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any
impairment loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount
of the investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that
the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently

increases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(9

Investments accounted for using the equity method
(Cont'd)

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method from
the date when the investment ceases to be an associate or a
joint venture, or when the investment (or a portion thereof) is
classified as held for sale. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate or joint venture and the retained
interest is a financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition in accordance with
HKFRS 9. The difference between the carrying amount of
the associate or joint venture at the date the equity method
was discontinued and the fair value of any retained interest
and any proceeds from disposing of a part interest in the
associate or joint venture is included in the determination of
the gain or loss on disposal of the associate or joint venture.
In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to
that associate or joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that associate or joint venture had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain
or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income
by that associate or joint venture would be reclassified to
profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or liabilities,
the Group reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit
or loss (as a reclassification adjustment) when the equity

method is discontinued.

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate or a joint venture but the Group continues to use
the equity method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss
the proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would be
reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the related

assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-ZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(9

(d)

(e)

Investments accounted for using the equity method
(Cont'd)

When a group entity transacts with an associate or a joint
venture of the Group (such as a sale or contribution of
assets), profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the associate or joint venture are recognised in the Group's
consolidated financial statements only to the extent of
interests in the associate or joint venture that are not related

to the Group.

Impairment losses (other than goodwill and intangible

assets with indefinite useful lives)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible assets and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset
is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is

recognised immediately in profit or loss.

When an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an

impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation including land held for
a currently undetermined future use. On initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are measured at fair value.
Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss for the

period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(e)

Investment properties (Cont'd)

Leasehold land held for undetermined future use is regarded
as held for capital appreciation purpose and classified as an
investment property, and carried at fair value. Changes in fair
value of the leasehold land are recognised directly in profit or

loss for the period in which changes take place.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposal. Any gain or loss arising from derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the property) is
included in profit or loss for the period in which the property

is derecognised.

An investment property is transferred at fair value to property,
plant and equipment when the property begins to be
occupied by the owner or of development with a view to
owner-occupation. Gain or loss arising from change in fair
value of the investment property upon the transfer is included

in profit or loss.

An owner-occupied property is transferred from property,
plant and equipment to investment properties at fair value
when it is evidenced by the end of owner-occupation. The
difference between the carrying amount and the fair value
at the date of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive
income and accounted for as a revaluation increase or
decrease in accordance with HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment”. On the subsequent sale or retirement of assets,
the relevant revaluation reserve is transferred directly to

retained profits.

A property is transferred from investment property to stock
of properties when, and only when, there is a change in use,
evidenced by commencement of development with a view to
sale. Any difference between the fair value of the property at
the date of change in use and its previous carrying amount is

recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

®

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of property,
plant and equipment (other than properties under
development) over their estimated useful lives and after
taking into account their estimated residual values, using the

straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Basis

Type

Leasehold land Over the remaining lives of the
leases

Buildings Over the shorter of the
remaining unexpired period
of the lease and 40 years

Leasehold improvement Over the shorter of lease terms

and 6 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3 to 10 years
equipment

Yachts and motor vehicles 3 to 10 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising from derecognition of the asset (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in

the period in which the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(8)

(h)

Stock of properties

Stock of properties including completed properties which
are held-for-trading, is stated at the lower of cost and net

realisable value.

The cost of completed properties held for sale is determined
by apportionment of the total development costs, including
borrowing costs capitalised, attributable to unsold units.
Net realisable value is estimated by the management of
the Group based on prevailing market conditions, which
represents the estimated selling price less estimated costs to

be incurred in selling the property.

The amount of any write-down of or provision for completed
properties held for sale is recognised as an expense in the
period when the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down or provision, arising from an
increase in net realisable value, is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of completed properties held for sale
recognised as an expense in the period in which the reversal

occurs.

Inventories

Inventories comprise finished goods and raw materials for
cosmetic products, which are stated at the lower of cost and

net realisable value.

Cost represents the invoiced cost of inventories. Costs are
assigned to individual items on the weighted-average basis.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling

expenses.
Intangible assets

Trading rights, exchange rights and trademark

Trading rights, gold and silver exchange rights and trademark
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less any

identified impairment loss. The amortisation period adopted

for intangible assets is 5 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-ZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when a
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the financial instruments. Financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially measured at fair value. A financial asset
or financial liability (unless it is a trade receivable without a
significant financing component) is initially measured at fair
value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable
without a significant financing component is initially measured

at the transaction price.

Financial assets

All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending

on the classification of the financial assets.

(1) Cassification and measurement

Debt instruments that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at amortised cost less
impairment loss (except for debt investments that are

designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition):

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order

to collect contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial assets (Cont'd)
() dassification and measurement (Cont'd)

A financial asset shall be measured at FVTOC!I if both of

the following conditions are met:

. the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
collecting contractual cash flows and selling

financial assets; and

. the contractual terms of the financial asset give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the

principal amount outstanding.
All other financial assets that are other than those

categorised as amortised cost and FVTOCI above, are

categorised as measured at FVTPL

(1) Amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method
of calculating the amortised cost of a debt
instrument and allocating interest income over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected
life of the debt instrument or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount at

initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised using effective
interest method for debt instruments measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income
is recognised in profit or loss and is included in
revenue, other income or investment income as

appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

®

Classification and measurement (Cont'd)

@

Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

According to HKFRS 9, the Group may make
an irrevocable election (on an instrument-by-
instrument basis) to designate investments in
equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at
FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity investment
is held-for-trading. A financial asset is held-for-
trading if it has been acquired principally for the
purpose of selling it in the near term or it is a
derivative that is not designated and effective as

a hedging instrument.

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
initially measured at fair value plus transaction
costs. Subsequently, they are measured at fair
value with gains and losses arising from changes
in fair value recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in the financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note

5(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss

and is included in investment income.

The Group has designated all investments in
equity instruments (listed or unlisted) that are
not held-for-trading as at FVTOCI since the
application of HKFRS 9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

3. FTESHHREEEw

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

®

Classification and measurement (Cont'd)

3

Financial assets measured at FVTPL

Financial assets measured at FVTPL comprise
derivatives that are not designated and effective
as hedging instruments and club and corporate

debentures.

Investments in equity instruments are classified
as FVTPL, unless the Group designates such
investment that is not held-for-trading as at
FVTOCI on initial recognition (see (i)(2) above).

Debt instruments that do not meet the
amortised cost and FVTOCI criteria (see above)
are measured at FVTPL. In addition, debt
instruments that meet the amortised cost criteria
but are designated as at FVTPL are measured
at FVTPL. A debt instrument may be designated
as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if such
designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that
would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognising the gains and losses on

them on different bases.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

®

(i)

Classification and measurement (Cont'd)

(3) Financial assets measured at FVTPL (Cont'd)

Financial assets measured at FVTPL are
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting
period, with any gains or losses arising from
remeasurement recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
is included in investment income. Fair value is
determined in the manner described in Note

5(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Interest income on debt instruments at FVTPL
is recognised in profit or loss and is included in

investment income.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected
credit losses (“ECLs") on financial assets measured at
amortised cost. An impairment gain or loss, the amount
of ECLs (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss
allowance at reporting date is recognised in profit or

loss.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount
equal to lifetime ECLs. For trade receivables, the Group
applies the simplified approach to providing for ECLs
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which requires the use of the

lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-Z

“NEFTZA=t—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Group considers
reasonable and supportable information that is relevant
and available without undue cost or effort. This includes
both quantitative and qualitative information and
analysis, based on the Group's historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including forward-

looking information.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible
default events over the expected life of a financial

instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result
from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the

instrument is less than 12 months).
In all cases, the maximum period considered when
estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period

over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument's external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market

indicators of credit risk;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the

debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor's ability to

meet its debt obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-Z

“NEFTZA=t—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Significant increase in credit risk (Cont'd)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the

amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is

more appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has been
placed under liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy
proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, when
the amounts are over 1 year past due, whichever
occurs sooner, unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate a later period
is more appropriate. Financial assets written off may
still be subject to enforcement activities under the
Group's recovery procedures, taking into account legal
advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes a
derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are

recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses over the expected life of the financial assets. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference
between the contractual cash flows that are due to the
entity in accordance with the contract and the cash

flows that the entity expects to receive).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Credit-impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses on a
forward-looking basis whether financial assets carried at
amortised cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
“credit-impaired” when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows

of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired

includes observable data of the following events:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or

issuer;

a breach of contract such as a default or past

due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower's
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not

otherwise consider; or

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial re-
organisation, or the disappearance of an active
market for a security because of financial
difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial assets (Cont'd)

(i)

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or,
the financial assets are transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the financial assets to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset, except for an
investment in equity instrument that is classified as
FVTOCI, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and

receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
that is classified as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or
loss previously accumulated in the financial assets
measured at FVTOCI reserve is not reclassified to profit

or loss, but is transferred to retained profits.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

®

Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or equity instruments according to the substance
of the contractual arrangements entered into and
the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4R& Bt 3R &R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)
(1) Cassification and measurement (Cont'd)

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The Group's financial
liabilities are generally classified into (i) financial
liabilities at FVTPL and (ii) other financial liabilities
subsequently measured at amortised cost. The
accounting policies adopted in respect of financial

liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

(1) Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities at FVTPL, representing those
as held-for-trading, comprise derivatives that
are not designated and effective as hedging

instruments.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value arising from
remeasurement recognised directly in profit or

loss in the period in which they arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)

3. FESHHREEEw

1)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)

(1) Cassification and measurement (Cont'd)

(2) Other financial liabilities subsequently measured

at amortised cost and effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of

calculating the amortised cost of a financial

liability and allocating interest expense over the

relevant period. The effective interest rate is

the rate that exactly discounts estimated future

cash payments (including all fees and points

paid or received that form an integral part of the

effective interest rate, transaction costs and other

premiums or discounts) through the expected

life of the financial liability or, where appropriate,

a shorter period, to the net carrying amount at

initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised using effective

interest method for financial liabilities, other than

those financial liabilities at FVTPL.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective

interest method. Interest expense that is not

capitalised as part of costs of an asset is included

in finance costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4R& Bt 3R &R M &

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(j) Financial instruments (Cont'd)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Cont'd)
(1) Cassification and measurement (Cont'd)
(3) Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct

issue costs.

Consideration paid to repurchase the Company's
own equity instruments is deducted from equity.
No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on
the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the

Company's own equity instruments.
(i) Derecognition of financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
Group's obligation specified in the relevant contract
is discharged, cancelled or expires. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profit or loss.
Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured to their fair value at the end of the reporting
period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss

immediately.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-ZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

(k)

Financial instruments (Cont'd)

Financial guarantee contract

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to
make payment when due in accordance with the original or

modified terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured initially at
their fair values and, if not designated as at FVTPL and do not
arise from a transfer of an asset, are measured subsequently
at the higher of:

the amount of the loss allowance determined in
accordance with HKFRS 9 (see financial assets above);

and

the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate,
the cumulative amount of income recognised in

accordance with the principles of HKFRS 15.

Revenue recognition

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is

transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of

the following criteria is met:

the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as

the Group performs;

the Group's performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs; or

the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance

completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional

right to consideration.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to transfer
goods or services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due)

from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a contract

are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-ZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(k)

Revenue recognition (Cont'd)

Revenue from sale of properties held for sale in the ordinary
course of business is recognised when the legal assignment
is completed, which is the point in time when the purchaser
has the ability to direct the use of the property and obtain
substantially all of the remaining benefits of the property.

Rental income, including rental invoiced in advance from
properties under operating leases, is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant

lease.

Sales of securities investments are recognised on a trade date

basis.

Brokerage income on dealings in securities and futures
contracts is recognised at the point in time when the relevant

contract notes are executed.

Management fee income is recognised in accordance with
terms of respective agreements over the relevant period in

which the services are rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the

Group's right to receive payment has been established.

Revenue from sales of cosmetic products is recognised at the
point in time when goods are delivered and titles have been

passed.

Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time
basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
effective interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying

amount at initial recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently

payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit before tax as reported
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively

enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other
assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and join venture, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-ZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

)

(m)

Taxation (Cont'd)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow all or part of the assets to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised. Current and
deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business
combination, the tax effect is included in the accounting for

the business combination.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate
to income taxes levied by the same tax authority and the
entity intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a

net basis.

Leasing

Upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with

transition in Note 2

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of

time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently

changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd)

(m) #HE(H)

Upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with
transition in Note 2 (Cont'd)

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative standalone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of

the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to short-term leases of assets (i.e. those leases
that have a lease term of twelve months or less from
the commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option). The Group also applies the lease of low-value
assets recognition exemption to lease of office equipment
that are considered as low value. Lease payments on short-
term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as

expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHEREw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd) (m) #HE(H)

Upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with
transition in Note 2 (Cont'd)

RIEMF22 B RIKXEAE B BERE
EREI6% (&)

The Group as a lessee (Cont'd) TEBMBEBA (B)
Right-of-use assets EHEERE

The Group recognises right-of-use assets at the
commencement date of the lease (i.e. the date which the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are
measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement
of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, estimated costs to be incurred by the lessee in
restoring the underlying asset to the condition required by
the terms and conditions of the lease, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease
term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term. Right-of-use assets are subject to

impairment.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line item

in the consolidated statement of financial position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use

assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4R& Bt 3R &R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HIEFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHEREw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd) (m) #HE(H)

Upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with
transition in Note 2 (Cont'd)

The Group as a lessee (Cont'd)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily

determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed lease

payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

. amounts expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to

terminate the lease.
After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities

is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced

for the lease payments made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& Bt 3R &R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3. FESTHEREw

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd) (m) #HE(H)

Upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with
transition in Note 2 (Cont'd)

The Group as a lessee (Cont'd)

Lease liabilities (Cont'd)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)

whenever:

change in the lease term or change in the assessment
of exercise of a purchase option to purchase the
underlying asset, in which case the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the date of

reassessment.

. change in lease payments arising from change in an
index or rate or expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease

payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item in

the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability based
on the lease term of the modified lease by discounting the
revised lease payments using a revised discount rate at the

effective date of the modification.

RIEH 22 B BKX EFE B HIRE
ERIZ165 (&)

FEBAREEA (B)

HEERE (&)

WHERATER AREEHAERE
BE (WL AARE AR E(E L HEH

)

Mz ESABEREEEZTT
FREEEER ERLERE &
ZERT REFFEEH G
HERRERKETMARME
RIEFTHENREHTE -

© EEENRE-RERRAES
B s BR B EAETER R
EHTHRLH AEMEEAE
ERNS 2 MR EMREE T
B REHEE -

HERBERAREGSMBIMABES
IABEFIRA 25 -

HEEH

HRTMER—REBHEEARZEER
B AKERBEEEREECHAEH
AEMEAE ESARERENRE
MEA 2 EERTRR R REETHE
B

“E-NEFFHR FEAEXEE

155



156

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(m) Leasing (Cont'd)

(m) HAE (&)

Upon application of HKFRS 16 in accordance with
transition in Note 2 (Cont'd)

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term

Prior to 1 January 2019

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases is charged to profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to
enter into an operating lease are recognised as a reduction of

rental expense over the lease term on a straight-line basis.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in profit
or loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the relevant
lease. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised as an expense on a straight-line

basis over the lease term
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R &

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-ZF

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(n)

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded
at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are

not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising from the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising from a monetary
item that forms part of the Company’s net investment in a
foreign operation, in which case, the exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive income and will be
reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the
foreign operation. Exchange differences arising from the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value are
included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise,
except for exchange differences arising from the retranslation
of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, in
which case, the exchange differences are also recognised

directly in other comprehensive income.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) using the exchange rate prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Income and expense items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period, unless
exchange rates fluctuate significantly during that period, in
which case, the exchange rates at the dates of transactions
are used. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
translation reserve. Such exchange differences are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign operation is

disposed of.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(n)

(0)

Foreign currencies (Cont'd)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the
Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a disposal
involving loss of control over a subsidiary that includes a
foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of joint control
over a joint venture that includes a foreign operation, or
a disposal involving loss of significant influence over an
associate that includes a foreign operation), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in the translation reserve
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the

Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary that does not
result in the Group losing control over the subsidiary, the
proportionate share of accumulated exchange differences is
reattributed to non-controlling interests and is not recognised
in profit or loss. For partial disposals of associates or joint
venture that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence or joint control, the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to profit or

loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases
when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use

or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019

REMBRRME

3. FTESHHREEEw

(m)

(o)

S ()

RHEERINER (AEEREERHEI
Xz eibEs AHESRKRELH
BRINES 2 B AR 2 FEHI#E -
EPRREHBEBRINEB 2EERT
ZHRRGIRE R ESRREHESR
BHINE M ERRZEATEN) B
A RRHEA ABIEZEBREL HR
R MBELZEREN D EE RS-

i 5 & BB P B R R L AR G BALE K
EHH B AR 2SR RIRLE OIS R
BEAEZRENBRAIFERER M
Y ARBEFER-RHEFOBER
ARABERRAMERENAEBREE
REE NI RERIRE - AR L OIS 3
HRBELZRENHAEEE-

BERAE

REE Bl fERANREREER
REMBRIEEZLAEREEZEERE
HIEERARIARZEEEZRA -
ERSAEEG LEERTEREHAMH
HER EERAETBEERL-

mAEREMEERAREEHRNIERD
R -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(p)

(@

(r)

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes
are recognised as expenses when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable that the
Group will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable

estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle
the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present

value of those cash flows.

Related parties

(i) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is

related to the Group if that person:

(1) has control or joint control of the Group;

(2) has significant influence over the Group; or

(3) is a member of the key management personnel

of the Group or the Group's parent.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-Z

“NEFTZA=t—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(r) Related parties (Cont'd)

(i)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the following

conditions applies:

M

@

€)

)

®)

©)

)

®

the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the

others).

one entity is an associate or a joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or a joint venture of
a member of a group of which the other entity is

a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group. If the Group is
itself such a plan, the sponsoring employers are

also related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a

person identified in (i).

a person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

(U]

(s)

Related parties (Cont'd)

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services
or obligations between the Group and a related party,

regardless of whether a price is charged.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be

influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events
that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount
of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it

will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. A
contingent asset is not recognised but is disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when an inflow
of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually

certain, an asset is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contd)

®

(u)

Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal management reporting provided to the
chief operating decision-makers. Segment assets consist
primarily of investment properties, financial assets and other
assets. Segment liabilities comprise financial liabilities and
other liabilities. The Group evaluates performance on the
basis of profit or loss from operations after tax expense and
non-controlling interests but not including the major non-
cash items. The major non-cash items are unrealised fair
value changes on investment properties and other properties
together with their, if applicable, respective deferred tax,
and impairment loss of goodwill. No intersegment revenue
is accounted for as the intersegment revenue is mainly the

rental income for administrative purpose.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the consolidated statement of
financial position in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company's shareholders or directors, where

appropriate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-ZF

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS

AND ESTIMATES

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are
described in Note 3, the management of the Group is required to
make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based
on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be

relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if

the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies

The followings are the critical judgments, apart from those involving
estimations, that the management of the Group has made in the
process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in these

consolidated financial statements.

Fair value of unquoted financial assets measured at
Fvroci

As described in Note 5(c), the management of the Group uses
its judgments in selecting an appropriate valuation technique for
financial instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are applied.
The Group's unlisted equity securities with carrying amounts of
approximately HK$1,603,891,000 (2018: HK$1,200,307,000) are
valued using a discounted cash flow analysis and with reference
to the fair values of the underlying properties and assets based
on assumptions supported, where possible, by observable market
prices or rates. The estimation of fair value of these unlisted equity
securities also includes some assumptions not supported by

observable market prices or rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (contd)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (Cont'd)
Impairment loss in respect of trade and other receivables

The Group determines the impairment loss in respect of trade and
other receivables based on the ECLs. Impairment loss in respect of
trade receivables is assessed on lifetime ECL while other receivables
is assessed on 12-month ECLs as there had been no significant

increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

The policy for impairment loss in respect of trade and other
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and aging analysis of accounts and on management's judgment.
A considerable amount of judgment is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these receivables, including the current
creditworthiness and the past collection history of each debtor. If
the financial conditions of debtors of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their abilities to make payments,

additional allowances may be required.
Fair value of investment properties

The Group's investment properties are stated at fair value based on
the valuations performed by independent professional valuers. In
determining the fair value, the valuers have based on methods of
valuation which involve certain estimates. In relying on the valuation
reports, the management of the Group has exercised its judgments
and is satisfied that the methods of valuation are reflective of the
current market conditions, as detailed in Note 19. Should there be
any changes in assumptions due to change in market conditions,

the fair value of the investment properties will change in future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (contd)

Critical judgments in applying accounting policies (Cont'd)

Determining the lease term of contracts with termination

option

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term
of the lease, together with any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.
The Group has the option, under some of its leases, to terminate
the lease with prior written notice without any compensation. The
Group applies judgment in evaluating whether it is reasonably
certain to exercise the option to terminate. That is, the Group
considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it
to exercise the termination option. After the commencement date,
the Group reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event
or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its

ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within

the next financial year.
Deferred tax assets

As at 31 December 2019, a deferred tax asset of approximately
HK$4,108,000 (2018: HK$2,059,000) in relation to unused tax
losses has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly
depends on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where the actual
future profits generated are less than expected, a material reversal
of deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the period in

which such a reversal takes place.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-Z

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (contd)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Cont'd)
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets

The Group performs annual tests on whether there has been
impairment of goodwill and intangible assets in accordance with
the accounting policies stated in Note 3. The recoverable amounts
of CGUs are determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations require the use of estimates and assumptions made
by the management of the Group on the future operation of the
business, pre-tax discount rates, and other assumptions underlying

the value-in-use calculations.
Write-down of stock of properties

In accordance with the accounting policies as stated in Note 3, the
Group performs regular reviews on the estimated net realisable
values of the stock of properties in order to assess if, when the
estimated net realisable values declining below the corresponding
carrying amounts, any write-down of stock of properties is required.
The management of the Group has taken into account of the
prevailing market conditions, valuations or estimated unit selling
price from independent property valuers and internally available
information and exercised considerable judgments in making these

estimates.

Impairment loss in respect of investments accounted for

using the equity method

The management of the Group determines whether investments
accounted for using the equity method have suffered any
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable, according to their
recoverable amounts determined by the CGUs based on value-
in-use calculations. The determination of impairment indication
requires significant judgments, and the calculations require the use
of estimates which are subject to change of economic environment

in future.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets EMEE
Financial assets measured at fair value

through profit or loss

Financial assets measured at fair value

5. 2@ TH

(a)

BBESARRATFEREZ

BBE M2 E AR R

through other comprehensive income AP EFAEZERMEE
Amortised cost b $iIp N
Financial liabilities SREE
Amortised cost B SH P AR
Derivative financial instrument PTHESRTAE

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's major financial instruments include equity
investments, bonds, club and corporate debentures, derivative
financial instrument, advances to/from associates/joint
venture/investee companies/non-controlling shareholders,
debtors, deposits and other receivables, securities trading
receivables and deposits, pledged deposits, time deposits,
bank balances and cash, sales proceeds held by stakeholders,
borrowings, creditors and accruals, securities trading and
margin payable, lease liabilities and deposits received. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management of the Group manages and
monitors these exposures to ensure appropriate measures

are implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the Group's risk exposure
relating to financial instruments or the manner in which it

manages and measures the risks.

(b)

SRMIAER
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TAET
9,038,353 6,765,917
20,182,543 21,367,307
1,448,550 2,363,120
14,453,581 14,350,602
6,060 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk

®

Foreign currency risk

The Group is mainly exposed to foreign exchange
risk arising from future commercial transactions, and
from recognised assets and liabilities. The functional
currency of the Company and its major subsidiaries in
Hong Kong is HK$ in which most of the transactions
are denominated. The functional currencies of those
subsidiaries operating in the United Kingdom and the
PRC are Pound Sterling ("GBP") and Renminbi ("RMB")
respectively in which most of their transactions are
denominated. The Group is mainly exposed to foreign
exchange risk in respect of exchange fluctuations
of HK$ against GBP and RMB. The conversion of
RMB into other currencies is subject to the rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by
the government of the PRC. The Group currently does
not have foreign currency hedging policy in respect of
foreign currency assets and liabilities. The Group will
monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure

should the need arise.

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the

end of the reporting period is as follows:

Assets &E

United States dollar (“US$") Erx(IZEx])
GBP RE

RMB AR

Euro ("EUR") BT ([B7Tl)
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2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR
9,447,549 7,120,729
1,965,283 1,852,039
184,590 131,553
464 51




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-ZF

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

®

Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)

The Group's exposure to foreign currency risk at the

end of the reporting period is as follows: (Cont'd)

Liabilities =R
Us$ e
GBP HEE
RMB AR

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% increase and decrease in HK$ against the relevant
foreign currencies. As HK$ is pegged to US$, it is
assumed that there would be no material currency risk
exposure between US$ and HK$ and therefore US$ is

excluded from the sensitivity analysis below.

5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management's assessment of the

reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis includes outstanding foreign
currency denominated monetary items, and adjusts
their translations at the end of the reporting period for
a 5% change in foreign currency rates. The sensitivity
analysis includes external loans as well as loans to/
from foreign operations within the Group where the
denomination of the loan is in a currency other than
the functional currency of the lender or the borrower;
but excluding exposure resulting from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations into the

Group's presentation currency.

5.
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BB ()
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

() Foreign currency risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)
A positive number below indicates an increase in profit
where the relevant currencies strengthen 5% against
HK$. For a 5% weakening of the relevant currencies

against HK$, there would be an equal and opposite

impact on the profit.

Impact of -7
GBP g
RMB AR
EUR X T

There would be no material impact on the Group's
other components of equity for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018.

The net effect of the Group's sensitivity to foreign
currency risk was attributable to the Group’s monetary
assets and liabilities with exposure to foreign currency

risk at the end of the reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(i) Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group has variable-rate interest-bearing assets
and liabilities including advance to an associate, time
deposits, bank balances, sales proceeds held by a
stakeholder and a third party and borrowings and
is therefore exposed to cash flow interest rate risk.
Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in
respective notes. The Group currently does not have
interest rate hedging policy. However, the management
of the Group monitors interest rate exposure and will

consider hedging significant interest rate exposure

should the need arise.

The Group's cash flow interest rate risk is mainly
concentrated on the fluctuation of Hong Kong Interbank
Offered Rate (“HIBOR"), London Interbank Offered

Rate ("LIBOR"), prime rate or costs of funds of financial

institutions or a bank.

Sensitivity analysis

The following demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonable possible change in interest rates with all
other variables held constant, of the Group's profit
before tax (through the impact of floating rates in
advance to an associate, time deposits, bank balances,

sales proceeds held by a stakeholder and a third party

and borrowings).

If the floating rates had been 50 basis points
higher/lower, with all other variables held
constant, the Group's profit before tax for the
year ended 31 December 2019 would decrease/
increase by approximately HK$64,144,000 (2018:
HK$64,582,000). This was mainly attributable to the

Group's exposure to interest rates on its variable-rate

borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)

(i)

(i)

Cash flow interest rate risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis (Cont'd)

There would be no material impact on the Group's
other components of equity for the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018.

The Group's sensitivity to interest rates has decreased
during the current year mainly due to the decrease in

net debt carries at variable-rate.
Price risk

The Group's investments classified as financial assets
measured at FVTPL, financial assets measured at
FVTOCI and derivative financial instrument presented
as current liability (2018: current asset) which are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period and expose the Group to price risk. At the end
of the reporting period, the Group held investments
in certain high yield and fixed-rate bonds. High
yield bonds are bonds that are typically rated below
investment grade or are unrated and therefore are
generally more vulnerable to economic cycles as they
typically fall more in value than investment grade
bonds given higher default risk and higher investors
risk adversity. For bonds with fixed-rate coupons, they
are more susceptible to fluctuations in interest rates. As
interest rates move upward, the value of the bonds will
generally fall. Furthermore, the longer the tenor of the
bonds, the more sensitive they will be to interest rate

changes.

The management of the Group manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different
risk profiles. In addition, the Group has appointed a
special team to monitor the price risk and will consider

hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+-_A=+—HIEFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Market risk (Cont'd)
(iif)  Price risk (Cont'd)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined
based on the exposure to price risk at the end of the

reporting period.

If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group's
profit before tax for the year ended 31 December
2019 would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$452,221,000 (2018: HK$338,296,000). This was
due to the changes in fair value of financial assets

measured at FVTPL and derivative financial instrument.

If prices had been 5% higher/lower, the Group's
other components of equity for the year ended
31 December 2019 would increase/decrease
by approximately HK$1,009,127,000 (2018:
HK$1,068,365,000) as a result of the changes in fair
value of financial assets measured at FVTOCI.

Credit risk

The Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of
the counterparties' failure to perform their obligations as at
31 December 2019 in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position. The
Group's time deposits and bank balances are deposited with
banks of high credit quality in Hong Kong, Mainland China

and overseas.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group made transactions with counterparties with
acceptable credit quality in conformance to the Group's
treasury policies to minimise credit exposure. Acceptable
credit ratings from reputable credit rating agencies and
scrutiny of financials for non-rated counterparties are two
important criteria in the selection of counterparties. The
credit quality of counterparties will be closely monitored over
the life of the transaction. The Group reviews its financial
counterparties periodically in order to reduce credit risk
concentrations relative to the underlying size and credit

strength of each counterparty.

In an attempt to forestall adverse market movement, the
Group also monitors potential exposures to each financial
institution counterparty. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual debt at the end of
the reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment
losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the
Directors consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly

reduced.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime ECL provision for trade receivables. To measure
the ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics. The Group has performed
historical analysis and identified the key economic variables
impacting credit risk and ECL, and also considers the available

reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2019, trade receivables that are
individually significant have been separately assessed for
impairment. The Group makes periodic assessments on the
recoverability of the receivables based on the background and
reputation of the customers, historical settlement records and

past experience.

For all other receivables, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a

default occurring since initial recognition.

The credit quality of the advances to related parties has
been assessed with reference to historical information
about the default rates and financial position of the
counterparties. The Directors are of the opinion that the
credit risk of the advances to related parties is low due
to the current creditworthiness of the debtors and sound
collection history of the receivables due from them. For the
year ended 31 December 2019, an impairment provision of
approximately HK$982,000 (2018: nil) was made.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

Investments in bonds are limited to financial institutions or
investment counterparties with high quality. When making
decisions on investments in bonds, the management of
the Group has also made reference to the credit ratings
of the issuers and guarantors (if any) which, however,
are not an assurance as to the issuers’ and/or guarantors’
creditworthiness or the risks, returns or suitability of the
bonds. Risks in particular specific to certain types of bonds
held by the Group are: (i) high yield bonds — they in general
carry high credit risk as they are often subject to higher risk
of issuer default as they are typically rated below investment
grade or are unrated; (ii) perpetual bonds — their coupon
payments may be deferred or suspended subject to the
terms and conditions of the bonds and they are often callable
after a call protection period (related risk is detailed in the
liquidity risk below); and (iii) contingent convertible bonds —
issued by financial institutions that are deeply subordinated in
the capital structure, typically Tier 1 or Tier 2 securities. The
key characteristic of contingent convertible bonds is that the
issuer can either write off the principal amount or convert it
to shares without causing a default on the bond. There could
be a specific hard capital ratio trigger or declaration of non-
viability event by the regulator for the write-off or conversion
to equity to happen. The Group may be exposed to a higher
issuer credit risk and may experience substantial losses or
lose the entire value of investment as a result of a trigger
event. Other than the above, there may be additional risks
associated with trading of bonds over-the-counter (“OTC")
because OTC transactions are generally subject to limited
regulation and therefore less transparent in transaction details
such as volume, price formation, etc. There may also be
additional risks for investments located in an emerging market
which may involve certain risks associated with political and
economic uncertainty. In view of the specific risks above, the
Group has appointed the special team as disclosed in Note

5(b)(iii) above to closely monitor the risks.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Credit risk (Cont'd)

The Group's concentration of credit risk by geographical
location is mainly in Hong Kong, Europe and Mainland
China. As at 31

subject to investment concentration risk as there were

December 2019, the Group was

(i) bonds investment with four (2018: four) same issuer
groups with their respective amount of approximately
HK$1,032,341,000, HK$1,067,082,000, HK$1,435,959,000
and HK$1,607,451,000 (2018: HK$688,001,000,
HK$1,062,969,000, HK$1,271,609,000 and
HK$1,307,142,000) presented as financial assets measured
at FVTPL; and (i) equity security of a listed company of
HK$18,576,000,000 (2018: HK$20,167,000,000) presented
as financial assets measured at FVTOCI, which represented
a major portion of the Group's investment portfolio as
determined by the management of the Group. Investment
concentration risk may materialise when the market in which
those bonds are traded is constricted (related risk is detailed
in liquidity risk below), or when the fair value of those bonds/
that listed equity security are declined (related risk is detailed
in price risk above). The Group also monitors regularly to
avoid over-concentration (such as investment products and

underlying foreign exchange, etc.) of the investment portfolio.

Liquidity risk

The Group's certain bonds and listed equity securities
were pledged to the financial institutions to secure margin
and securities facilities granted to the Group in respect of
securities transactions. Under adverse market conditions,
the Group may be called by the financial institutions upon
at short notice to make deposits to repay the margin loans.
If the required deposits are not made within the prescribed
time, the Group's securities may be liquidated by the financial

institutions without the Group's consent.

5.

£RTH@®
b) SREREEEERIE (&)

EEmE (&)

REEZMFEPAEEFEERRZH
EXZAEE BMNRPEARE K=
T-NF+ZA=+—8 BALrKEZ
EREREZEREMEEZEILH A
M(ZZ—N\F W) EETAEEE
Y25 ABBEIURBRAFE
EVeRMEEZESARESRES NN
1,032,341,0005% 7T * 1,067,082,0007
JT~ 1,435,959,000/% 7T }.1,607,451,000
7T (ZF — )\ : 688,001,000/ T *
1,062,969,0007% JT * 1,271,609,000/%
7T }1,307,142,0008 7T) : R(DE5 A
BREEME2EWSURBRAFENS
ZeBMEEy —HEMARZRAE
#:18,576,000,000/8 7T ( =& — )\ F
20,167,000,0007% 7T ) 487 - B Lt - AN &
EEHETRARKR EZEEHFNT
RIS ER (HERBFBSHIINT
NRBESREKR ) HNEZEESFS
ZEMBRAFS 2 AFETRE (BER
M EF BN XX ERRER—E) - £
HERBEERAEE -AEE TS
ERIREES  UaBESY (nEEE
m RAEESNESE) o

REBE LR

AEEETESR EDRABSERA
REEMESZPREY RES RBS
AT & AR - B TRIR
& RO L A S B L T B
MR AEERB SRR WARER
RN RS ER BS R
TEREAREREMEAREZ F
B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Certain bonds held by the Group carried fixed-rate coupon
are accompanied with call rights, the issuers may call and
redeem the bonds early if interest rates fall. The Group may
face reinvestment risk when issuers exercised its right to
redeem the bond before it matures. Besides, some bonds
may not have an active secondary market. In case of the
market in which the bonds are traded is illiquid, the Group
may run the risk of either having to retain the investment
until the end of the term or selling it before maturity at an

unfavourable price.

The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
bank deposits and cash, monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets

and financial liabilities.

The liquidity risk is under continuous monitoring by the
management of the Group. Reports with maturity dates
of bank borrowings and thus the liquidity requirement
are provided to the management of the Group for review
periodically. The management of the Group will contact the

bankers for renewals of bank borrowings whenever necessary.

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities based on the
agreed repayment terms. The tables have been drawn up
based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities
based on the earliest date on which the Group can be
required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal

cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate
mELH
Tk
Non-derivative financial liabilities FiTESRERE
Borrowings E 3.26%
Lease liabilities HEaE 2.41%
Creditors and accruals ER VT HEN
Securities trading and margin payable ENEFRHEERRES
Amounts due to associates RABERRAFE
Amounts due to investee companies REEZRERRFE
Amounts due to non-controlling shareholders X & 3E iR R R 78
Total am
Weighted
average
effective
interest
rate
MEE
BHRA X
Non-derivative financial liabilities FHTESRBE
Borrowings E 3320
Creditors and accruals FEAT BRI T B 5t R
Securities trading and margin payable ENEFRHBERRES
Amounts due to associates REBENANE

RE-BFERRRFA

Amount due to a non-controlling shareholder

Total am

In addition to the items as set out in the above liquidity risk
tables, the maximum amount the Group could be required to
settle under (i) financial guarantees provided by the Group
in respect of banking facilities utilised by a joint venture and
an investee company and (ii) indemnity given to a third
party in relation to an investee company is approximately
HK$703,830,000 (2018: financial guarantees provided for
investee companies of HK$625,178,000) in aggregate,
if such amount is claimed by the counterparties to the
guarantees or indemnity at any time within the guaranteed or
indemnity period. Details of the guarantees and indemnity are
set out in Note 44.

£RTH@®
(b) LRABREEEERKE (&)

RBELEE (&)

At 31 December 2019
R-B-h&E+=A=t-H

On demand Total Total
or within Within 2 to undiscounted carrying
1 year 5 years cash flows amount
RERH RERRE REE
—£R MEERE RELR ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEL TR TR
9,657,992 4,340,769 13,998,761 13,442,259
50,571 85,825 136,396 132,054
151,010 - 151,010 151,010
11,246 = 11,246 11,246
- 212,419 212,419 212,419
- 368,563 368,563 368,563
- 333 333 333
9,870,819 5,007,909 14,878,728 14,317,884
At 31 December 2018
RZE-\F+-A=t+-H
On demand Total Total
or within Within 2 to undiscounted carrying
1 year 5 years cash flows amount
REg RERRS REE
—£R MEENE MELR Fokd
HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TR FEL FEL
9,725,156 4,694,784 14,419,940 13,747,675
247187 - 247187 247187
22,295 - 22,295 22,295
- 171,619 171,619 171,619
- 24171 24171 24171
9,994,638 4,890,580 14,885,218 14,212,953

RIAERBESRBRSI KX ZIER  KN&E
Erge()pt—HEaER R R—MEXE
BARaBAzRITEEEmMMRITRME
ZZEPBEERARG)E-—EEXE
BRRBMME-ARETZHRERE "
RERIBERZDAHBRERZFE
KEREZERABERBZLESSHE
& £ # /703,830,000 L (ZF— N
FREIKREAREZMBER
625,178,000/ 7T ) ° #{R 2 W IE R F

FIEE &M 44 -
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REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies (b)

(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Secured bank borrowing with a repayment on demand clause

is included in the "On demand or within 1 year” time band of

maturity analysis in the above liquidity risk tables. At the end

of the reporting period, the total undiscounted cash flow of

the borrowing amounted to approximately HK$627,090,000
(2018: HK$650,307,000). Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the Directors do not believe that it

is probable that the financial institution will exercise its

discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The

Directors believe that such borrowing will be repaid in

accordance with the scheduled repayment dates as set out in

the loan agreement, details of which are set out in the tables

below (include both interest and principal cash flows):

Maturity analysis — secured bank borrowing with a repayment

on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

Non-derivative financial liability =~ F#fT£¢@EE
Borrowing f&&
Non-derivative financial liability =~ F#fT£eBEE
Borrowing f&&

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

CREREEREREE (B)

RBELEE (&)

MR ERERGER A RRRITEE
REmRBESRERI K ZEHS T
FEATREXRS—FRIRKEAR -
RBESHR BEZAURRERERL
584 /627,090,000 7T (=& — N\
650,307,000 7T ) < & E E AR K E 2 Bt
Bk EETTHESREESITE
HEBESRANER - EE/0E 54
BERERERBEMAZETERA
HEE HABER TR (EREENE
REGZHRERE)

BT — W e B K IE R IRAZ B
HRTTIE B R A&

At 31 December 2019
RZB-hE+=A=+-H

Total Total

Within Within2  undiscounted carrying

1 year to 5 years cash flows amount

AERRE REE

—£R MEERF RELR k]

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TR TR TER

13,600 613,490 627,090 592,476

At 31 December 2018

RZZ-N\FTZA=+—-H

Total Total

Within Within 2 undiscounted carrying

1 year to 5 years cash flows amount

KAUEE S FREE

—FR REEREF mERE FE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER THET FTEL

13,829 636,478 650,307 601,279
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd) 5.

(b) Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Cont'd)

Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its derivative financial instruments. The tables
have been drawn up based on the undiscounted gross cash
inflows and outflows on the derivatives that require gross
settlements. For cash flows denominated in currency other
than HK$, the prevailing foreign exchange rate at the end of

the reporting period is used to convert the cash flows into

E@MIAE W

b) SREARSEEERKE (H)

RBELEE (&)

TRANAEETESZMTABRTEH
FEZBER TRILEMTETATER
WHgEE 2 RRB S IRA R L Z 58
o ABTANERFEZRSRE %
BERREFZEXBZREREE R
RETTe

]

I

At 31 December 2019
R-E-hE+=-A=+-—H

Total Total
Within undiscounted carrying
1 year cash flows amount
RERRE BRI (B
—FR) TERRE B
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000
THER THET TR
(6,060)
1,239,917 1,239,917
(1,247,970) (1,247,970)

At 31 December 2018
RZE-N\F+ZA=+—H

HK$.
Derivative gross settlement METRAZRRAE
Cross currency swap Btk 1

Inflow mA

Outflow s
Derivative gross settlement TETRE2XKER
Cross currency swap EHER

Inflow mA

Outflow i

Total Total
Within undiscounted carrying
1 year cash flows amount
REBRF 2 REE
—FN mEEE o]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
1,921
1,252,092 1,252,092
(1,247710) (1,247710)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E =T —hF+-_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(9

Fair value measurements

Financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table analysed the financial instruments which

are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period

into the three-level hierarchy.

Financial assets
tRE

Listed equity securities presented as
financial assets measured at FVTOCI

2iARBEG 2 ARGEIRRATE
HBZERER LHRAE

Bonds presented as flnanaal assets
measured at FV

27538 EﬁﬁWiﬂR TEAEZ
EHEELES

Club and corporate debentures
presente as financial assets measured

iﬁlﬁﬁﬂ}%u}iﬂ% Ffﬁ SEZ
EREEZERRAAES

Derivative financial instrument presented
as financial assets measured at FVTPL
- Cross currency swap
2iABRABENRMATEHEL
CHEEZITESRIA
—EBEH

Unlisted equﬂp securities presented
as financial assets measured at FVTOC|
S BREA N2 EUEHRRATE
SECEBAEELITRAR

Financial liability
tREE
Derivative financial instrument
— Cross currency swap
fTESmIA
-RHES

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

Fair value

DYE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$ 000
TEx TEL
18,578,652 20,167,000
8,975,533 6,685,515
62,820 78,481
- 1921
1,603,891 1,200,307
29,220,896 28,133,224
6,060 -

ANNUAL REPORT 2019

Fair value
hierarchy
RTEIRH

Level 1

Level 1

pevel 2
R
Level 2
R

Level 3
B

Level 2

EZH

REMBRRME

TR ®

() AFEFE

URFPEFEZZMTA

TRARBEHRAR

FEFEZ R

TRZ=ZMAEH -

Valuation
techniques and

key inputs

fh Eﬁh&IE%ﬁE

Quoted prices in
active markets

RETS 2 H(E

Quoted prices in
active markets

RETS 2 H(E

Market comparison

M LB

Discounted cash flow
methodology based
on spot and forward
exchange rates and yield
curves of the currencyﬁ
BRRENBE HAEH
ZEI]H\H&}@HJ@[TLA&

JIIlﬂ'

Discounted cash flow:
forecast distribution,
discount rate and
contract terms (if any)

BERERE:

BAlzH /)ﬁ BRER
AiET (5)

Reference to the fair value of

the underl
A

Net asset value (note (i)

BEFE ()

Discounted cash flow
methodology based
on spot and forward
exchange rates and yield
curves of the curren%

BRBSREE BHEY
Z@%&L%EIM&
KaEfR

Significant
unobservable

EMFEJE%RE

N/A
TER

N/A
TER

N/A
TER

N/A
TaH

Forecast distribution taking
into account management's
experience and the estimated
terminal value %note (i
Bl pRDBRERESR
&HJZWW“E(WE(O)

Discount rates ranging from 11.83%
to 18.87% (2018: 24.33%)

gnot (|)
BEENT1183EZ1887E
(ZZ—\F:2433F)
(MEEG))

Fair value of the underlying
property based on valuation

%Wﬁ@giié)%ﬁfmﬁz
ATE (M)

N/A
TaH

N/A
TER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(9

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

Notes:

(i)  The higher the forecast distribution, estimated terminal
value and fair value of the underlying property, the higher
the fair value. The higher the discount rate, the lower the
fair value.

(i)  The Group has determined that the net asset value
represents the fair value at the end of the reporting period.

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and out of
fair value hierarchy levels as at the date of the events or

changes in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers amongst Level 1, Level 2 and
Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy during the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018 and no change in valuation

techniques used in prior years.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of each
reporting period. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange,
dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The
quoted market price used for financial assets held by the
Group is the current bid price. These instruments are included

in Level 1.

5.

E@MIAE W
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (contd)

(9

Fair value measurements (Cont'd)

Financial instruments measured at fair value (Cont'd)

The movement during the years in the balances of Level 3

fair value measurement is as follows:

REMBRRME

5. @@ TR @

() AFEFEE

LU

URFEFEZEHTA (&)

FZRRATEFEERRAFEZED

HK$'000
FET
Unlisted equity securities presented as 2INABRBHMEZEKEUARRLFE
financial assets measured at fair value AR ERMEEZHF ETRARES
through other comprehensive income
At 1 January 2018 R-ZE—-—NF—HA—H 1,031,230
Net unrealised gain recognised in other AN [E E At 2 T U o B AR
comprehensive income during the year (note) S5 Y sn R (P EE) 169,077
At 31 December 2018 RZZE-NF+_A=+—H 1,200,307
Net unrealised gain recognised in other PN T Ho At 2 T Ul 2 B R
comprehensive income during the year (note) B FRE (ME) 403,584
At 31 December 2019 R-B-AE+=-A=+—H 1,603,891
Note: Al of the above gains included in other comprehensive fisk: EFigtRmEBRSEE I LR

income for the relevant years related to unlisted equity
securities held at the end of the reporting periods are
reported as changes of financial assets measured at

FVTOCI reserve.

Financial instruments not measured at fair value

ABHHAHABBEELMEE
i 2 Y BB B L 2 T
HORRATEHEZ SMEEY
B2 BB

WHURFEFEZEZHTA

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of the EERRAEELIFUNRTEFEZS

Group's financial instruments that are not measured at fair

value approximate to their fair values.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the abilities of the entities in the Group to continue
as a going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders of the Company and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of

risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Directors actively and regularly review and manage the Group's
capital structure to maximise the returns to shareholders of the
Company through the optimisation of the debt afforded by a sound
capital position, and make adjustments to the capital structure
in light of changes in economic conditions. The Group's overall

strategy remains unchanged from 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, the capital structure of the Group
mainly consists of debts, which include borrowings from banks
and other financial institutions, lease liabilities, pledged deposits,
time deposits, bank balances and cash, and total equity, comprising
issued share capital, reserves, retained profits and non-controlling
interests. The Directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital to monitor its capital structure
on the basis of a gearing ratio. The Group has a target gearing
ratio not higher than 509, determined as the proportion of net
debt to equity. This ratio is expressed by as a percentage of net
borrowings over the total equity. Net borrowings are calculated as
total borrowings and lease liabilities (as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position) less cash and bank balances and

pledged deposits.

6.
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CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019

6. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (cont'd) 6. EXEBERE @
The gearing ratios were as follows: BREEELERMNT :
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Borrowings — current (note (i)) BE-REME (MEG) 9,240,299 9,303,688
Borrowings — non-current (note (i)) BE-IFEREE (WE0)) 4,201,960 4,443 987
Lease liabilities — current (note (ii)) HEaBE-REME (M) 47,929 -
Lease liabilities — non-current (note (ii)) HEABE-—IFREIEE (MEE3)) 84,125 -
Total debt BEsRRE 13,574,313 13,747,675
Less: Cash and bank balances and B RE RIBITHEBRIUR
pledged deposits (note (iii)) R AF (KRR ) (839,542) (951,970)
Net debt [EROEE=
(total debt less cash and (EBLEERREe X
bank balances and pledged deposits) HRITHEERIA R ER) 12,734,771 12,795,705
Securities investments and BHRIRE R
treasury products (note (iv)) MEEm (M) 27,554,185 26,852,515
Less: Net debt VR (12,734,771) (12,795,705)
Net cash e FE
(Securities investments and (BHRHRE R
treasury products less net debt) & ERRERFRE) 14,819,414 14,056,810
Total equity (note (v)) M ARz 878 (PIFE(v) ) 33,590,361 34,143,569
Net debt to equity ratio B F R E MR AN M 2 b 3
(excluding securities investments and (TERERFRER
treasury products) MEEM) 37.9% 37.5%
Net debt to equity ratio B3 78 B IR AN M 2 bl 3 Net cash Net cash
(including securities investments and (BEEFFRER position position
treasury products) WMEEM) HEFEMRRE B FEKR




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #R&

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-ZF

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (contd)

Notes:
(i)  Borrowings are detailed in Note 36.
(i)  Lease liabilities are detailed in Note 21(b).

(i)  Cash and bank balances and pledged deposits comprise time
deposits, bank balances and cash and pledged deposits at the
end of the reporting period.

(iv)  Securities investments and treasury products are detailed in
Notes 27(i) and 28(i).

Vv Total equity includes issued share capital, reserves, retained
quity P
profits and non-controlling interests at the end of the reporting
period.

Net debt to equity ratio (excluding securities investments and

treasury products) remained stable.

In relation to brokerage business, Fair Eagle Finance Credit Limited,
Fair Eagle Futures Company Limited and Fair Eagle Securities
Company Limited, three wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company,
are required to maintain financial resources in accordance with
the specified amount requirements that apply to them under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance imposed by Securities and Futures
Commission. The requirements are internally reviewed on a daily
basis and reports are required to submit to Securities and Futures

Commission monthly. Full compliance is observed during the year.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its

subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

6.

Bt 5 R AR B
~NFHZAZt+—BLFE

EXRERER @

GEX

() EERHESeEL-

() TEERERKE G

(i) RIS IR 23R & RIRATH DA RIEIDTF
REETBER RITESRRERRE
R

(v) REFRENMFEEMNIME27()M28(0)*

V) RHERRZBAEREBRIFCHEITR
A EE RSN R IR -

BRFEERAER L X (TBEESRER
MEEMR)RFRE-
MEREBTE AR =R ERENER

ARETMAERAR  REHEAERAA LK

BEFARDABARESRMEEBRERE
BEeMBEmERREEZESFLME RN Z
FELRELMERFUBER - ZFEKREH
RAMBRLASARNEFMPEEHER
ZEQERBRE -NAFEDBBET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE

Revenue represents the aggregate amounts of sales of properties
held for sale, commission from brokerage, settlement charges from
brokerage, cosmetic goods sold less returns and amounts received

and receivable from property rental income, are analysed as follows:

REMBRRME

WA

WATHERIFHEME HE KA &
KRBz ER HKREEER 2(LEREE
ARBWEERZMERSRAZ EFTEE
AT

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
Revenue from contracts with customers: HEBEAELH ZHA:
Recognised at a point in time R —F B 57
Sales of properties held for sale FIEHEMEZIHE - 273,989
Brokerage and cosmetic income a0 IR 7S At st $H & WA 16,023 25,096
16,023 299,085
Revenue from other source: H ARz WA
Property rental income WMERES WA 522,963 544,533
538,986 843,618

OPERATING SEGMENTS

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operating decision-makers that are used to

make strategic decisions.

The Group has six reportable segments — (i) property development
and trading; (ii) property leasing for retail; (iii) property leasing for
non-retail; (iv) listed equity investments at FVTOCI; (v) investments
and treasury products at FVTPL; and (vi) unlisted investments,
investment holding and brokerage. The segmentations are based on
the information about the operation of the Group that management

of the Group uses to make decisions.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R &

PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+-_A=+—HIEFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

Principal activities are as follows:

Property development

Property development and sales

and trading of trading properties
Property leasing
— Retail —  Property leasing from retail
properties
— Non-retail —  Property leasing from non-retail
properties
Listed equity investments —  Listed equity securities at FVTOCI
at FvTOCI
Investments and —  Securities investments in

treasury products investments held-for-trading,

at FVTPL OTC trading and structured
products
Unlisted investments, —  Unlisted securities investments,

investment holding trading and brokerage

and brokerage

The Group evaluates performance on the basis of profit or loss from
operations after tax expense and non-controlling interests but not
including the major non-cash items. The major non-cash items are
unrealised fair value changes on investment properties and other
properties together with their, if applicable, respective deferred
tax, and impairment loss of goodwill. No intersegment revenue is
accounted for as the intersegment revenue is mainly the rental

income for administrative purpose.

Unallocated corporate assets mainly comprised leasehold land and
building for own use, right-of-use assets, deferred tax assets and
tax recoverable (2018: also included advance to a non-controlling

shareholder and derivative financial instrument).

Unallocated corporate liabilities mainly comprised tax liabilities, bank
borrowings, amounts due to associates, amounts due to investee
companies, amounts due to non-controlling shareholders, lease

liabilities, deferred tax liabilities and derivative financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

The Group's measurement methods used to determine reported

segment profit or loss remain unchanged from 2018.

The Group's reportable segments are strategic business units that
operate different activities. They are managed separately because

each business unit has different markets and requires different

marketing strategies.

Further, the business units are also managed to operate in different

countries separately. Revenue and results are attributed to countries

on the basis of the property or asset location.

There was one (2018: two) major customer(s) who individually
accounted for 10% or more of the Group's revenue. Revenue
of approximately HK$174,695,000 was derived from a customer
in non-retail property leasing segment in the United Kingdom
(2018: HK$273,989,000 was derived from a customer in
property development and trading segment in Hong Kong and

HK$183,303,000 was derived from a customer in non-retail

property leasing segment in the United Kingdom).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EEDEw®
Operating segment information is presented below: HENHEEMENNWT
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income FETHKRABRK
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE—ZE-—NF+ZHA=+—HULFE
Unlisted
Property leasing I.ist_ed Investments in'vestments,
Property NERE equity and treasury  investment
development investments products  holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retail at FvtoCl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BBAMBZE BBER
WEURR HURBATE FLETRE
NEBRR AYEZ LT ZRER  REBRR FiE
EE E *EE RAaR& HEER SRR EttnE RA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn Tin FiEx TEn Fin FEn TEn FiEn
Major cash items excluding WA Z
in revenue TEREEE
- Hong Kong -&E - - - - 2,223,299 - - 2,223,299
~ Other countries G UEES - - - - 138,403 - - 138,403
- - - - 2,361,702 - - 2,361,702
Revenue L'ON
Revenue from external customers RENMFEP YA
- Hong Kong -&E - 0,407 140,641 - - 5,256 10,767 199,111
- United Kingdom -%R - 34,539 304,661 - - - - 339,200
~ Mainland China N - - 675 - - - - 675
- 76,986 445,971 - - 5,256 10,767 538,986
Revenue from external customers RENMDEP WA - 76,986 445,971 - - 5,256 10,767 538,986
Attributable property sales from FEETRERA
investee company NEHE
- Hong Kong - 10 - - - - - - 10
Attributable rental revenue from JEfRBERE/
associates/joint venture/ AERNR/BR
investee company RERAREYA
- Hong Kong -&E - 20,864 45,765 - - - - 66,629
- Mainland China -HEAR - 55,043 8,054 - - - - 63,007
10 152,893 499,796 - - 5,256 10,767 668,722
Result E3 ]
Segment result PREA
- Hong Kong & - 38,031 133,555 U] 1,259,177 (5,106) 15,152 1,440,808
- United Kingdom =L - 33414 300,555 - - m - 334,080
- Mainland China -HE AR - - 394 - - 2,095 - 2,489
- Other countries e - - - - 639,995 - - 639,995
- 71,445 434,504 ] 1,899,172 (2,900) 15,152 2417372
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE-ZT—NF+=-A=

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

REMBRRME

+—HIEFE

8.

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

SEDE @

FAEZEKRERR (B)
BE-_F—-NF+-F=+—HILFE

Unlisted
Property leasing Listed  Investments investments,
Property ERE equity and treasury  investment
development investments products  holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retail at FvtoCl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BREMEE BEAZ
WENRS DRMATE HFLGRE
NEBRR AYEz LT ZRER  REBRR FiE
E® E *2E RERE HEER BLEERH EtAE RA
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FiEn FiEx TEn Fin FEn TEn FiEn
Share of results of investments BENRRENR
accounted for using the equity method 8 7 %48
- Attributable gross income -ElERAEE
~ Hong Kong -&% - 19,673 45,480 - - - 2,276 67429
- Mainland China -hEARE - 55,043 8,054 - - - - 63,007
- Attributable operating cost -EEEENAR
~ Hong Kong -5 - (1,009) (1883) - - - - (8,892)
- Mainland China RN - (24,979) (2,848) - - - - (21827)
- 120,173 471,307 (1) 1,899,172 (2,900) 17,428 2,511,179
Finance costs BBER - - - (113,197) (100,307) - - (213,504)
Other gains and losses HEzRER (1,619) - (10) - - - (34) (1,663)
Share of results of investments BENBRENE
accounted for using the equity method % & 2 $48
- Income tax and others -FEHREM (47) (41,160) (6,073) - - - (387) (47,667)
(1,666) 79,013 mns (1319 1,798,865 (2,900) 19007 2,248345
Unallocated items AOBIER
Unallocated corporate expenses, net K7 2 A FRR
B (230,023)
Unallocated finance costs ROEZHBER (156,681)
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries WERRAGE R (10,678)
Income tax expense FERAE (152,107)
Non-controlling interests FERER (1,485)
Operating profit for the year KA EEE AR
attributable to owners of REEZEERER
the Company 1,697,371
Major non-cash items TEHRSER
- Unrealised fair value changeson ~ — 1R EME2 k%
investment properties (including BATEED
share of results of investments (BEHEN
accounted for using the equity VN
method) REZEE) (579,115)
~ Deferred tax expense —EERERR (5,151)
~ Impairment loss of gooduil -BEZREBR (322,938)
Profit for the year attributable to %72 F#H AL
owners of the Company REE2EH 790,167
Core profit for the year RAREE AL
attributable to owners of REE 2B ET
the Company
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd) 8. EENE
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position FEPBRRBR
At 31 December 2019 R-F-AFE+ZA=1+—-H

Unlisted

Property leasing Listed  Investments investments,

Property LIE SN equity and treasury  investment

development investments products  holding and All other
and trading Retail Non-retail at FvtoCl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated

BEAMEE BBER
WENR®R  LRBRAFE HFLHRE

NEBRR ATEZLER ZBER  REBREK g}
BE 2E F2E RARE HEER BRRH HAE &a
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHER FEL FET FER FEL FER TER FEL
Assets gE
Segment assets SREE
- Hong Kong -5 974,604 1,909,092 5,194,356 18,578,662 7,481,050 388,525 192,445 34,718,134
- United Kingdom —~5E - 1,389,050 6,940,511 - - - - 8,329,561
- Mainland China —HhEKE 256,026 - 29,007 - - 4,350 - 289,383
- Other countries -EfER - - - - 1,607,908 558,780 - 2,166,688
Investments accounted for using IERENR
the equity method ZRE
- Hong Kong -&% 37,704 435,133 1,176,644 - - 1,990 6,228 2,257,699
- Mainland China —mE AR - 133,409 42,220 - - - - 175,629
Advances to associates and BRBERER
a joint venture —ERERANE
- Hong Kong -&& 123 - 158,933 - - 2 1,136 160,194
~ Mainland China —hEAE - 35,503 11,232 - - - - 46,735
Reportable segment assets AERIBEE 1,268,457 3,902,187 14,152,903 18,578,662 9,088,958 953,647 199,809 48,144,623
Unallocated corporate assets ) PNV 167,166
Consolidated total assets GREERE 48,311,789
Liabilities &
Segment liabiliies AHREE
- Hong Kong -&B% 66,619 20,960 75,047 2,904,077 3,697,718 13,948 6,844 6,785,213
- United Kingdom -%8 - 14,980 177445 - - - - 192,425
~ Mainland China —HE KR 23 - 197 - - 2 - m
- Other countries -EEX - - - - 530,990 6 - 530,996
Reportable segment ligbilties ERNHER 66,642 35,940 252,689 2,904,077 4,228,708 13,956 6,804 1,508,856
Unallocated corporate liabilities box AN} 212,572
Consolidated total liabiliies GegEsE 14,121,428
Additions to non-current assets ~ FREBEERE
(other than financial instruments  ($HIAREL
and deferred tax assets) REEERM) - - 17,813 - - 64 57

I
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Other Material Items

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Interest income

Finance costs

Net income

Depreciation of:
— Property, plant and equipment
- Right-of-use assets
Fair value changes on investment properties
Write-down of stock of properties
Impairment loss of goodwill
Share of results of investments accounted
for using the equity method
Income tax expense

Non-controlling interests

MBBA
HBER

LN |

e

-ME BEREE
—EREEE
BENEINTEE
MEFEZRE
BEZREEE
BUENBSEEARRE
ZEE

MERREX
RS

REMBRRME

8. &

EoE @

HtEXIEHE
BE-_F—-NF+-F=+—HILFE

Adjustments  Adjustments  Consolidated

for for major  statement of

Reportable unallocated non-cash comprehensive
segments items items income
x0# TEFRSE REZH

BES Sk HEAZHE HEZHRE K@EHx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TiEx TR TR
124,924 - - 724,924
(213,504) (156,681) - (370,185)
511,420 (156,681) - 354,739
- (1,384) - (1.384)
- (19,680) - (19,680)
- - (742,659) (742,659)

(681) - - (681)

- - (322,938) (322,938)

46,140 - 163,544 209,684

- (152,107) (5.151) (157,258)

- (1,485) - (1,485)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& Bt 3R &R M 5
—hE+-A=+—AILEE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE—

8. BEETE =

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income FEZERBER
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE_E-—NFL+_A=—1—HIFE
Unlisted
Property leasing Listgd Investments in_vestments,
Property NERE equity and treasury investment
development investments products holding and All other
and trading Retall Non-retail at Fv10dl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BREMEE Fabet by
BahRe  ARBATE FEEHRE
NEERR RFEZ W JRER  REBBRR A
EE TE FTE BARE HEER BRRHS Et A% Fa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS! 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL T TER TEL FET TEL TEL T
Major cash items excluding WA 2
in revenue TERSER
- Hong Kong -&E - - - - 4937729 - - 4937729
- Other countries -EpBXR - - - - 443255 - - 443255
- - - - 5,380,984 - - 5,380,984
Revenue
Revenue from external customers RENBEEZHMA
- Hong Kong Bk 273,989 42,886 139,203 - - 14,073 11,023 481,174
- United Kingdom -%8 - 36241 326,203 - - - - 362444
273,989 79,127 465,406 - - 14,073 11,023 843,618
Revenue from external customers REMBIEERERR
after non-controlling interests IMBEPYA 191,792 79,127 465,403 - - 14,073 11,023 761,418
Attributable property sales from B SRR/ #R
associates/investee company RERRANEHE
- Hong Kong Bk 78,993 - - - - - - 78,993
Attributable rental revenue from E 555 ’?EQ &/
associates/joint venture/ DA/ BR
investee company }xﬁ ] %ﬁ%uﬁlﬂ\
- Hong Kong & - 20,408 45,840 - - - - 66,248
- Mainland China —mBA - 64,153 8,894 - - - - 73,047
270785 163,688 520,137 - - 14073 11,023 979,706
Result ES
Segment result PREA
- Hong Kong & 231,713 37281 133,255 1,107,228 (289,080) 26,380 19,454 1,266,231
- United Kingdom % - 35,052 321,714 - - 87 - 356,853
— Mainland China —ERE - - - - - 2,891 - 2,891
- Other countries —HipER - - - - (350,734) - - (350,734)
231,713 72,333 454,969 1,107,228 (639,814) 29,358 19,454 1,275,241
Share of resuls of investments BIEVERENE
accounted for using the equity method 18 7 $4%
- Attributable property sales, net -EENEHEFE
- Hong Kong &k 3,857 - - - - - - 3,857
- Attributable gross income —EERNEE
- Hong Kong -E - 19,574 44821 - - - 227 66622
— Mainland China —h K RE - 64,153 8,894 - - - - 73,047
~ Attributable operating cost -EEEENE
- Hong Kong &k - (705) (8585) - - - - (92290)
~ Mainland China —REARE - (26,572) (2,830) - - - - (29,402)
Non-controlling interests FERER (52,310) - (3) - - - - (52313)
183,260 128,783 497266 1,107228 (639,814) 29358 21,681 1327762
ZE-NFFR EAEBXEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

REMBRRME

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income (Cont'd)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Finance costs BBER
Other gains and losses Ao lERER
Share of results of investments BREVERENE
accounted for using the equity method & 2 $48
- Income tax and others ~FERREL
Unallocated items AOEIER
Unallocated corporate expenses, net KA ZAEIRX
#H
Unallocated finance costs KOEHBER
Income tax expense FERER

Unallocated non-controlling interests k7% 2 SR iE S

Operating profit for the year RAREE AL

attributable to owners of AEEZEEER
the Company
Major non-cash items TEHRLER

- Unrealised fair value changes o~~~ &N 2 4%
investment properties (including BRATEEY
share of results of investments (BEHE
accounted for using the equity EREAR
method) REZEE)

- Deferred tax credit -ERREER

Profit for the year attributable to %72 75 A5

owners of the Company KEEZEA

Core profit for the year RAREE AR
attributable to owners of KEE2BOER
the Company
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22y AY
8. EESE
FEXEREERR (E)
BE—F-/\F+_H=1—HIFE
Unlisted
Property leasing Listed Investments investments,
Property HERE equity and treasury investment
development investments products holding and All other
and trading Retall Non-retail at Fv10dl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BREMEE ABAE
R URBATE  FETRE
NEERR RFEZ W ZRER  REERR i
EE TE FTE BARE HEER BRRHS Et A% Fa
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL T TEL TEL FET TEL TEL T
- - - (115,650) (70,980) - - (186,630)
(2549) - - - - - - (2549)
(1,038) (36,858) (8,026) - - - (502) (46,424)
179,673 91,925 489,240 991,578 (710,794) 29,358 21,179 1,092,159
(95,401
(158,360)
(127,847)
7790
718,341
296,143
806
1,015,290

718,341



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

PITEAY

REMBRRME

AKE
8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (Contd) 8. EETH
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position FEMBRREBEER
At 31 December 2018 RZFE-NFF+ZA=+—H
Unlisted
Property leasing Listed Investments investments,
Property NERE equy  and treasury investment
development investments products holding and All other
and trading Retall Non-retail at Fv10dl at FVTPL brokerage segments  Consolidated
BRAMEE RpER
bR URBATE FETRE
NEERR ATEZ T JRER  REERR i
BE B ¥TE RARE HEER TR EthAgE G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FiEn TiEn TET FiEn TiEn TET FiEn
Assets g
Segment assets HREE
- Hong Kong -E% 1,651,525 1,948,679 5253665 20,167010 5,499,322 420325 76278 35016804
- United Kingdom ~EE - 1,632,210 7,433,806 - - - - 9,066,016
- Mainland China —EXE 267880 - 29,045 - - 6,821 - 303,746
- Other countries -EpBX - - - - 1272,109 493,267 - 1765,376
Investments accounted for using IERENR
the equity method LBRE
- Hong Kong -E% 68750 424,507 1,582,710 - - 2167 6549 2,084,683
- Mainland China -HEAE - 141,553 49941 - - - - 191,494
Advances to associates and BRBERER
a joint venture —HRERANE
- Hong Kong -E# 1,000 - 154,306 - - 2 1,160 156,468
- Mainland China —EKE - 34,751 12,258 - - - - 47,009
Reportable segment assets A2HNREE 1,989,155 4,181,700 14,515,731 20,167,010 6,771,431 922,582 83,987 48,631,596
Unallocated corporate assets KABLDAEE 59,107
Consolidated total assets GREERE 48,690,703
Liabilities &f
Segment liabiities SRER
- Hong Kong -5% 165,431 20,593 69,688 3,809,914 3,091,361 35,868 8452 7201,307
- United Kingdom -5 - 16,464 167234 - - - - 183,698
~ Mainland China —HE KR 778 - 31 - - 7 - 816
- Other countries -EpBR - - - - 432,759 9 - 432,768
Reportable segment liabilties BEE V-1 166,209 37057 236,953 3,809,914 3,524,120 35,884 8,452 7818,589
Unallocated corporate liabilties KOBZAREE 6,728,545
Consolidated total liabilties GRARBER 14,547,134
Additions to non-current assets ~ FRBEEFE
(other than financial instruments (B IEREE
and deferred tax assets) REEERM) - - 2224 - - 40 16
“E-NEFFEHR EAEXKEE
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Other Material Items

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

8. OPERATING SEGMENTS (contd)

For the year ended 31 December 2018

Interest income

Finance costs

Net income

Depreciation of:
— Property, plant and equipment
Fair value changes on investment properties
Write-down of stock of properties
Share of results of investments accounted
for using the equity method
Income tax expense

Non-controlling interests

MBMA
HBER

LN

e
~ME - BEREE
BENEINTEEEY
NEFEZRE
BB AARRE
ZEE

FEBRAX
FEERER

REMBRRME

8. &iE

w00 )

HihEARER
Bz —F—NF+-_A=1—HIFE

Adjustments Adjustments Consolidated

for for major statement of

Reportable unallocated non-cash  comprehensive
segments items items income
Ko ITEFRS HFazmE

ERHE HEHZHE HE 2% Ymsk
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TR THEL
673,317 - - 673,317
(186,630) (158,360) - (344,990)
486,687 (158,360) - 328,327
- (6,806) - (6,806)

- - 122,301 122,301

(2,549) - - (2,549)
58,410 - 173,842 232,252

- (127847) 806 (127041)
(52,313) 7790 - (44,523)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

OTHER INCOME

Included in other income are:

Building management fee income

Building management fee expenses

Rental services income
Property management services,
leasing administration services and
property administration services income
Advisory and consultancy services income
Asset management and maintenance
services income
Overprovision of costs in respect of
a development project, net
Consultancy fee income
Exchange gain, net
Reversal of impairment in respect of other
receivable and interest thereon of
approximately HK$39,941,000

9. Hftlr A

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

H At W A BL3E -
EFERBRA 28,225 35,086
BFERBHY (15,962) (19,037)
12,263 16,049
HERBHBA 5,071 6,693

MEBERY -

1T BURTS &

PIEEAT R YA 32,549 29,797
e K BB R AR A W A 34 37
EEBTERRERBEHA

- 5
H—ERERERZ

AN ERRE R F R 6,452 -
EERBUA - 14,766
fE 5 U a5 5 5 - 4,301
1 [0 5 #h B WL BR 18 2 R B &

B8 H) 2. 439,941,000/ 7T

- 89,186
“T-NEFEHR EABXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-Z

10. INVESTMENT INCOME, NET

Financial assets measured at fair value

through profit or loss:

Unrealised gain (loss) arising from change
in fair value of bonds

Realised gain (loss) arising from change
in fair value of bonds
— Change in fair value
— Exchange component of change

Net gain (loss) arising from change in fair value

of bonds

Realised loss arising from change in fair value
of fixed coupon notes

Realised loss arising from change in fair value
of currency option

Unrealised (loss) gain arising from change in fair

value of club and corporate debentures
Realised loss arising from change in fair value
of club debentures

(Loss) gain arising from change in fair value
of club and corporate debentures

Unrealised (loss) gain arising from change
in fair value of cross currency swap

Realised loss arising from change in fair value
of cross currency swap

(Loss) gain arising from change in fair value
of cross currency swaps

Other investment income, net
Dividends income on:
Listed investment

Unlisted investments

Interest income

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

“NEFTZA=t—HILFE

10. REW A FEHE

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
F# T FHET
BBERURMRA T EFEZ
BEHE AN FEEEHMES 2
REB U= (BE) 978,452 (1,255,094)
BEHE A FELEEMEL Y
EQIEHSZ (Eﬁ%@)
N EE 180,905 (24,721)
—[E N & & E 3,311 4,593
BEHFEZ ATFEEHMEEY
W (BE)FHE 1,162,668 (1,275,222)
BEEBXREZATFEE
MEAXZEEEEE (a12) -
B AT EE
MEAXZEBEEEEIE (281) -
CEMNBEFZATFEE
MELXZ RS (HE)Kka (13,090) 8,592
SHEESFCATEE
MEEZEZBERE (1,071) -
SERAFESFZATEE
mESA 2 (E8) la (14,161) 8,592
BB ATEZESmMELZ
REW (8B W= (6.060) 1,921
BB ATEZSMEE
BE 5 EE (1,921) -
EMEBH ATEZmMEL Y
(E18) = (7,.981) 1,921
HwE WA F5E 21,339 12,450
BB W ARE
k& - 1,106,820
FELEMIRE - 54,750
FLBUA 724,505 632,691
1,885,677 542,002
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10.

11.

12.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

INVESTMENT INCOME, NET (contd) 10. REWAFE ®

Interest income mainly included interest income from bonds and
fixed coupon notes of approximately HK$715,857,000 (2018:
interest income from bonds of HK$623,366,000.)

FERATETERRELFLRETERER
F B A X A715,857,0008 70 (—Z— )\ F:

&% 2 5 B UL A 623,366,000 7T) °

FINANCE COSTS 1. HBEEHA
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHBT
Interest on: A
Bank borrowings RITEE 157,969 146,250
Other borrowings HifEE 217,801 196,106
Lease liabilities HEAR 1,086 -
Total interest (Note 41) F 24z (fFsE41) 376,856 342,356
Exchange gain on translation of foreign HNESRIT R EMEE 2
currency bank and other borrowings, net P 5 e 5 58 (13,789) (6,926)
Other finance costs BB ER 7,118 9,560
370,185 344,990
OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 12. Htt & RS E
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Included in other gains and losses are: Hth e RSB BIE:
Write-down of stock of properties MEFEZRE (681) (2,549)
Loss on dissolution of subsidiaries MBS~ RIBR AR 2 B8 (10,678) -
Impairment loss recognised in respect of BB HE & R R SRIBERER
advances to associates RIEEE (982) -
—z-heeg zAExsm 201
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The charge comprises:

Current tax:
Hong Kong Profits Tax
Other than Hong Kong

(Overprovision) underprovision in prior years:

Hong Kong Profits Tax
Other than Hong Kong

Deferred tax: (Note 30)

Current year charge

Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity will be
taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed at
16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of
16.5%. The PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the PRC subsidiaries are
calculated at the PRC Enterprise Income Tax rate of 25% (2018:

250%). Taxation arising from other jurisdictions is calculated at the

rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

13. FiSHBEX

2019 2018
HK$ 000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
T HERE:
& HARIE
BAENEH 106,654 73,155
BB AN & 42,475 46,938
149,129 120,093
BEFE GBEER BEETR:
BBNEH (297) 4,644
BB AN R 201 (2,297)
(96) 2,347
EERIE © (MEE30)
REEZH 8,225 4,601
157,258 127,041
BEFSHMAS cERKREBEREY
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2,000,000/ 7T 2 i A5 12 15 % 8.2 5007/ A% -
8 82,000,000 7T 2 i Fll 1 32 B % 16.50%7%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R &

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-ZF

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (contd)

The income tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit

before tax per the consolidated statement of comprehensive

income as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate
of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%)

Tax effect of share of results of
investments accounted for using
the equity method

Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purposes

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purposes

Tax effect on accelerated accounting

depreciation over tax depreciation

previously (not provided) over provided

Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

(Overprovision) underprovision in prior years

Effect of different tax rates of
subsidiaries operating

in other jurisdictions

Tax charge for the year

R A5 A A

BREEFGHEBE165%
(ZE—N\F:165%)
HEZHE

BEUBESEANREEY
REIHEYE

RRBMFBARBRAZ
RBEE

RBRB M E R AMHAR 2
RBEE

BE (CRBE) BEREL
MEREHTEBBRBMEL
BBz &

EREMAERZHBER

AERZHBERZRETE

BEFE (BEAE)BETR

EEMFEEREE
WERTERZ
TRAMEs w8

RERBBEXH

Bt 5 R AR B
~NFHZAZt+—BLFE

13. Fi8#HBEX @

AERBZAERXHESE2EKERRZ

BREADE MR T :
2019 2018
HK$'000 % HK$'000 %
THET THT
948,910 1,186,854
156,570 16.5 195,831 16.5
(34,598) (3.6) (38,322) (3.2)
(175,767) (185)  (322,110) Q7.1)
207,663 21.9 274,768 23.1
(996) (0.1) 913 0.1
(8.449) (0.9) (3,527) (0.3)
3,184 0.3 8,931 0.7
(96) - 2,347 02
9,747 1.0 8,210 0.7
157,258 16.6 127041 10.7
—E-NEEHR EABEXESE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

14. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the year has been arrived at after
(charging) crediting:

Total staff costs:
Staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments
Retirement benefit scheme contributions,
net of forfeited contributions of
approximately HK$331,000
(2018: HK$716,000)

Auditors’ remuneration:
Auditors of the Company
— Current year
Other auditors
— Current year
— Underprovision in prior years

Depreciation of:
— Property, plant and equipment
— Right-of-use assets

Exchange loss, net

Rental expenses from short-term leases
Cost of trading properties recognised
Cost of cosmetic products recognised

Share of tax of associates
Share of tax of a joint venture

Share of tax of investments accounted for
using the equity method (included in share
of results of investments accounted
for using the equity method)

Gross rental income from investment properties
Less: Direct operating expenses from investment
properties that generated rental
income during the year
Direct operating expenses from investment
properties that did not generate rental
income during the year

Reversal of impairment loss (impairment loss)
recognised in respect of trade receivables, net

(Impairment loss) reversal of impairment loss
recognised in respect of other receivables, net

Impairment loss recognised in respect of
advances to associates

14. XFEEin

RERHEME () FA:

BREKAEEE:
BEXRA (BEEZEHS)
RIRRFIFFEIHEE - KR BRI
HF#9331,0007 T
(ZZ—\%F :716,000/87T)

ZEE I 2 -

AR B
—AFEE

H o 12 BB
—AFEE
—BEFERETR

E:
e/ ERN G
—EREEE

bE 5B 1R F R
RHHE 2 HEMX
BEEMERAHER
{b e P A T 2R

- 2a) NI T ]
BH-—BAERRHA

BAEARREANRREZHNE
(Bat ABEUAEREAR
BEZEE)

REMFEHESKALRE
B AFEEEEEBRAZ
BREMEERLEHAX

AEFIEBESHESBAZ
BREMEERLEHX

FLIE W E 5 AR IR RE R 2 RE
EEEE CRERE) FE8
PhEL A B AR TR R R

CRE RS TR ) 6l (B /&5 1R 3¢ 25 3R
FLEL S B 2 A R SRIARERR

RN SES
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A

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(133,041) (137,909)
(8,077) (7734)
(141,118) (145,643)
(2,015) (2,014)
(546) (542)
(6) 27)
(7,384) (6,806)
(19,680) -
(27,064) (6,806)
(709) -
(37,602) -
- (71,064)
(4,457) (4,355)
(8,135) (9,535)
- (628)
(8,135) (10,163)
522,963 544,533
(13,341) (14,197)
(3.673) (3,034)
505,949 527,302
27 (6)
(18) 48,998
(982) -




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

15. DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS

Fees and other emoluments paid or payable to each of the nine

(2018: nine) Directors were as follows:

Mr. Lau, Ming-wai ZgERE
Ms. Chan, Sze-wan Reeat
Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan RAELL
Ms. Chan, Lok-wan RERLL
Mr. Lam, Kwong-wai WEEEE
Ms. Amy Lau, Yuk-wai 2T ELL
Mr. Chan, Kwok-wai REIELE
Ms. Phills Loh, Laiping ~ BESZ L
Mr. Ma, Tsz-chun BRELE

15. ESE

ENEENTFAR(ZE-N\F-NB)ESF
BEEZHAEREMMENT:

2019 2018

Retirement Retirement

Salaries benefit Salaries benefit

and other scheme and other scheme
Fee emoluments contributions Total Fee  emoluments  contributions Total

FeR BIKER ek RINER
we HitMe SR &g ik E#e HE S pek:]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR T TR TET FET
300 - - 300 300 - - 300
- 1,960 144 2,104 - 1,500 120 1,620
- 100 5 105 - 100 5 105
- 854 n 926 - 674 43 7
- 2,824 221 3,051 - 2,798 21 3,019
240 - - 240 240 - - 240
300 - - 300 300 - - 300
300 - - 300 300 - - 300
300 - - 300 300 - - 300
1,440 5,138 448 1,626 1,440 5072 389 6,901

No Directors waived any emoluments for the years ended

31 December 2019 and 2018.

Details of material interests of the Directors in transactions,

arrangements or contracts entered into by subsidiaries of the

Company are disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ Report” of

this annual report.

EENEREE T NEFR-_T-\Ft+=
A=t—B It FEAREWRIERME -

BARBZMBARILRS ZHHARZ
EENBEANGEZHBRAFRZ [EESH

EE] —HARE-

—E-NEERH

EABXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

16. EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

(a)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, two (2018: one) were Directors, details of their
emoluments were included in Note 15. The emoluments of

the remaining three (2018: four) individuals were as follows:

Salaries and other benefits

B
Retirement benefit scheme contributions IRUREFIFT S 3R

The emoluments of the three (2018: four) individuals were

within the following bands:

REMBRRME

16. EEM £
(@) EZEERSHFMAL

AEEREREMEALTH WA (=
E-)\F —R)REF REZMEF
BE#EHRMEIS Hp =R (ZF N
Frmg)@EMALZEEWT:

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR
7,650 9,293
616 713
8,266 10,006

Z=HB(ZE-N\F:mE)EAMALZ
MEEEmT

Number of employees

BEAE
2019 2018
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T — 2,500,000/ 7T 2 3
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T — 3,000,000/ 7T = -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T — 3,500,000/ 7T = -
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001 7T — 4,000,000/ 7T 1 1

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest paid
individuals, or Directors, as an inducement to join or upon

joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Emoluments of senior management

Other than the two (2018: all) senior management whose
profiles are included in the section headed “Profiles of Senior
Executives” of this annual report and their emoluments
have been disclosed in the five highest paid individuals
(Note 16(a)), the emolument of the remaining one senior
management was within the band of HK$1,500,001 to
HK$2,000,000.
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(b)

REEZE-NFR=ZFT—-N\F+=A
=t—RIEFEA AEEBELSRS
AR 2 B S 7 A0 A AN 52 B s 1 A
BEEmRZLEaes A THES
S EA & o

BREEEBZHME

REI RN AEZe F AL (M
16))ZMEB(ZE—N\F:2%)=
BERE (BARAFRIERITHAR
] —8R) ZBE s Fsg—(Im R
EEE M EE A1,500001FTE
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18.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

DIVIDENDS

(@) Final dividend for 2018 paid on
12 June 2019 of HK10 cents
(2017: HK10 cents) per share

(b) Interim dividend for 2019 paid on
27 August 2019 of HK1 cent
(2018: HK1 cent) per share

Total dividends paid BRI S A

Final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 of HK1 cent
(2018: HK10 cents) per share has been proposed by the board of
Directors and is subject to shareholders” approval at the forthcoming

annual general meeting of the Company.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the following
data:

Eamings: B :
Earnings for the purposes of basic and diluted

earnings per share 2 A
Profit for the year attributable to owners

of the Company S

(@) RZZE—NEX~A+=H
BIRAHZZZE-NFREKE
FRI0EIL (=T — 145
FRI0E)

b) RZE-NFNAZ+LH
BERMNZZF-hFPHKRS
FRIBW(ZE-NF:
FHRIEL)

] 7- Hﬁ /%\
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T TET
190,762 190,762
19,076 19,076
209,838 209,838

EEGEBERBE_T-NAF+-_A=+—
BLEFEZ RARESRUEM (ZT—N\F:
FR10EA) - BFERRRARE ZEERE
BERE LHAE-

18. ERRER

ARABHEBANEEZERERNLEERNTS
RIBATBURRTHE

SESRERNNEERNZ

RRBHEEABERFEZ

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FiHT FHET
790,167 1,015,290
—E-—nEgwR z#ABzss 207



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

18. EARNINGS PER SHARE (contd)

Number of shares:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the purposes of basic and diluted

earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 December 2019

and 2018 were the same as the basic earnings per share as there

were no diluting events during both years.

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Fair value

At 1 January 2018

Exchange adjustments

Increase in fair value recognised
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

— unrealised

At 31 December 2018

Additions

Exchange adjustments

Decrease in fair value recognised
in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income

— unrealised

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2019

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED

18. BIREF &)

Number of shares

BHEE
2019 2018
g B :
FTEEREARAREERF 2
LB NEF S
1,907,619,079  1,907,619,079

HE-_T—NFERZZE—)/\F+ZA=+—
BIEFE AR &S EE - i i m{E s
ErzEREERANETREARBFER -

19. REW

Completed
properties
ERME
HK$'000
FHET
AFE
RZE—N\F—HA—H 15,649,991
bE 3 3 2 (491,444)
REREE2EREREPERZ
N FEIE N
— K& 122,301
RZZE—-NF+=—A=+—H 15,280,848
RE 861
R s 220,457
R A 2 E RS RER P ER
NEER D
— k@ (742,659)
REE
R=F-NF+=A=t—H

14,759,507
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R &

PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+-_A=+—HIEFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

All of the Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are measured
using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as

investment properties.

Property valuations as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 were
carried out by B.I. Appraisals Limited (“B.I. Appraisals”), independent
qualified professional valuer, in respect of the Group’s investment
properties in Hong Kong and Mainland China. For the investment
properties in the United Kingdom, the property valuations as at
31 December 2019 and 2018 were carried out by Peak Vision
Appraisals Limited (“Peak Vision Appraisals”), another independent
qualified professional valuer. The valuers have recent relevant
experience in the valuations of similar properties in the relevant

locations.

At the end of the reporting period, the management of the Group
discussed with the independent qualified professional valuers about
the appropriate valuation techniques and key inputs for Level 3 fair

value measurements.

The valuation reports for the investment properties as at
31 December 2019 and 2018 were signed by the respective
director of B.I. Appraisals and Peak Vision Appraisals, who are
members of The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and/or The Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors. The valuations were performed
in accordance with “The HKIS Valuation Standards 2017 Edition”
published by The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors and/or “The
RICS Valuation — Global Standards (Effective from 31 January
2020)" (2018: “The RICS Valuation — Global Standards 2017")
published by The Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors.

19. REWE @)

REBEMBEHBEEBPOUARDEASHER
BEZDERETDRBATERAGTE XD
BRIEREMEAR

RIB-NFR-_ZE-N\F+-_A=+—8"
AEBURBELRFTEANEZRENERS
YEBEBREXMAEMRBBERFGARRQA

(TMRAEERETE ) EITYEME - ERIR R
BlzREWME mE—BULAERBERMER
BEFEERAR (DREFHETR-F
—NFRZZ-NFFTA=T—RBZYE
18 - [ {ERM T H A A AR R s R R L %

RBERR AEEZERERBYAERSE
XAEMTWARAECHERMEE =R
RTFEFEZIEHE-

E-NFER-E-NF+-_A=+—8"
%xé{%%ZfE@iﬁiEﬂfﬂEllﬁﬂ%ﬁ&/ S5
HEEZER (RERBBUEMESEER
SEERFHABMEERER)EE -ZEM
BENETEBNEMBESMRANZ [FEIE
A g B Tt FRA] R HER
FrRP R EBMBEMENZ [ 25 SIS
SHEE-E2HEN (B2 -2F - A=+—
HAER) ] (:;E—)\ii [EREFFTREAE
GHE- T LFEHER ) #ET

“E-NEFFHR FEAEXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd)

The fair value of each investment property is individually
determined at the end of each reporting period based on its
market value and by adopting investment method, and/or direct
comparison method, as appropriate. The investment method relying
on the capitalisation of rental income is based upon estimates of
future results and a set of assumptions specific to each property
to reflect its tenancy status. The fair value of each investment
property reflects, among other things, rental income from current
term leases, term yield rate, assumptions about rental income from
future reversion leases in light of current market conditions, the
assumed occupancy rate and reversionary yield rate. Judgment by
the valuers is required to determine the principal valuation factors,
including term vyield rate and reversionary yield rate. Such vyield
rates were adopted after considering the investment sentiments
and market expectations of properties of similar nature. Direct
comparison method assumes each of these properties is capable of
being sold in its existing state with the benefit of vacant possession
and by making reference to comparable sales evidence as available
in the relevant markets.

The following tables analysed the investment properties which
are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period
into the three-level hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13 “Fair Value
Measurement” which is further elaborated in Note 3.

REMBRRME

19. BREWZE &)

BEREMEZATFEREREHRBRIEED
B WRAREER,RERLEE (REA
BRI E) BRI EE - R EE KRB E AL
HE2UWA - WAHBERMERKRES Z (A5t R
—RZINEFEBRRSKE  ARREBEMR -
BEREVMEZAFERR (EAHBE)RAB
HHOBMRZESKRA BHBMRZEHE K
REETRERKEFHOMGESZRAZ
BRE BROEXRERORE - REETEE
MERR (BREQHR 2@ HE R ER B R
) bR 7R F i (BB 1F B 4l - R ER A B 1 R
FHEERRERANTSERALUEEY X
2B BELBABRRZEMEZT BT NA

MARXELERSREETS LA HLEBRZH
EEE-

TREBNRBEPRUNRAFEFEZREDE
Z=RoB/H (ERALEBMBREELNF3
5[ RTFEE]D ST RRHE3EE—F5F

it o

Fair value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
NYEE E—® EZR E=ZR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHAT FAT
Recurring fair value BREMAYE
measurements: TE:
Completed properties SRR
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF
+=-A=+-AH 14,759,507 - 1,295,824 13,463,683
At 31 December 2018 RZZ—N\F
+-A=+—H 15,280,848 - 1,296,616 13,984,232

Certain investment properties located in Hong Kong and Mainland
China categorised as Level 2 fair value measurement are
determined using direct comparison method with reference to the
recent selling prices of comparable properties on a price per square
foot basis which are adjusted to reflect the conditions and locations

of the related properties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 19.

Details of valuation techniques used and key inputs to valuation on
investment properties which are categorised as Level 3 fair value

measurement at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Fair value Valuation techniques
NYE fEERM
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FET
Properties held for 5,412,550 5,482,740 Combination of direct
investment in comparison method and
Hong Kong investment method
NREBZHERENE HELBERREE
A=Y
Properties held for 8,051,133 8,501,492 Combination of direct
investment in the comparison method and
United Kingdom investment method
NREBEZHERENE HELBERREE
A=Y
Total 13,463,683 13,984,232
k]

Reversionary yield is the rate taking into account the capitalisation
of potential rental income, nature of the property and prevailing
market conditions. Market rent per square foot is the market rent
taking into account the direct comparable market transactions to the

related properties.

The fair value measurements are negatively correlated to the
reversionary yield, while positively correlated to the market rent per

square foot.

BREWE @

RAREREAEAE=BATEFEZRE
W 2 A 08 PR 2 BT B B 2 I
T

Significant

unobservable

inputs Range
BAFTHREHE E

(1) Reversionary yield;  2.50% to 4.75%

and (2018: 2.50% to
ERERE: & 4.75%)
(2) Market rent per 250E £4.75E
square foot (ZZ—N\F:250E
BYHTRzTHESE Z4.75E)

3.13% to 5.00%
(2018: 2.88% to
4.75%)
3.13EE5008
(ZZ—)\F:288E
F4758)

(1) Reversionary yield;
and
ERERE: &
(2) Market rent per
square foot
BYARzWSHES

BREEHEDFREEHSRABERE W%
HEREEMRGHZLER -BFHRZTH
HEDFREEYEZDSAIHERLERR
HistizmHEAR-

RV EAERERRBEKRL  MEAGFT
Rz Hi5iE e RIKIEE -

“E-NEFFHR FEAEXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

19. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (contd) 19. WEWE (»)
Movements of investment properties which are categorised as PERE-BRATHEFAEZEZREVERFA
Level 3 fair value measurement during the year are as follows: BEymT
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABT
At 1 January m—HA—H 13,984,232 14,248,322
Additions NE 861 -
Exchange adjustments I 3, 5 2 221,112 (490,024)
(Decrease) increase in fair value recognised RérE 2 ERERERPERZ
in the consolidated statement of DE O ) 85
comprehensive income
— unrealised —RER (742,522) 225,934
Carrying amounts IREE
At 31 December R+t=ZA=+—H 13,463,683 13,984,232
There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 fair value REBEZE-_ZT-—NEFR_FE-—N\F+ZA=+—
measurement during the years ended 31 December 2019 and BILEFEERN E=RA2TEFEZREDEL
2018 and no change in valuation techniques used in prior years. In SmEANEL MR ZEERITEBAFE
estimating the fair value of the properties, their current use equates FIBH T EEE - EZRAFE WX
to the highest and best use of the properties. ERRRERASEm R&ERS-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. 1% - BB R &R E
Furniture, Yachts and
Leasehold Leasehold  fixtures and motor
land Buildings improvement  equipment vehicles Total
il &
RELH g3 nELE  BERRE  HEREHR ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAEL FEL FEL FEL FEL FEL
Cost BA
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\§-A—-8 27856 4,854 12,748 35313 100,498 181,269
Additions NE - - 5 2,125 - 2,130
Disposals/written off e/ - - - (9,753) (18,400) (28,153)
Exchange adjustments BN AE (1316) (229) - (24) 131 (1,438)
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N\ETZA=1T—H 26,540 4,625 12,753 217,661 82,229 153,808
Additions RE - - 14,226 2,847 - 17,073
Disposals/written off HE /M - - (1,608) (2.120) - (3.728)
Exchange adjustments B 5 5% (594) (103) - (12) - (709)
At 31 December 2019 RZB-AE+ZA=t-H 25,946 4,522 25,371 28,376 82,229 166,444
Depreciation &
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F-A-8 1,835 408 12,195 28,462 95,252 138,152
Charge for the year TEENE 497 108 543 2,800 2,858 6,806
Elimination upon disposals/written off % /il #5854 34 - - - (9,738) (18,033) (27771)
Exchange adjustments BN A (107) (23) - (21 118 (33)
At 31 December 2018 RZEB-N\F+ZA=+-H 2,225 493 12,738 21,503 80,195 117,154
Charge for the year FEEHE 475 104 2,679 2,583 1,543 1,384
Elimination upon disposals/written off & /i 348 ¥ 88 - - (1,605) (1,930) - (3,535)
Exchange adjustments EiRE (59) (13) o (1) = (83)
At 31 December 2019 R=F-AE+=A=1-H 2,641 584 13,812 22,145 81,738 120,920
Carrying amounts REE
At 31 December 2019 RZB-AE+ZA=1-H 23,305 3,938 11,559 6,231 491 45,524
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+ZA=+—-H 24315 4,132 15 6,158 2,034 36,654
—E-nEfH  EAExEE 213



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES

The Group leases assets including properties and equipment. Most
of the leases of properties are negotiated for term ranging from
one to three years while lease of equipment is negotiated for five
years. Information about leases for which the Group is a lessee is

presented below:

(a) Right-of-use assets

Cost B
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\F+A=+—H
(originally stated) (RE275)
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16 =M E BB 3k &% 8% 1657
a7

At 1 January 2019 (restated) ~ R=ZT—AF—A—H (£%)

Additions NE
At 31 December 2019 R-ZB-NFE+ZRA=+—-H
Depreciation e
At 31 December 2018 RZB-N\F+-A=+—H
(originally stated) (REZ7)
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16 IR A 8 B 15 3R & 2 A 8 1657
ZHE

At 1 January 2019 (restated) ~ R=ZT—h&E—HA—HB (£7)

Charge for the year AEENE

At 31 December 2019 R-BE-NE+=-A=+—-H
Carrying amounts BREE

At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-A%+=-A=+—-H

214 CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019

21.

EHAEEERBEESRE

AEBFAHEZEERRBRMENEME - KDY
EHBmEIERA—E=F MEBzHE
HRRIBEALF -ARAAKEFELSEABRA
ZHEERZHMT :

(a) ERHEEE
Properties Equipment Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TER TR
6,593 1,232 7,825
6,593 1,232 7,825
148,754 = 148,754
155,347 1,232 156,579
19,218 462 19,680
19,218 462 19,680
136,129 770 136,899




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

21. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE
LIABILITIES (contd)

(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities payable within a period of:

Less than one year
More than one year but within two years
More than two years but within five years

Less: Amounts due within one year

Amounts due after one year

The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are

disclosed in Notes 11 and 14.

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended 31 December

2019 was approximately HK$54,559,000.

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2. ERAREERHEEESERS @

(b) HEEE

2019
HK$'000
FET

AR THHHEENEERR:
N 47,929
—F LA BT BERE 50,539
M LA 1B B B R 33,586
132,054
B —FRNEIE 2 RIE (47,929)
—F & F|Hf 2 FkI8 84,125

EEASTHIAFAEEZSERME R4
M FE

REZE-_Z—NE+-_A=+—HItFE A
&2 e85 %)54,559,000/8 It ©

2. EEEE

Cost

At 1 January 2018,
31 December 2018 and
31 December 2019

Amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2018,

31 December 2018 and

31 December 2019

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

B

RZE-N\&E—F—A8"
ZE-NFF+ZA=T—HK
—T-hF+=ZA=+—H

BHERRE

RZZ-N\E—HR—H"
—E-N\F+=ZA=t-8kK
—E-NF+ZR=+—H

fRE &
R-B-hF+=-A=t-H

RZB-N\F+-A=+—H

Trading and

exchange
rights Trademark Total
EERESE [k e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FTET
2,705 14,300 17,005
2,705 14,300 17,005
“E-NEFHR EAEBXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

22. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (contd)

23.

The above intangible assets have definite useful lives. Such

2. BIEEE @

tmpEEARRE ERFL WAL

intangible assets are amortised on a straight-line basis over five REFHH -
years.

GOODWILL 23. B8

Cost N

At 1 January 2018,
31 December 2018 and
31 December 2019

Impairment
At 1 January 2018 and
31 December 2018

Impairment loss for the year

At 31 December 2019

Carrying amounts
At 31 December 2019

At 31 December 2018

R-ZE—N\F—H—H"
—E-N\FE+_A=1t—H8BEK
—ET-NF+=ZA=+—H

A
R-Z-NF—A—BK

—E-NF+=ZA=+—H
NEERERE

RZBE-hE+ZA=+—H

REE
R-E-AFE+=-BA=+—H

RZB-N\F+ZRA=+—H
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HK$'000
FERT

370,686

47,748
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R &

PR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+-_A=+—HIEFE

23. GOODWILL (contd)

Impairment testing of goodwill

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired through
certain business combinations has been allocated to the Group's
CGUs, which in all cases were determined to be investment
properties owned by subsidiaries. The carrying amount of goodwill
(net of accumulated impairment losses) was allocated to CGUs with

the following places of operation:

United Kingdom o
Hong Kong e

The recoverable amount for the CGU operated in the United
Kingdom has been determined based on value-in-use calculation
using five-year cash flow projections approved by the Directors.
The pre-tax discount rate adopted as at 31 December 2019 was
approximately 5.20% (2018: 5.97%) per annum for the United
Kingdom property business which was applied to the cash flow
projection when assessing the recoverability of the CGU containing
goodwill. Cashflows beyond that five-year period have been
extrapolated at nil (2018: nil) growth rate in the calculation of the
terminal value. As at 31 December 2019, the management noted
that the anchor tenant of the investment property of the Group
located in the United Kingdom will surrender the lease in the first
quarter of 2020 and thereafter asset enhancement work to the
investment property is expected to carry out by the Group. Based
on this assumption, an independent qualified professional valuer
has carried out a value-in-use calculation of the CGU operated
in the United Kingdom, with the recoverable amount for the
United Kingdom CGU of approximately HK$3,269,118,000 as at
31 December 2019. The Group recognised a full impairment loss of
goodwill of approximately HK$322,938,000 (2018: nil) attributable
to the United Kingdom CGU as at 31 December 2019.

Full impairment for goodwill of the other businesses in Hong Kong

was recognised in prior years.

23. B8 w

BERENE

RETREAR RETEBEHELEZHE
ENREAEEZREELBMN REZETF
REBMNBARMBA ZREME HEEE
B(NERREREBE) DEZATEEBE
ZHREELBM:

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TR
- 322,938

- 322,938

REEEE 2B EEEM 2 A IRE S5 IR
BESIEZAFRSRETEN  WIRFERE
B EEET BN ERECREEELSN
ZAERER R_E-AFE+_A=+—
%%ﬁ%%%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁsm
B (ZZE—NF:5.97E)EAERARZASR
Eﬁﬂcﬁﬁﬁﬁué2ﬁ$m§&§(:v
—NF E)EREEEUHNERKREEBR R
—NFT-A=+—H8 EEEIEIA
%Eﬁ%%ﬁZ&ﬁ%%Zi%ﬁﬁ%m:
ToTFEFROMAE  AEHAER BRI
BRZIREMEETEERICTRE - AR LR
FOBUAERBEEGEMCREELCE 2R
CEEBMETERABENE ZABReE
FBUR_ZT-—NF+A=+—RH2zalK
O 4 5849/53,269,118,000/8 7T - R —E—h4F
TZRA=+—"H AEERERRSELEN
TR E 2 2 BUREEE L /£322,938,000%
T(ZE—N\F &)

IRNBEEMRF < HE 2EREBRDR
BEFERER
—E-NFFER  EANEXEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

23. GOODWILL (contd)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Cont'd)

In the preparation of the value-in-use calculation, there are a
number of assumptions and estimates involved for the preparation
of the cash flow projections. Key assumptions included gross
income, discount rates and time period required for the asset
enhancement work which are determined by the Directors based
on past performance and their expectation for market development.
The values assigned to key assumptions were based on historical
experience, current market conditions, approved forecasts and
consistent with external information sources. Gross income is
budgeted gross income. The discount rates used were determined
with reference to weighted average cost of capital of similar
companies in the industry reflected specific risks relating to the
industry. Time period required for the asset enhancement work was
determined based on time required for similar work of comparable
investment property. The estimated future cash inflow and cash
outflow derived from asset enhancement is excluded in the value-
in-use calculation. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the
Directors believed that any reasonable possible change in any of
these assumptions would not cause the aggregate carrying amount
of the CGUs to exceed their respective aggregate recoverable

amount.
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REMBRRME

23. B8 w

AERENE (E)

RimEEREEAER RRESREFRNY
hZBEBRE G -TERRBEREERE
BAERRLRSFEMSERBAMEE 2K
ANRE MEXREERICTIRABER X
EREABEEABERLS  SaTHR K&
HETERI B R IR W& SN ERE KRR « A 48
BOBEERALR MARMZERED2R
EARERARZ MEFHERRAEE ¥R
BREVITERB 2 ERR - EEEILTIZEMS
B R BE A L EIR B R 2 LT
EREmET - EREEHETREEERL
PREEZ G ARIRSARARBR SR - RE
EZZ-N\FtZA=T—RHILFE EFEH
EENZERRZEMNEEARED T E88
HAZELABURAEARBLREMEBZ
AU & R AR o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

24. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING 24. LERZEARZEKRE
THE EQUITY METHOD

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
(a) Interests in associates: (@) EpENAER:
Cost of investments in associates RE B R R
— unlisted —3EET™ 1,204,736 1,204,736
Share of post-acquisition profits/losses and BEWEERR, BB R
other comprehensive income/expenses Hih2EW a2 H
net of dividends received kR B W & 1,020,234 1,067,815
2,224,970 2,272,551
(b) Interest in a joint venture: b)) —HEERTHEZ:
Cost of investment in a joint venture BE—REEERRIKA
— unlisted (note) —JE b (FI&E) 150 150
Share of post-acquisition profits BB R EN 208,208 3,476
208,358 3,626
2,433,328 2,276,177
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group Mid: RBEEZT—/N\F+_A=+—HILF
subscribed 509% equity interest in Landrich (H.K.)) Limited E AEERE -—HEERR-E®R (B
(“Landrich"), a joint venture holding a property located at Nos. B)BRAT ([ ) 25000/ A #E 5 -
14-18 Ma Kok Street in Tsuen Wan. ZEBERAIFAMLNELES AE14-185%
ZHE -
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group further RBZE_Z-NEF+_A=+—HILF
subscribed 1% equity interest in Landrich so that the Group B RNEEE — P RIEER 2100 A #
held 51% equity interest in Landrich as at 31 December 2019. wBARER T -NF+ZA=+—
Pursuant to the shareholders’ agreements, it requires unanimous BB 2510 AR - RIER R %
consent from all shareholders of Landrich for decisions about B HAEB 2 RRBAEMERR A
the relevant activities. The Group does not have control over ERZZE-NF+A=+—H &*&
Landrich under the shareholders’ agreements notwithstanding = 5 45 5 (B 0 HB 1B 5000 IR A i 5 - BIRIE
the Group holds more than 50% equity interest in Landrich as at HRER f7h o2 00 A AR A - BUE S D R
31 December 2019 and Landrich is therefore classified as a joint REEBZEARNT

venture of the Group.

Particulars of the Group's principal associates and joint venture as at KE

BR-_Z—NAE+_A=+—RA2Z2FE
31 December 2019 are set out in Note 49. iR N PN

AR BB RE ZFHIBHIN N EE49 -

I

“E-NEFR EA

]
e
i
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24. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

The Company provided corporate guarantees to secure bank
borrowings granted to its associates in prior years and joint venture
during the year ended 31 December 2019. The fair value of the
financial guarantee contract at initial recognition was determined
by Norton Appraisals Limited, independent qualified professional
valuer, and was recognised as investments accounted for using
the equity method and financial guarantee liabilities in the Group's

consolidated statement of financial position.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the investment properties held
by the Group's principal associates and joint venture were revalued
by B.l. Appraisals. B.l. Appraisals continues to adopt investment
method and/or direct comparison method as the valuation
methodologies. The valuation methods and significant assumptions
applied in determining the fair values of investment properties
are detailed in Note 19. In addition, for investment properties
under development at fair value, their fair values are determined
by residual method by deducting the estimated total outstanding
redevelopment cost and an allowance for developer’s risk and profit

from the gross development value of the proposed redevelopment.

All of the associates and the joint venture are accounted for using

the equity method in these consolidated financial statements.

The information below reflects the amounts presented in the
unaudited financial statements of associates and a joint venture
which were prepared in accordance with HKFRSs adjusted for the
differences arising from accounting policies and different financial
year-end dates between the Group and the associates and joint

venture, if any.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%
For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HIEFE

24. LEFRZEARZRE

$”ﬂ%ﬂ&¢f%ﬁ ERRAEREEC
—NAF+ZA=+-HIEFEREAEAR
Tkﬁ”?ﬁ%ﬁ%%&ﬁﬁ%fZﬁﬁ )
BRERANVSHERAZATFERBISER
EXEEMESERFEAERIARAEE LB
RALE 2 5RA BN IMER N ER R IAE
BAEARZRE MM BREREE-

R-BE-NFER-_FT-NF+-A=+—81"
AEEXIZBERNARAERARFEZIRE
MEE BRI ERFHEETER  RIBBEIERF
BFERNRE RN RERLBERGE
T RARNBEREMERHEZEEX
KX ZREMNM 195 « b 5h - IR A F(E
ZERDPEREWMEMNS  HRFETDARBE
FRNMEERER 2AERENRMEER
NZERRARBARERD Z AR RFE
ZBFFEEMEE -

CIRR: I WNCID S == WIS IV 57 AN
BUBRRAIE-

UTEMRBRRBERR R —HaERAZ
AEEZHBRREINZEH ZEFUBHERE
REBUBREEN YR AN EBRBERT
REBERAzHESEHBRMELEZEZRR
TR BFLBES (WBE)ELHEMERE -



24. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz

THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

(a

Interests in associates

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Group's material associate, Finedale Industries Limited, is set

out below:

Finedale Industries Limited

Non-current assets
Current assets
Current liabilities

Net assets

Revenue

(Loss) profit for the year

Total comprehensive (expenses)
income for the year

Reconciliation of the summarised financial
information presented to the carrying
amount of its interest in the associate:

Net assets at 1 January

Total comprehensive (expenses)
income for the year

Net assets at 31 December

Interest held by the Group

Group's interest in the associate
and the carrying amount

Dividend received from the associate
during the year

(a) H#&

all

S

E&E

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

24. LERZEARZEE @

AEESEMENT - EHEEBRA
AZHBERBEEHFINT

EBHEBEARAQT
2019 2018
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
ERENEE 3,709,000 3,843,000
MBEE 578,704 466,674
mENBE (86,905) (61,146)
AEFE 4,200,799 4,248,528
WA 110,173 95,734
AEE (BE)RF (47,729) 510,263
AFEEE2@(ZH)
W = 4R RE (47,729) 510,263
Bt N Rl m 2 BREE A
B IS B B 2 $8R -
R—A—BZ2EEFE 4,248,528 3,738,265
ANEEE2E ()

Wes 4878 (47,729) 510,263
RT-_A=+—HZEBEFE 4,200,799 4,248,528
AEBIFH 2 ER 33.33% 33.330
AEBMRZBERRZ

EmMEmE 1,400,266 1,416,176

RAFEBEWBERT 2
gy - _
“E-AEFER ZEABEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

24. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

(a) Interests in associates (Cont'd)

(a)

Aggregate financial information of associates that are not

individually material:

Group's share of results for the year
Group's share of other comprehensive

expenses for the year

Group's share of total comprehensive

income for the year

Group's aggregate interests in these

associates and the carrying amounts

Dividends received from associates

during the year

AEBBERFEES
REBBIEARFE
H s 2 TH 3 H

REBBIEARFE
E2E AR

AEERZEHERRZ
HRAELREE

RAFEE YW E R E
i =)
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REMBRRME

24. UERZEARZEE @

BENRER (8)

BRIFFEE 2B E RRIMBER AR

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
20,862 58,688

(a,382) (10,050)
16,480 48,638
824,704 856,375
48,212 61,500




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& Bt 3R &R M 5

24. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING

THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

(b) Interest in a joint venture

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Group's joint venture, Landrich, is set out below:

Landrich (H.K.) Limited

Non-current asset

Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Other current assets

Current liabilities
Current financial liability
(excluding trade and other payables
and provisions)

Other current liabilities

Non-current liability

Non-current financial liabilities

Net assets

b) —-BAEATER

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

24. LERZEARZEE @

AEEEERR-—EMcMBENBE

AT
B (EB)ARAT
2019 2018
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
EREBEE 900,000 490,000
MBEE
Be RS EEER 6,571 8,170
HEthm#EE 2,018 3,471
8,589 11,641
mBEE
MECRBE
(TREENESERER
E b JEAT BRIE LA K B 48) (180,000) (180,000)
Hipneh &8 & (2,576) (5,951)
(182,576) (185,951)
SEREAE
RSB E (317,467) (308,437)
AEFE 408,546 7,253
“E-AEFER ZEABEEE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HIEFE

24. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

(b) Interest in a joint venture (Cont'd)

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Group's joint venture, Landrich, is set out below: (Cont'd)
Landrich (H.K.) Limited (Cont'd)
The results of Landrich during the year ended 31 December

2019 (2018: during post-acquisition period since the

subscription of Landrich) are as follows:

24. UERZEARZEE @

(b)

—HeEQRERE (B

AEEEERR-—EMcMBENBE
AT ()

W (EB)ARLE (A)

RBE_Z-NFt+-_A=+—BLLF
53 —\F: ARBEANKBERSR

(=
fal) ﬁ%%ﬁZ%i T

Dividend received from the joint venture

during the year

RAFEERAEERAZRE
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2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FET
Revenue WA 4,200 12,879
Interest expense F B 5,364 3,625
Income tax expense FREBiR - 1,256
Profit for the year/period EFE B A 401,292 3,355
Total comprehensive income REE/HEEERGERE
for the year/period 401,292 3,355
Reconciliation of the summarised financial & & A A # 25 7 Bl {E &2
information presented to the carrying MBER2HER:
amount of its interest in the joint venture:
Net assets at 1 January R—R—BZEEFE 7,253 -
Increase in share capital A A$E AN
(2018: net fair value of the identifiable (Z2E—N\F:RRB\EZ
assets and liabilities as at the date of AIgREEREBEZ
subscription) (note) NEEFE) () 1 3,898
Total comprehensive income for the year A% ¥ 2 W5 4858
(2018: post-acquisition total —E-N\FWEEEE
comprehensive income) e 4 %E) 401,292 3,355
Net assets at 31 December R+ZA=+—HZEEFE 408,546 7,253
Interest held by the Group REBBBEZER 51% 50%
Group's interest in the joint venture and FEBRZEERBZERR
the carrying amount FREE 208,358 3,626




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& Bt 3R &R M 5

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-ZF

24. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING
THE EQUITY METHOD (contd)

(b)

Interest in a joint venture (Cont'd)

The summarised financial information in respect of the

Group's joint venture, Landrich, is set out below: (Cont'd)

Landrich (H.K.) Limited (Cont'd)

Note: Upon completion of the subscriptions during the years

ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the excess of the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment of
approximately HK$4,089,000 (2018: HK$1,799,000) was
included in the determination of the Group's share of the
joint venture's profit or loss in the period in which the
investment was acquired.

25. ADVANCES TO ASSOCIATES

26.

Interest-bearing advances to associates BATHEE DA
Interest-free advances to associates BASHEE R A

The advances to associates are unsecured. The Group will

not demand for repayment within one year from the end of

the reporting period and the amounts are therefore shown as

non-current. The interest-bearing advances to associates bear

interest at the prevailing market rates.

ADVANCE TO A JOINT VENTURE

The advance to a joint venture is unsecured and interest-free. The

Group will not demand for repayment within one year from the

end of the reporting period and the amount is therefore shown as

non-current.

—hFE+ZA=+—HLFE

24. LERZEARZEE @

(b) —MaEATMEE(E)

AEEEERR-—EMcMBENBE
M (58)

W (EB)ARLE (A)

Mizd: REBEE-_Z-—HhLEER-_ZT—)N\F
+_ﬂ_+ AIEFE  REKRR
B NEEBEAHIEERE
BEZAFEFEBAEERALD
£4,089,0008 0 (=& — )\ F :
1,799,000 7T ) I B Uk B %18 &
ZHERBEEEEAE@BBES
BRIz

25. B HEE N B FIE
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
BRE 47,846 48,147
BRIA 265 1,112
48,111 49,259
BNEE QR FBTEER - REBE g ER

R EREFT —FREETR #HEZER
TBIEIERBIEHE - BB E QR 25 B IA
NERZTSEERNETE -

26. Y —RESEQRRE

iMTJ‘—F'EJ/*\ﬁ"_ FRBATTERERLRE - NE
TERNBERRET —FAEEEA

EKH#EZ RIRSIVESERE D

“E-NEFFHR FEAEXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Bonds (note (i)) EH (HEE0)
Club and corporate debentures (note (ii))
Derivative financial instrument (note (iii)) il

REMBRRME

27. BRBERHURRIFETEZ

gk awEs (M)
PTHES BRI A (PIEEGI))

W

Analysed for reporting purpose as: ERERGBZ AT
Non-current SEREIME
Current mENEE

Notes:

(i)  As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of bonds was

approximately HK$8,975,533,000 (2018: HK$6,685,515,000),
including bonds with aggregate carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,650,320,000 (2018: HK$1,006,669,000) were available
to be loaned to financial institutions for earning lending fee
income and the same or substantially the same securities would
be returned to the Group, pursuant to the terms and conditions
contained in the securities pooled lending agreements, of which
approximately HK$90,709,000 (2018: HK$75,581,000) were on
loan at the end of the reporting period.

The bonds denominated in US$ carry at fixed rate range from
4.750% to 13.750% per annum of which notional amount of
US$937,015,000 are callable and all bonds denominated in GBP
with notional amount of GBP24,500,000 carry at fixed rate range
from 5.875% to 7.250% per annum and are callable.

The bonds are traded in active market and stated at fair values at
the end of the reporting period. Their fair values are determined
by reference to market bid prices quoted by financial institutions
and brokers.
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2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TR
8,975,533 6,685,515
62,820 78,481

= 1,921
9,038,353 6,765,917
1,670,271 1,350,090
7,368,082 5,415,827
9,038,353 6,765,917

R-ZE—h&F+_BA=+—H EH52E
T & 49 /58,975,533,000/8 7T (=& — )\
F :16,685,515,000/870) - & R ERTAIE A&
¥ #4)51,650,320,0008 0 (=T — \F:
1,006,669,000/ 7T ) 2 &% + IRIFIE S FE 5
BEBEASEZERRGESE THED T
SHMEEUARIEEBRA  MxEHE:

FARABERZELFBERETAEE R
MEHK EPEEBHEFZ2ERENA
90,709,000/ 7T ( —Z — )\ £ : 75,581,000
BIT) e

AZETTFHE 2 EH EE FF| & B4.750E =
13.750/F - Efh £ & € % A937,015,000%
TTZEE AR ER 2 EMARSEAEZE
% (4% © % £24,500,0005 8 ) [E & F F
R A5875E £7.250F 0 M AR ER -

BHRRRXERZTHEE R#@E MR
NRAFEIR - EHFZRFEIDRES R
BEBREL 2 TISEAREBETE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (contd)

Notes: (Cont'd)

0)

(i)

(i)

(Cont'd)

Major terms of the bonds denominated in US$ and GBP are as
follows:

Notional amount Maturity
US$102,000,000 2020
Us$18,500,000 2021
Us$52,000,000 2022
US$177,000,000 2023
US$268,000,000 2024
US$40,000,000 2025
US$9,000,000 2036
US$21,000,000 2046
US$400,015,000 Perpetual
GBP24,500,000 Perpetual

Club and corporate debentures are stated at fair values at the end
of the reporting period. Details of the fair value measurements
are disclosed in Note 5(c).

The Group entered cross currency swaps during the years ended
31 December 2019 and 2018. As at 31 December 2019, the
cross currency swap was presented as current liability (Note 37)
(2018: current asset). The table below is prepared based on
the maturity date of the contract. The major terms of the cross
currency swap as at 31 December 2018 were as follows:

Asset EE

En/ Bra%Ely
-——FR"

US$/HKS$ cross currency swap
— Within 1 year

The Group used the cross currency swap to exchange US$
bank borrowing of approximately US$158,405,000 in HK$ bank
borrowing of HK$1,238,000,000.

The cross currency swap was stated at fair value as at
31 December 2018. Details of the fair value measurement are
disclosed in Note 5(c).

27. BRBRHURRIFETEZ

EREE ®

BiaE: (&)

0)

(i)

(iif)

NETRRGHEZBHFZEEZARMT

ZESH A
102,000,000% 7T —ETF
18,500,000 7T —E-—F
52,000,000 7T —E_—

177,000,0003 7T —EC-=4
268,000,000% 7T —EE
40,000,000% 7T —E-RF
9,000,000% 7T TE=REF
21,000,000 7T ZEERF
400,015,000% 7T KA
24,500,000 % § KA

R R & B R A T 550 A T 85
B o 2 FE B 2 515 2 R K S0P B

EEREE_ZT—NFER—ZT—N\F
A=+ HALFERGT Y EEEE .
—E-NFFTA=t—HZEEBEH
23 ERBEaE ([FE37) (ZE—N\F:
REEE) o NRIDIRIEAOEISHEES-
R-IE—NF+-_A=+—H EliEH
ZEEEFRT

2018
Notional amount Fair value
HEDE NS
US$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FAT
158,405 1,238,000 1,921

AEBMUEERERBEETRITEEYD
158,405,000 T X BB TIRITIEE
1,238,000,000/% 7T ©

RZE—NF+-_A=+—8 &%
IAATFENER A AT EZFBED M
SR HFE -

I

“E-NEFR EA

]
e
i
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS #4R& Bt 3R &R M &
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT FAIR 27. BREBRURMAFETEZ

VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (contd) EWMEE @

Included in non-current assets, there were financial assets RBEETEERABRER AR AFER
measured at FVTPL of approximately HK$1,670,271,000 (2018: EZEMEERN,670,271,00087L (ZE—N
HK$1,350,090,000). They were included in non-current assets £ :1,350,090,000/8 70) * RIEEF 2 #E 75
according to their intended holding periods. BHMmMT AEREEE -

28. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED 28. FHiR H th 2 W i R R A F
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER EitBEZERMEE
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Listed investments: FHiRE:
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —RBEE ERAE 5
(note (i) (MFEEQ) ) 18,578,652 20,167,000
Unlisted equity securities: EEMIRAES
— Incorporated in Hong Kong (note (ii)) — BB () ) 1,045,621 707,542
— Incorporated elsewhere — R E fth 3 [2 T R 2
(note (i) (B 3EGi)) 558,270 492,765
20,182,543 21,367,307
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-ZF

28. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (contd)

Notes:

0)

(i)

(iif)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's portfolio of listed equity
investments mainly comprised the Evergrande Shares. The
unrealised loss on fair value change of the Evergrande Shares
of HK$1,591,000,000 (2018: HK$3,052,253,000), which was
determined based on quoted market bid price in active market,
was recorded in financial assets measured at FVTOCI reserve
during the year ended 31 December 2019. The carrying amount
of the Evergrande Shares held by the Group as at 31 December
2019 was HK$18,576,000,000 (2018: HK$20,167,000,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of listed equity
securities was approximately HK$18,578,652,000 (2018:
HK$20,167,000,000), none of the listed equity securities were
available to be loaned to financial institutions for earning lending
fee income (2018: listed equity securities with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$1,195,950,000 were available to be loaned and
the same or substantially the same securities were returned to
the Group, pursuant to the terms and conditions contained in the
securities pooled lending agreements). None of the listed equity
securities (2018: nil) were on loan at the end of the reporting
period.

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount mainly comprised
investment in a property development project in Hong Kong
(10% interest) of HK$882,763,000 (2018: HK$540,659,000).

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount mainly comprised
investment in an exempted limited partnership formed under
the Exempted Limited Partnership Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands (“Cayman Islands Partnership”) of approximately
HK$467,915,000 (2018: HK$408,159,000).

The Cayman Islands Partnership has a term of ten years from the
date of initial closing. Purposes of the Cayman Islands Partnership
are to achieve exceptional returns by acquiring, holding and
disposing of equity, equity-related securities, high-yield structured
financial products, independently or with others, in companies
with various operations or such other activities.

28. BBHMEENRE

e M RRME
—hE+-AZ+-BLFE

2 DU R A P

BEfECEmEE »

(i)

(iif)

—hE+-A=+—8 K&EEZE
I'Dﬂleihﬁiﬂmix’jﬁﬁﬁﬁx o RER
2T NF+-_A=+—HLEFER
BERERMSZEAREMEETEARK
MR EEE 2 REHEEIE,591,000,000
BT (ZZ— )\ :3,052,253,000/% T ) B
RBBEME2EWSEIARBRAFEFEZ
PRMEECHBEAAK - RZZ—NF+=
A=+—H AKEFEEARKM KR
{8 7/18,576,000,000i8 7T ( =& — )\ 4 :
20,167,000,0003 7T ) °

R_E—AF+_A=+—8B LWk
KT H 2 BRE A 518,578,652,0008 7T
(== — )\ :20,167,000,000/& 7t ) * I
M _F AR AR TE A A R E H T s LABR
BEEEBRA(ZZE—NF: EEE#@%@%
1,195,950,000/8 7t 2 £ T J& A 38 25 AJ i £
H o WARIEEE B S EEWEHE 2 5 #A&
G ZEBLFRABSERZESFCRET
AREE) - RREHE Iﬁ(_g AN: =
wm)EH 2 A ES

—E-NE+ZA=+—B EFEHEET
DARER—BANEAZWEEREE
(15109 %5 ) 882,763,000/ 7T ( —Z— 1\
£F 1 540,659,000/ 7T ) ©

—E-AF+-A=1+—8 KEEIE
BRER—HIEHEHEREREERAE
X (KB RL 2 ERRBRAEE D
X ([AERSABLE]) 4467915000
BT (ZZ— )\ : 408,159,000/ 7T ) °

REREARCEMVSHIIRRERE+
F-HERBABLEZENRERET
FEEMABRBE BELHEZRER
Z A2 BAHBEE SRS RS2

w1 Iiiﬁﬂ%?uu FEMZIEBARGEE
E’J@
“E-NEFHR EAEBXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (contd)

The quoted price in active market of equity securities listed in Hong

Kong represents quoted market bid price available on the Stock

Exchange.

For unlisted equity securities measured at fair value, details of the

fair value measurements are disclosed in Note 5(c).

Included in non-current assets, there were financial assets
measured at FVTOC! of approximately HK$20,182,543,000 (2018:
HK$21,367,307,000). They were included in non-current assets

according to their intended holding periods.

29. ADVANCE(S) TO INVESTEE COMPANIES
AND A NON-CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDER

(@) The advances to investee companies are unsecured and
interest-free. The Group will not demand for repayment

within one year from the end of the reporting period and the

amounts are therefore shown as non-current.

(b) The advance to a non-controlling shareholder was unsecured
and interest-free. The Group would not demand for
repayment within one year from the end of the reporting

period and the amount was therefore shown as non-current.

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #Z T —NF+_A=+—HILFE

28. EBRHMEEWm ARRAF

29.

BifEzEe@MEEw

REBLTRAFFNERT IS 2WME T8
BTz M EARE-

RARFEFEZFLTRAEZESME  AF
B EZFBFEDRHESCQNEE -

FERB) & B B R i iR A At B T UK AR DA SR A

NEEFEZ S RVE E#H20,182,543,00078 7T
— = — )\ :21,367,307,000/ 70) ° R IE

E2HRERBRMETAFERDEE -

BNESIREQCTNR—BEFE
MR B SR FKIR

(@) BNUEXBREABDFRANEEMRLR
B ARBTGERNBEHRER —
FRMEETIE SO ZERBIEIER
PILE-

(b) BN —FEIFERBRFATEER RS
BoAREENTG2RNHEHREFT —
FREERER  WHZFRBRINEIERE
HE-



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION 30. EEEBIIE
The following is the major deferred tax liabilities provided (assets LA 27K 52 B PR 7 3R 25 HA F) R 38 1F 4 45 B R
recognised) by the Group and movements thereon during the FEREBREEBZ BB (BEEZER) RE
current and prior reporting periods: o
Accelerated
Investment tax Tax
properties depreciation losses Total
RENE  MERERE BEEE aE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TR FAR FhR
At 1 January 2018 RZZE-\$—A—H 22,959 27508 (2,521) 47946
Exchange adjustments I 5 50 % (129) (1,517) 92 (1,554)
Charged to the consolidated statement of ~ Rz& 2 EMEREF M
comprehensive income (Note 13) (HEE13) 2,227 2,004 370 4,601
At 31 December 2018 RZE-N\E+ZRA=1—H 25,057 27,995 (2,059) 50,993
Exchange adjustments E R AR 39 746 (46) 739
Charged to the consolidated statement of ~ Rz & 2 E MR F MG
comprehensive income (Note 13) (FtzE13) 6,328 3,900 (2,003) 8,225
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZ-NE+=A=+-H 31,424 32,641 (4,108) 59,957
For the purpose of the presentation in the consolidated statement MEEMBRRBEZ 2 ETRLEHIES
of financial position, certain deferred tax liabilities and assets BEREECIELHE R BREREZELR
have been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax HEESRDTWT
balances for financial reporting purposes:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIBEE 61,549 52,892
Deferred tax assets BEXEBIEEE (1,592) (1,899)
59,957 50,993

—E-hEFHR  EAExsm 231



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-Z

“NEFTZA=t—HILFE

30. DEFERRED TAXATION (contd)

31.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has the following
major unrecognised deferred tax assets due to the unpredictability

of the future profit streams.

IRBIETE
P75 B 18

Accelerated tax depreciation

Tax losses

At the end of the reporting period, the Group’s unused tax
losses not recognised of approximately HK$33,473,000 (2018:
HK$23,588,000) will be expired in one to five years. Other
unrecognised tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely and

subject to the confirmation from the respective tax authority.

OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

(@) Pledged deposits

The amounts represent deposits pledged to banks and
other financial institutions to secure credit facilities granted
to the Group. Deposits amounting to approximately
HK$174,221,000 (2018: HK$154,195,000) have been
pledged to secure short-term borrowings and are therefore
classified as current assets. The remaining deposits
amounting to approximately HK$100,002,000 (2018:
HK$83,203,000) have been pledged to secure long-term

borrowings and are therefore classified as non-current assets.

The pledged deposits carry interest at prevailing market
deposit rates. The pledged deposits will be released upon the

repayment of relevant borrowings.
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31. &

PR & HIR - AN SR B el 70 B DA TR R R 208 )
AERAT 2 T BREFIAEE

2019
HK$000
FTEx

2018
HK$'000
TAET

(279)
(266,849)

(285)
(271,661)

(267,128) (271,946)

RBER AEER —ERFREETARE
R 2 R AMIBEE L R33,473,000% 7T

— J\fF :23,588,000/8 7T ) - H KR AER
2RI EIE T IR AR WA ABRRER
ﬁg_m °

b mEE
() ERER

ZERBERERTRITRE b2 B
B EALAEEEREERBZER
#9174,221,0008 T (ZF — N F:
154,195,000/ 7T ) 2 17 5K E 1 & % 5
BEZER BEIBEARBEE -#
T 49100,002,0008 7 (= Z — )\ F
83,203,000/ 7t) 2 7 R E1E A KBS
BER B BRIERBEE-

WA B AR SR B B T 5 2 17 5UOR R 5
B -REERERERER
By AR R o

GlEERER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& Bt 3R &R M 5
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

31. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS (contd)

(b)

(9

Securities trading receivables and deposits

Securities trading receivables and deposits are mainly

amounts due from clearing house, brokers and clients.

Time deposits, bank balances and cash

The time deposits and certain bank balances carry interest
at prevailing market deposit rates. As at 31 December 2019,
time deposits with maturity greater than three months
amounted to approximately HK$152,129,000 (2018:
HK$108,700,000) and the remaining deposits were with
maturity not greater than three months. The Group does not
hold collateral over the deposit balances. As at 31 December
2019, balances of cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$413,190,000 (2018: HK$605,872,000).

32. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

3.  HbEMEE =

(b)

(9

EWESR S REARER

UEFZXSERALFREBERERAE
B BHRERERPFA

ERFR BITERRRE

TFHFERRE TIRITHERIZERTIS
ZHERFRFE -RZE—hE+=A
—+t—B FREZR=_EAZTHF
K& HH5152,129,0008 7 (=T —N\
4 :108,700,000870) - B T F R Z1F
HEATZN=ER -AEBLERT
RERBBEREF - R_T—NF+=A
=+t—R BekREeEEEELEHKRS
BH#) /413,190,000 7T (ZF — N\F:
605,872,000/ 7T ) °

32. EWERIE -2 & HitEWER

Trade receivables EWE 5 AR18

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts B R

Deposits and prepayments Ze RIEFFKIE

Other receivables E b fE AR 1A

Analysed for reporting purpose as: ERER G Z DT
Non-current FERBME
Current mENEE

=+
ERENKE
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
12,185 3,985
(54) (432)
12,131 3,553
66,406 46,386
238,032 467,623
316,569 517,562
15,388 -
301,181 517,562
316,569 517,562
“E-AEFER ZEABEEE

233



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

32. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER

REMBRRME

32. BWIR™E - #£€ - Hitt BUR

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd)

Included in debtors, deposits, other receivables and prepayments
are trade receivables of approximately HK$12,131,000 (2018:
HK$3,553,000) comprised rental receivables billed in advance
and settlements from tenants which are expected upon receipts of

billings and receivables from cosmetic business.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables (net of allowance for

doubtful debts) of the Group’s major businesses are as follows:

MERE
USreE S

Property leasing
Cosmetic business

The Group maintains a defined credit policy to assess the credit
quality of each counterparty. The collection is closely monitored to
minimise any credit risk associated with these trade receivables.
Rental in respect of leased properties are payable in advance by the
tenants. Other trade debtors settle their accounts according to the

payment terms as stated in the respective contracts.

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables (net of
allowance for doubtful debts), presented based on the respective

revenue recognition dates, at the end of the reporting period:

0 - 30 days TE=+H
31 - 60 days =+—HAZX~+H
61 — 90 days At—BZEA+A
Over 90 days h+BMNUE
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B REMNKE @

JEWARIE - & B W ARTE RIER AR
FEEWE SIRIEXY12,131,0008 7T (ZZ— N\
£ :3,553,000/8 70 ) - BLFE T8 5t 5 i TE EA AR
PeaRrlRAErt Nz EEAS ARKE
A RER 2 EWARTE -

AEBEEFEEBRKE SRR (MR RER
) ZPREEWNT :

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx TAET
9,215 1,240
2,916 2313
12,131 3,553

AEBECHIFTAEZ EEREK UFEERS
FREEER AEEENERUKER B
REEREZFRVESRBERBZEER
R-HEMEXZHEAHRBPALIN - Eith
B 5 EHARBEER G KR FI B Z A 5KIEK
BEMERE-

BEFERAZERDBAZI 2 BWE 5K
B (MR REERS) NRERRZRERD TN
T

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
7528 755
1,583 534
544 634
2,476 1,630
12,131 3,553




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

32. DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd)

The following is the aged analysis of trade receivables which are

B REMNRE @

32. BWIR™E - #£€ - Hitt BUR

BB HERERE B E 5 RIE 2Rk D

past due but not impaired: TaT -
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
0 - 30 days TE=+H 7,095 949
31 - 60 days =+—BZEA+H 1,441 339
61 — 90 days At—AZENTH 188 63
Over 90 days h+AMNRE 1,985 1,433
10,709 2,784
Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts: RIEBHEH 2 EH):
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
At 1 January m—H—8 432 441
Impairment losses reversed in respect HMIEWE FHERIE 2
of trade receivables BB S 18 B (43) @)
Amount written off as uncollectible LI SENE /O] (335) ®)
At 31 December R+=A=+—H 54 432

For those past due but not impaired receivables, although the

Group does not hold any collateral as security, the Group has

assessed the creditworthiness, past payment history and substantial

settlement after the end of the reporting period, and considers that

the amounts are still recoverable and no further credit provision is

required in excess of allowance for doubtful debts.

EBHERBOREZ ERRETS @ #AX
SEYEREEMERRDIERER ARECH
HEE BHEERRCBIABMERREZEE
BERELATE TR BZSEREMATRE - £
AEE—F (ZRREBREB) 2EERE-

—B-hEEH

EABXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

32.

33.

34,

DEBTORS, DEPOSITS, OTHER
RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS (contd)

Trade receivables over 90 days comprising rental receivables of
approximately HK$1,700,000 (2018: HK$969,000) which are
sufficiently covered by rental deposits received from the respective
tenants, and no allowance is required for these receivables under

the Group's allowance policy.

Trade receivables which are neither overdue nor impaired are in

good quality.

STOCK OF PROPERTIES

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, all of the stock of properties

were completed properties.

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Directors reviewed the
carrying amounts of the completed properties with reference
to prevailing market conditions and the estimated selling prices

provided by B.I. Appraisals.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, a write-down of
completed properties of approximately HK$681,000 (2018:
HK$2,549,000) was recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as a result that net realisable value of a

completed property was lower than its carrying amount.

INVENTORIES

Finished goods R
Raw materials B4

All inventories were stated at the lower of cost and net realisable

value.
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32.

33.

REMBRRME

FEUWERIE -2 € - HttEWER
] K FEFE )

HBANTHAZERESRERFEERKESL
1,700,000/ 7T ( = — J\ & : 969,000/ JT)
(KRB EEBERE 2 ST AMRE) -
BEAREE  BEECR  BARZERIERE
e B -

MEARTAERELERRESRRAZER
R#Fe

NxFE

RZFB-NEFERZZE-N\F+=_A=+—8"
FrEMETEL BERDE-

RoE-NER-F-N\E+-A=+—8"
EFSLERTRRARIEERT GRS
it (- B 2 R -

REE-_Z-NF+_A=+—BILFERXN"
M2 AR FERARMERTE
BUER Y% 2 BB 4681,0008 7 (ZF— N\
F 12,549,000 70) W iR & 2 E W E= T H

34, 78

2019 2018
HK$"000 HK$'000
FET FAT
1,414 2,125
914 1,062
2,328 3,187

B RRA R SR ENE R REE
518 -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+-_A=+—HIEFE

35. CREDITORS AND ACCRUALS 35. B BRIA R BT KA
Included in creditors and accruals are trade payables of ERNEREBEREGREREERENESHRELN
approximately HK$ 1,079,000 (2018: HK$6,555,000). 1,079,000 7t (=& — )\ ¥ : 6,555,000
JT) e
The following is the aged analysis of trade payables at the end of ENESRERREARZERSTHOT

the reporting period:

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHAT
0 - 90 days TEN+H 313 6,531
Over 90 days h+AMNRE 766 24
1,079 6,555
36. BORROWINGS 3. 6 &

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FABT

Secured bank borrowings repayable ARTIHEEEEER

within a period of (note): RITIEE (M)

Less than one year —FUT 1,519,458 1,371,935

More than one year but within two years —F U LB E 2,216,145 131,385

More than two years but within five years MEN T ETBRRESF 1,985,815 4,312,602

5,721,418 5,815,922
Secured bank borrowing that contains B S 1R 2 Sk B R Rk 2 B R

repayment on demand clause RITEE (FIERBEE) -

(shown as current liability) but repayable WA 5 EAEER () :

within a period of (note):

More than two years but within five years ML LB S R F 592,476 601,279
Total secured bank borrowings BHEBIETEEES 6,313,894 6,417,201
Other secured borrowings repayable AR—FAEEREZ HhAEF

within one year R 7,128,365 7,330,474

13,442,259 13,747,675

Less: Amounts due within one year B — FAEIA 2 RIE (9.240,299) (9,303,688)

Amounts due after one year —F R8> 8 4,201,960 4,443 987

Note: The amounts due are based on scheduled repayment dates as MicE: ZEINHZeBRERBERHI2E
set out in the loan agreement(s). EREKBE-
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36.

37.

BORROWINGS (contd)

The bank borrowings denominated in HK$ are variable-rate
borrowings which carry interest at HIBOR plus 0.68% or cost of
funds of a bank plus 0.90% (2018: HIBOR plus 0.68% or cost of
funds of a bank plus 0.90%) per annum.

The borrowings denominated in US$ and GBP from banks and a
financial institution are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest
at cost of funds of a bank plus 0.90% (2018: cost of funds of a
bank plus 0.90%) or ranging from LIBOR plus 1.08% to 1.62%
(2018: LIBOR plus 1.08% to 1.62%) per annum.

Other borrowings are variable-rate borrowings which carry interest
ranging from costs of funds of individual financial institutions plus
0.25% to 0.55% or HIBOR plus 1.10% to 1.95% (2018: costs of
funds of individual financial institutions plus 0.25% to 0.55% or
HIBOR plus 1.10% to 1.95%) per annum.

The Group's borrowings that are denominated in currencies other

than HK$ are set out below:

Us$ e
GBP HEE

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT

B 1]

Cross currency swap
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36. 68 @

AT BEZRITEEARAZEGE  FFXEK
EBRITRAEREMOCSES —FRITES
B A NN0.90E (=Z — \&F : FEFRITRA N
BN0.68/E sk —AER 1T & £ A AN H10.90/F ) 5+
=

AT R EERTEZRIT R — RSB
ERAFEEE TR -—MBITESRA
M0.90E (ZZ—NF: —HRITE S AN
0.90F) sk fa BERITRIEHF S MN1.08EZE1.62
E(ZZ—N\F  mBEITRERE N .08E
E162E)tE-

HthEERZEEE FRXIZER S igE
BERANM025EE0.55F BB IRITRENR
BINTI0EZE195E (—ZF— N\F: @745
& £ KA M0.25E £0.55FE B B RITAE
EW/RENMII0EE195E)FHE

AREBABTUINERHEZEEHIWT -

2019 2018
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FET
2,602,251 2,124,371
4,078,918 4,131,919
6,681,169 6,256,290
7. TTEE®m I A
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHETT
6,060 -




37.

38.

39.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENT
(Cont'd)

The table below is prepared based on the maturity date of the contract.
The major terms of the cross currency swap as at 31 December 2019
are as follows:

Liability = |

En/ BrE¥ES
——FR

US$/HKS$ cross currency swap
— Within 1 year

The Group used the cross currency swap to exchange US$ bank
borrowing of approximately US$158,120,000 in HK$ bank borrowing of
HK$1,238,000,000.

The cross currency swap is stated at fair value as at 31 December 2019.
Details of the fair value measurement are disclosed in Note 5(c).

37. fTEERI A

TERIBEBESGOIHERE - R_T—NF+=

A=1+—H EBEBZETEBHROT:
2019

Notional amount Fair value

BESHE A¥E

US$‘000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

SEEZom FHET FET

158,120 1,238,000 6,060

AEBE S g TIRTTE E4158,120,000
ELR ] ABITIRITIEE1,238,000,000% 7T ©

RIE-NF+-A=+—0 BEERHAULT
BEIIfR- A FEFEZFBERHESQORRE -

SHARE CAPITAL 38. A&
Movements in the share capital of the Company during the year KRB ZBRARKTEEZEFHMNT :
were as follows:
Number of shares Share capital
RGHE B
2019 2018 2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FhR
Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each BREE0I0E T ERK
Authorised: EERA:
At 1 January and 31 December ®R—A—BE+=A=+—H 5,000,000,000  5,000,000,000 500,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERRA
At 1 January and 31 December R—A—-BRTZA=+—H 1,907,619,079  1,907,619,079 190,762 190,762

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES,
INVESTEE COMPANIES AND
NON-CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

The amounts due to associates, investee companies and
non-controlling shareholders are unsecured and interest-free. The
associates, investee companies and non-controlling shareholders
will not demand for repayment within one year from the end of
the reporting period and the amounts are therefore shown as

non-current.

30. REBEQNT EZRERQNT
K JE 2 IR R SR AR IE

REABERT EIRERF RIFERBERR
BEREERRER REWENR EXKR
BRAIRFERRRTNEREEHRET —
FRBREEFKIE MR ETIATIEFRE
HE-

“E-NEFFHR FEAEXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE =T —hF+-_A=+—HIEFE

40. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

41.

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, the Group did not have major non-cash transactions.

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 41.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash
flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified as cash flows from

financing activities in the Group's consolidated statement of cash

flows.

At 1 January 2018
Financing cash flows
Exchange adjustments
Dividends declared
Total interest (Note 11)
Qther changes

At 31 December 2018
(originally stated)
Effect on adoption of HKFRS 16

At 1 January 2019 (restated)
Financing cash flows
Exchange adjustments
Dividends declared
Increase in lease liabilties from
entering into new leases during the year
Total interest (Note 11)

At 31 December 2019

—T-\5-A-H
Eign
EREE
B ()
&)

- \f+ZA=+-H
(R%E23)

RBERUBREENE
a3

R-B-NE-A-R(E])

EXAE

EREE

RAEEAUHAOMENL
HERE

Mg ()

R=B-n¥+=R=t-H

REMBRRME

e

R

BAERA M ImERE
EYEIEIFRER

MEXBRELEAB YR

EZBENEERS)
NN SE
BXBEEZRaRE28E-

40. TEFRERH

f #Bo

R =12
IE B

PR EEE N K&

TR AEEBREXGHELEZBEED
BRERAERIFREEH-

BMEXRBHME

FAKBERE

EREMEXRADERF

Amounts
due to non-
Loan from  controlling lease  Dividend Interest
Borrowings  adirector shareholders liabilities payable payable Total
REFBR
#& EZER RRHE HEEE ERRE EfAE a5
HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAL TiER TAL Tk TAL TR TR
16,473,013 1,835,500 49,202 - - 17505 18375220
(Q487567)  (1835117)  (25,000) - (09838)  (343343)  (4900,865)
@3711) (383) - - - (950)  (239104)
- - - - 209,838 - 209,838
- - - - - 342,356 342,356
- - (25) - - - (25)
13,747,675 - 24,171 - - 15,568 13,787,420
- - - 1825 = = 1825
13,741,675 - 24,171 1825 - 15,568 13,795,245
(398,521) - (13920)  (11600)  (209,838)  (374,926)  (1,068,809)
93,105 = = - - (163) 92,94
- - 50,080 - 209,838 - 259,918
- - - 134,743 - - 134,743
- - - 1,086 - 315,110 376,856
13,442,259 - 333 132,054 - 16249 13,590,895
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+-_A=+—HIEFE

42. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the carrying amounts of the
assets pledged by the Group to secure general banking and other
loan facilities granted to the Group and to secure the securities

transactions, are analysed as follows:

42. EEEA

RBERR  AEBERAEEER 2 —RIRTT
REMERBEARELRZZMEBRZEE
FREESHIT

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FA&T

Investment properties A 12,248,623 12,770,552
Financial assets measured at fair value through BBERURBAFEFEZ

profit or loss CREE 8,975,533 6,685,515

Financial assets measured at fair value through 38 38 L fth 2 T W2 2 DA S Bt

other comprehensive income NFEFEZEMEE 18,578,652 18,760,000

Non-current pledged deposits IR B IR AR 17 3K 100,002 83,203

Current pledged deposits BN R K 174,221 154,195

40,077,031 38,453,465

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, interests in certain subsidiaries
of the Company have been pledged as part of the security to secure
certain bank borrowings granted to the Group. In addition, the
Group had subordinated and assigned its advance to a joint venture
of approximately HK$158,818,000 (2018: nil) to a bank to secure
a banking facility granted to the joint venture as at 31 December
2019.

—NFRZE-NF+ZA=+—8"
RAARETFHBRAR ZEZEERIEALTE
EEEETROBEZHBOERR 1IN B

—NFFTZA=+—H AE@EM
Aﬁ AR RITEEERERTZE]

FRIFX)158,818,0008 7T (=T — NF - ﬂ)
g m&i‘ié%%—ﬁaﬁiﬁfv

“E-NEFFHR FEAEXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

43, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 43, BEAEE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FA&T
Authorised and contracted for: BEHERBEEL:

Capital investment in limited partnership EREBLEZERIKE
(note) (HFEE) 77,912 98,387

Purchases of equipment and BERBLREEMEREE
leasehold improvement 54,033 -
131,945 98,387

Note: The Group had committed to make a capital contribution B 5
of US$100,000,000 (equivalent to HK$778,560,000)
in the Cayman lIslands Partnership. Up to the end of the
reporting period, approximately US$89,993,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$697,973,000) (2018: US$87,437,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$677,957,000)) among the
contribution has been paid by the Group. The outstanding
amount was approximately US$10,007,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$77,912,000, after exchange adjustment)
(2018: US$12,563,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$98,387,000, after exchange adjustment)).

AEBEBFASHE AR EARBIEDL
100,000,000 7T ( #8 & #778,560,000
BRI ZERTE -BHERSEHRI
N & B 2 5% & #989,993,0003k 7T (10 E
M #9697,973,0008 L) (ZZT— N\ F:
87,437,000 7t (18 & M #1677,957,000
BIL) VEAERESHE - RIETEZSHEY
/410,007,000% 7t (#8 & M 4977,912,000
B (KERARR)) (ZT—)\F:
12,563,000 7t (18 & 7 £798,387,000/%
TL (B AREE) ) )

Other than the capital commitments as disclosed above, an BrIA_E#EEE 2 BARHEIEIN  REE M EHR R
interest-free funding undertaking in proportion of 51% (2018: %510 (ZZ— \F :50%) th il 2 % B HE
509%) has been provided by the Group to Landrich, in the event Acgh + BIE (] A i 2 48 18 ER 1T 3 & B 1 EX
that the funds raised from banks or financial institutions by Landrich FrEeRERETEEEESTREMmMMEL-
are not sufficient for satisfying any working capital requirements RZZB-NEFERZZE-N\F+_A=+—08"
at any time. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, Landrich was in B RAAREEFENNEETRRER
net asset position and the Directors considered that Landrich had BEREACEEES WHRZESEHEARER
sufficient working capital and therefore no funding to Landrich was REES-

required as of those dates.
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45.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 44, AR EE
2019 2018
HK$000 HK$'000
TER FA&T
Guarantee given to a bank in respect of RIWBRARERIEAZ
banking facilities in lieu of the cash public RITEERURERS
utility deposit jointly utilised by subsidiaries NEE S TG
RITHRRME 2 R 15,000 15,000
Guarantees given to banks in respect of REZREQNREAZRIT
banking facilities utilised by investee EEfEmmRITREZER
companies/indemnity given to a third party H—EEZIRE QR E@R
in relation to an investee company FE=ARTZRERE 613,830 625,178
Guarantee given to a bank in respect of REEERRYPAZRITEER
a banking facility utilised by a joint venture if A — A ER1T IR 4 2 R 90,000 -
718,830 640,178
No provision for financial guarantee contracts and/or deed of HREFRAREBNEARE WX _T-AFR
indemnity have been made as at 31 December 2019 and 2018 as TE-N\F+ A=+ BRI ERVBER
the Directors considered the default risk is low. BHIRHRERBZIBELRE-
OPERATING LEASES 45. EXHEYN

The Group as lessee

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the amount of
minimum lease payments paid by the Group under operating
leases in respect of premises and equipment was approximately
HK$42,733,000.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had commitments for future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases,

which fall due as follows:

Within one year E—F
F-x

In the second to fifth year inclusive

FEBER/EBA

RBEE-_ZE—)\E+-_A=+—RH1IEER"
AEBEREEVERIB2EERNINZ
SIS EL AE42,733,00008 7T °

RZB-NF+ZA=+—H FREEZRTA
BHEERN Z A RFEBES KB ZAER
TFI AR RIE

2018
HK$'000

TR

15,464

FHAF (BIEEREME) 4,674

20,138

“E-NEFFHR FEAEXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

45. OPERATING LEASES (contd)

The Group as lessee (Cont'd)

Operating lease payments mainly represent rentals payable by the
Group for certain of its office properties held under leases which
were previously classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
Most of the leases of properties were negotiated for term ranging
from one to three years for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method of adoption. Under this method, the Group
adjusted the opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to these leases (details are set out in Note
2). From 1 January 2019 onwards, future lease payments are
recognised in lease liabilities in the consolidated statement of
financial position in accordance with the accounting policies set out
in Note 3(m).

The Group as lessor

Property rental income earned during the year was approximately
HK$522,963,000 (2018: HK$544,533,000) less outgoings of
approximately HK$17,014,000 (2018: HK$17,231,000).

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate amounted to approximately HK$263,000 for the year ended
31 December 2019.

The investment properties of the Group are expected to generate
annual rental yields of 2.07% to 5.22% (2018: 2.15% to 4.72%)
on an ongoing basis. Most of the properties held in Hong Kong
have committed tenants ranged from two to three years and in the

United Kingdom have committed tenants over five years.
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LBEBANZBFENERNZEZ -BHE-T
—NE+ZA=+—BILFE RO YEZ
BAOBZ AP R—E=F - AEEERER
BB mEER B 165 FEHNERLER
BWE-RBEITE AEBRHRER _FT—A
F-A-—RAZHVERNERAEZERY
ZHERE (FBEHIINME2) - B =F— N
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HERER-

AEBESHBAA

RAFERBDz2WERSKRADNDAR
522,963,000/ 7t ( = — J\ £ : 544,533,000
Bor)  HMBEHAX 4170140008 T (ZF
— /\% :172231,0008 7T) °

BE-_T-NFT-A=1+—HLFEILIR
R B A R 2 v 2 7H & 5040 /263,000
BT

NEBZIREYEFERAABERSTF2.07E
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

OPERATING LEASES (contd)

The Group as lessor (Cont'd)

The following table sets out a maturity analysis of lease payments,

showing the undiscounted lease payments under non-cancellable

45. EEEN @

FEEEREBA (B

ATFIRTSEENKZBIH B 517 BURR
SHHMERBTARE EXHETHE R

operating leases to be received after the reporting date.

B2 REERMEENK-

Within one year E—FR
More than one year but within two years — & LA 1B R 38 R
More than two years but within three years ML LB =
More than three years but within four years = F A LB EB 8 Y
More than four years but within five years PO DA BB i f A
More than five years R

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group operates defined contribution retirement schemes in
Hong Kong, namely the Occupational Retirement Scheme (“ORSO
Scheme") and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF
Scheme"). Contributions to the ORSO Scheme made by the Group
are based on a percentage of employees’ salaries ranging from 5%
to 10%, depending upon the length of service of the employees.
From 1 December 2000, newly joined employees are compulsorily
required to join the MPF Scheme. The employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the scheme at rates

specified in the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The total costs charged to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of approximately HK$8,408,000 (2018:
HK$8,450,000) represented contributions payable to these

schemes by the Group for the year.

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET TR
337,655 464,552
234,618 362,409
166,829 180,267
101,110 135,987
55,559 83,451
329,870 364,299
1,225,641 1,590,965

6. R{KEF 5 &

AEE2EFBRARERKAE R ABER
REHE (TR SORINGTE)) RBFIEREE G
g ([mE2atE]) - NEBE R BERKG S
1 1B & %7 Bl 2 5%% 10%¢%3t 53X (1R F & & IR
BEE) A-_TETFL_A—HEMAR
SEZzHREHELNBESE - BENE
BYFREES IR ATIAZ LR HK -

REGEEKREWMENBZIERBRBOR
8,408,000/8 7T ( —F — J\ % : 8,450,000/8
To) o BVARSRBRNAE E R ik F AT SR 2 £

o
A °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

47. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS

Transactions:

In February 2019, the Group entered into a three-year lease
("Lease") and a framework agreement (“Framework Agreement”) in
respect of leases of certain leasehold properties held by a company
controlled by a Director and a trustee of substantial shareholders
of the Company (“Trustee of Substantial Shareholders”) as the
headquarter of the Group. In October 2019, the Group entered into
a three-year subsequent lease (“Subsequent Lease") in respect of

leases of the leasehold properties under the Framework Agreement.

Under the Lease and the Subsequent Lease, the respective
amounts of rent payable per month are HK$1,025,000 and
HK$3,184,000; the respective amounts of building management
fee payable per month are approximately HK$110,000 and
approximately HK$334,000; and the respective amounts of
security deposit paid as at 31 December 2019 were approximately
HK$3,559,000 and approximately HK$11,031,000. At the
commencement date of the Lease and the Subsequent Lease,
the Group recognised the present value of the lease payments
over the lease term as lease liability and the aggregate amount of
lease liability and estimated costs to be incurred by the Group for
restoration of the property as right-of-use asset. As at 31 December
2019, the carrying amounts of the lease liability of the Lease
and the Subsequent Lease were approximately HK$26,125,000
and approximately HK$101,340,000 respectively and the right-
of-use asset of the Lease and the Subsequent Lease were
approximately HK$26,388,000 and approximately HK$105,983,000
respectively. Rent and building management fee for the year
ended 31 December 2019 of the above transactions amounted
to approximately HK$9,967,000 in aggregate. The transactions of
the Lease, the Framework Agreement and the Subsequent Lease
constituted connected transaction and continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 28 February 2019 and the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions” in the section headed "Directors’ Report” of this

annual report.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %% & Bt 6 3R 3% Mi 5=
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

47. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Transactions: (Cont'd)

Save as disclosed above and elsewhere in these consolidated
financial statements, the Group had the following material

transactions with related parties during the year:

Income received from associates:
Interest income
Accountancy fee
Management fee

Consultancy fee

Income received from Directors and/

or the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders,
close family members of Directors and/

or the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders,
companies controlled by Directors and/

or the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders
and a company controlled by a close family
member of Directors and/or the Trustee of

Substantial Shareholders:

Rental services

Property management services,
leasing administration services and
property administration services

Advisory and consultancy services

Other ordinary services

Licence fee and building management fee paid
to companies controlled by a Director and

the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders

Rent and building management fee paid to

associates

47. EXBEEALTR S ¢

t

s

% (

%)

X5

B AR Z A
FBHA

SEE

ERE

&

BREER RETERRZ
EREA HERR HTE
BRZEFABERIDZ
RERE BFER/HTE
R ZEFEAESZ REIAR
—fEEER AT ERERZ
EFEABERE ZRKEK B
ZHZ RRZ WA

HE R
MEEIR R -
BT RIRTS &
Y EITHIRTS
A A Ko B AR 7
H A — AR

ENEERTIERRZ
EREAERHZARZ
HABREBTERE

e

plTy

~

=B\

W= )

BEXRAGEMBRREMBOAEES
Sh AEENAFEHEEREATEITUTER

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TR
2,118 2,112
120 120

48 48

= 58

5,038 6,683
32,119 29,260
34 37
1,592 8,158

7 11

4,304 3,835
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For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

47. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Transactions: (Cont'd)

Interest income was charged at the prevailing market rates based
on outstanding balances during the year. Accountancy fee and
consultancy fee were charged based on an appropriate allocation of
costs incurred by central administrative departments of the Group.
Management fee, licence fee, rent, building management fee and

security deposit paid were determined based on terms similar to

those applicable to transactions with unrelated parties.

Rental services, property management services, leasing
administration services, property administration services, advisory
and consultancy services and other ordinary services (details were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 31 October
2017) were charged at the terms agreed by both parties. These
related party transactions also constituted continuing connected
transactions of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of these continuing connected transactions are

disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transactions” in the

section headed "Directors’ Report” of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered
into facility agreement with a Director. At the request of the Group,
the Director has agreed to make available to the Group a revolving
loan facility of up to HK$2,000,000,000 with termination date
falling beyond one year from 31 December 2019 of which no loan
was drawn as at 31 December 2019, the facility is unsecured and
interest-free. The transaction was fully exempted from reporting,

announcement, independent shareholders’ approval and annual

review requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 BE =T —hF+-_A=+—HIEFE

47. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY

TRANSACTIONS (contd)

Balances:

Save as disclosed above, at the end of the reporting period,
the Group had balances with Directors and/or the Trustee of
Substantial Shareholders, companies controlled by Directors and/
or the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders and/or a close family
member of Directors and/or the Trustee Substantial Shareholders
of approximately HK$21,249,000 in aggregate which was included
in debtors and other receivables (2018: HK$19,341,000 included
in debtors and other receivables and HK$10,843,000 included in
creditors and accruals).

Details of the balances with other related parties at the end of the
reporting period are set out in Notes 25, 26, 29(b) and 39.

Key management personnel emoluments:

Remuneration for key management personnel is disclosed in Notes
15 and 16. The remuneration of the Directors and senior executives
is recommended by the Remuneration Committee for the approval
of the board of Directors having regard to the performance of
individuals, their respective duties and responsibilities in the Group

and the prevailing market condition as appropriate.

47. ERBEALTRF
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SUBSIDIARIES

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all subsidiaries would be of excessive length and
therefore the following list contains only the subsidiaries as at

31 December 2019 which principally affected the results or assets

of the Group.

Name of subsidiary
WEAFEE

Alpha Team Limited

Cardin Factory Limited
RRBBERLA

Chase Master Company Limited
REBRAT

Chinese Estates, Limited

EANBRERAA
Chinese Estates

(Harcourt House) Limited
Conduit Road Development Limited

TREXRARAF

Country Homes Limited

Estate Rose Limited

Ever Ideal Limited

Evergo China Holdings Limited

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

Place of
incorporation/
operation
FmEL/
ey

British Virgin Islands
RBEARES

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong
B

Hong Kong

Hong Kong

British Virgin Islands
RBEARES

British Virgin Islands/
Hong Kong

REgRERES/
Bk

Bermuda/
Hong Kong

BRE/
&8

Class of share/
registered
capital held
FriRe,/
EMERRR

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
gl

Ordinary

ERR
Non-voting
deferred ordinary
ERRE
EREBR
Non-voting
deferred founder
BRRE
BB ARR

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
ERR

Ordinary
AR
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48. T EM B LA AIFHTRE

BoMBRARZFE-.
Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
share capital/  paid-up share capital/
registered registered capital
capital held by the Company
BEETRAR KARFEHERE/
RE/ERER EMERZAEDL
Directly Indirectly
EE GF:3
US$1 - 100%
ESH
HK$2 - 100%
28T
HK$2 - 100%
28T
HK$1,000 100% -
1,000 7T
HK$200 - 100%
2007
HK$10,000 - 70%
10,000/ 7T
HK$200 - 100%
2008 7T
HK$164,400
164,400 70
HK$1,000
1,000/ 7T
US$1 - 100%
1%
US$1 - 100%
1%
HK$100,775,869.10 - 100%

100,775,869.10% 7T

EXERRIILE2MMBRARAZFETREB
RITR -8 TRAFIIN -_F-NEFE+=
A=+ AHAKREZXEHEERERY

Principal activities

TEREER

Investment holding

RERR

Property trading

Securities investment
ERRE

Investment holding
and provision of
management services
REERR
REEERY

Property investment
ESEE)
Property trading

Property investment

NERE

Securities investment
EHRRE

Securities investment
EHRRE

Investment holding

RERR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. T EMB R AR ®
SUBSIDIARIES (contd)
Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
Place of Class of share/ share capital/  paid-up share capital/
incorporation/ registered registered registered capital
operation capital held capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary ERAL/ FriERe,/ BRIRMR RRAMBHRRE/ Principal activities
WERFEE BeEny EMERRR RE/ERER dfExzEo TEXK
Directly  Indirectly
EE &
Evergo Holdings (China) British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$2,509,454 - 100% Investment holding
Company Limited Hong Kong ERR 2,509,454 T RERR
EEREE(PE)ERAR SREARES/
&E
Express Right Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary UsS$1 - 100% Property investment
AEBRRA United Kingdom AR (E NERE
RERERES/
#
Fair Eagle Finance Credit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000,000 - 100%  Securities margin financier
AEERARAA Bl gl 10,000,000/ T BARECHE
Fair Eagle Futures Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary HK$5,000,000 - 100% Broking and dealing in
REHEERLF e gl 5,000,000% T futures contracts
HRANBLEREE
Fair Eagle Securities Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$228,000,000 - 100% Provision of brokerage
AEEFBRLA BB LB 228,000,000/ 7T RS RS
Flying Ease Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary UsS$1 - 100% Securities investment
ARERRF REAARES AR 1% BHRE
Grade World Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Securities investment
Mt REFRAR Bk AR 28T BHRE
Hillsborough Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary UsS$1 - 100% Property investment
Hong Kong AR (E NERE
RERERES/
BE
Knightlights Property International S.A. Luxembourg/ Ordinary GBP33,000 - 100% Property investment
United Kingdom gl 33,0005 4% NERE
ERE/
#
Lucky Way Company Ltd. British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary Us$1 - 100% Securities investment
(Business name: Hong Kong ERR (E FHRE
Lucky Path Limited) RBERRES/
(%BER: B
Lucky Path Limited)
Oriental Master Ltd. British Virgin Islands Ordinary Us$1 100% - Investment holding
REABARES ERR (B RERR
Paul Y. (New Tunnel) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 = 100% Investment holding
RE (MBE)FRAR BE EBR 28T RERR
Paul Y. Holdings Company Limited Cayman Islands/ Ordinary HK$70,715,005.70 100% - Investment holding
Hong Kong EBR 70,715,005.707 7T RERR
HERE/
0
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %R& Bi % 3R & M &%
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

48. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 48. T EH B QA RIFE @

SUBSIDIARIES (contd)

Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
Place of Class of share/ share capital/  paid-up share capital/
incorporation/ registered registered registered capital
operation capital held capital held by the Company
Name of subsidiary ERAL/ FriERe,/ BRIRMR RRAMBHRRE/ Principal activities
WERFEE BeEny EMERRR RE/ERER dfExzEo TREHR
Directly Indirectly
EE &
Perfect World Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$10,000 - 100% Estate management
BENZERERAA BE ERR 10,000/ 7T nEERE
River Court Properties Limited Isle of Man/ Ordinary GBP2 - 100% Property investment
United Kingdom ERR PES:] NERE
5RE/
&
Smart Ocean Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary UsS$1 - 100% Investment holding
REAARES AR 1% RERR
Speed Win Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Property trading
AEFRAF Bk AR 28T NXEE
State Smart Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary UsS$1 - 100% Property investment
REBRAA United Kingdom LEk 1%7T MERE
RERERES/
g
The House of Kwong Sang Hong Hong Kong Ordinary HK$500,000 - 100% Cosmetics distribution
Limited & LRk 500,000 7T and trading
EEZERRA R HERES
Tycoon Fame Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary UsS$1 - 100% Investment holding
FTRERAF REAARES AR 1% RERR
Wing Lee Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 - 100% Securities investment
KARRERRR Bk AR 28T BHRE
EER (AR CEEBERAF  PRC Registered US$500,000 - 100% Property investment
(Fvergo (Beijing) Corporate H FMER 500,000% T MERE
Management Co,, Ltd.)*
Fxm (LR)REEMARRAR  PRC Registered US$20,000,000 - 100% Property trading
(Evergo Investment Counsel & EMER 20,000,000% T NEEE
(Beijing) Co., Ltd.)*
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities subsisting at RS BRI AE R AR - AR B A R
the end of the reporting period or at any time during the reporting BATEMERES -

period.

4 Wholly foreign-owned enterprise
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REMBRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

49. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES
AND JOINT VENTURE

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the
particulars of all associates and joint venture would be of excessive
length and therefore the following list contains only the associates
and joint venture as at 31 December 2019 which principally

affected the results or assets of the Group.

Associates

49. TEBENTREELAHE

EXERRIILE2MBERALRAERRZH
BLRBEBBRITE B TRRHIN_-F
—NEFT A=+ BHAKEEZXEREE
BEEFEZBMERRNEERRZFE

Place of Class of share/
incorporation/ registered
operation capital held
Name of associate EMEL FiERSA,/
BENTER Reh HEMERER
Best Profit Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
FEFRAA & Rk
Direct Win Development Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
BRERFRAA &k EER
Finedale Industries Limited Hong Kong Ordinary
EHEXBRAF EE ERR
Power Jade Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary
(Business name: Hong Kong TRk
Power Jade Capital Limited) ~ EB#&BREE/
(RBaf: G
Power Jade Capital Limited )
The Kwong Sang Hong Bermuda Ordinary
International Limited BRE TRk
REBMAEBRAR PRC Registered
Oriental Arts Building Co., Ltd.f H & AR
f Sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprise
Joint Venture
Place of
incorporation/
operation Class of
Name of joint venture EMARL/ share held
RENAER Jeh P4 Rl
Landrich (HK.) Limited* Hong Kong Ordinary
B (FB)BRAR &k EER
* A sale and purchase agreement for acquisition of the remaining 49%

interest in Landrich was completed on 28 February 2020 and Landrich has

become a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company thereafter.

BERE
Issued and
fully paid Proportion of
share capital/ equity attributable
registered indirectly
capital to the Company
ERTRARE AA R EES Principal activities
BE/ERER RAEZBEAL TEEH
HK$1 25% Property investment
BT and trading
NEREREE
HK$900 33.33%0 Property trading
900/ 7T NEER
HK$9,999 33.33% Property investment
9,999% 7T MERE
US$20 50% Investment holding
20%7T REZR
HK$100,000 50% Investment holding
100,000/ 7 RARR
US$24,920,000 50% Property investment
24,920,000% T and hotel operation
MEREREEER
! hOMEE R
EEAA
Proportion of
Issued and equity attributable
fully paid indirectly
share capital to the Company
BERITRER ARRBEES Principal activities
B RAZEAL TEXH
HK$1,000 51% Property investment
1,000 7T ESI
E W T 400 m 2 ERHAN T _TF
ZAZtHN\HEEER MERERBARE—
He2ERANBRF -
“E-NEFHR EAEBXEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #E —ZE—hNE+_A=+—HIFE

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Non-current assets kRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries WBARIRE
Loans to subsidiaries WEBARERK

Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries S EPNEI=EE
Other current assets EMRisEE
Bank balances RITH A

Current liabilities REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries SS=L NS NEIE ]
Other current liabilities HEtmEaE

Net current assets REBEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities EEABRRBAE

Equity attributable to owners of AABEREA
the Company FEAL R AR 25
Share capital [N
Capital redemption reserve BARE OB
Other reserve HAnfE G
Retained profits RE R A

Total equity BAER AR

Non-current liability FRBEE
Loans from subsidiaries WEBAREE

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors

23 March 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Chan, Sze-wan BR 5 8E
Director EZE

CHINESE ESTATES HOLDINGS LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2019
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50. A B B 5RO ARk I 4R

Note
B 5

38

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
5,135,893 5,135,893
2,654,119 2,702,428
7,790,012 7,838,321
11,372,202 11,613,282
286 421
52,697 7,955
11,425,185 11,621,658
74,503 66,112
2,136 1,150
76,639 67,262
11,348,546 11,554,396
19,138,558 19,392,717
190,762 190,762
138,062 138,062

9 9
16,422,725 16,631,884
16,751,558 16,960,717
2,387,000 2,432,000
19,138,558 19,392,717

EEEEeN T TFE=F _+t=H#tE
REEED YA TIEEKEREFTERE:

Lam, Kwong-wai

Director

BF



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

50. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AND RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (contd)

50. A B B B R ARk I 4R

(#&)

Reserve movement of the Company ARFZRBEEE
Capital
redemption Other Retained
reserve reserve profits
EAFEE FE H %5 HREHEF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
At 1 January 2018 W-Z—\F—H—8 138,062 9 16,836,005
Profit for the year REREHF - - 2,447
Interim dividend for 2018 paid BENZZE-NFFHRE - - (19,076)
Final dividend for 2017 paid BENZZE—tEFREARE - - (190,762)
Unclaimed dividends forfeited (note) %MWK SEEL 2 f% 8 (ML) - - 3,270
At 31 December 2018 RZZE—)N\F
+=ZA=+—H 138,062 9 16,631,884
Profit for the year NEE R F - = 679
Interim dividend for 2019 paid ENZZE-AFFHERE - - (19,076)
Final dividend for 2018 paid BENZZE-NFRERE - - (190,762)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZZE-N#F
+=—A=+—H 138,062 9 16,422,725
Note: Unclaimed dividends forfeited represented dividends declared by MiFE: BRAKRWERZREDNERARTR-E

——FNA+ AR ZATIRMARE Z
BRARZZE—N\FZA =+ /\BIIRER
ZBRE -REE—_T— ) \F+-_A=1+—
BIEFEER DABERZRESEN S
3,270,000/ 7T B #5048 U 7 82 48 = (R B U
Fl o

the Company on or before 17 August 2011 remaining unclaimed
by shareholders of the Company on 28 February 2018. During
the year ended 31 December 2018, unclaimed dividends
amounted to approximately HK$3,270,000 were forfeited and
transferred to retained profits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2019 HE_-Z

“NEFTZA=t—HILFE

51. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, the Group had the following transactions after the end

of the reporting period:

0]

(i)

Acquisition of the remaining 49% interest in Landrich

On 10 January 2020, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, as the purchaser, entered into a sale
and purchase agreement with another shareholder of
Landrich, as the seller, pursuant to which, the purchaser had
conditionally agreed to acquire the remaining 49% of the
entire issued share capital of Landrich and the sale loan at
an aggregate consideration subject to a maximum amount
of HK$360,000,000. The transaction was completed on
28 February 2020. Details of the transaction were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 10 January
2020.

Major and connected transaction in relation to

disposal of sale debt securities

On 29 January 2020, three indirect wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company, as the sellers, entered into a
disposal agreement with Ms. Chan, Hoi-wan, an executive
Director and the Trustee of Substantial Shareholders indirectly
held an aggregate of approximately 50.02% of the total
issued share capital of the Company at the time of entering
into the disposal agreement, as the purchaser, in relation
to the disposal of certain debt securities (“Disposal”) at a
consideration which shall be determined based on the higher
of (i) 100% of the proposed principal amount for debt
securities; and (i) the prevailing market bid price for each
individual debt securities. The aggregate transaction amount
of the Disposal shall be subject to the cap amount equal to
HK$8,000,000,000. Completion of the disposal agreement
is conditional upon, among others, obtaining approval of
independent shareholders of the Company. The Disposal was
approved by the independent shareholders of the Company
at the special general meeting of the Company held on
23 March 2020. Details of the Disposal were disclosed in
the announcements of the Company dated 29 January 2020
and 23 March 2020 and the circular of the Company dated
28 February 2020.
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(ii)

W BB R ¥ 82 T 49%RE 25
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 44 B8R &R Mz
For the year ended 31 December 2019 #ZE T —NE+_A=+—HILFE

51. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(Cont'd)

(iii) Discloseable transaction for disposal of perpetual

(iv)

bond

On 19 March 2020, the Group disposed of the 7.5% fixed
rate resetting perpetual subordinated contingent convertible
securities issued by Standard Chartered PLC (the shares of
which are listed on the London Stock Exchange, the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2888), the Bombay Stock Exchange in
India and the National Stock Exchange in India) (“Perpetual
Bond") in the principal amount of US$2,500,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$19,490,000) through OTC market for a
consideration of approximately US$2,265,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$17,655,000) (inclusive of accrued interest)
("Bond Disposal”). The Bond Disposal (when aggregated
with the conditional disposal of the Perpetual Bond under
the Disposal mentioned in Note 51(ii) above) constituted a
discloseable transaction for the Company under the Listing
Rules. Details of the Bond Disposal were disclosed in the

announcement of the Company dated 20 March 2020.

Outbreak of novel coronavirus

Since December 2019, the outbreak of novel coronavirus
("COVID-19") has impact on the global business
environment. Pending the development and spread of
the epidemic subsequent to the date of the approval of
these consolidated financial statements, further changes in
economic conditions for the Group arising thereof may have
impact on the financial results of the Group, the extent of
which could not be estimated as at the date of the approval
of these consolidated financial statements. The Group will pay
close attention to the development of COVID-19 and evaluate
its impact on the financial position and operating results of

the Group.

52. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 23 March 2020.

51. REHKREIE =)

(iii) FHRHEXKEAESFZATRERS

(iv)

RZE-ZTF=ZA+IB AEEEB
BONRGMBHEREITEBRARA
Al (HBRHRABBEELER S BXAT
(B :2888) AR ENE R E FH
RGMENERRBSRZ S ET)
17 A& % 52,500,000% ¢ (FBE R4
19,490,000/ 7T ) 2 7.5/% E & F L Al &
BB IR BB A TR FE S ([KEE
%) R{E#X 5H2,265000%k 7T (HHE
M #917,655,000%8 7T) (BIEEETFE)
(MEHFHE]) - BRBELTHA - EHH
S (R LEBMEs 1) 2ZHEBTEE
HHEXKBEESEHTE)BRAAA
ZEATEBR S BEHFHEZHBER
AKARBYPAE-_ZE-_TF=A=-+HZ
NGIAE

B IR R

2019 MKmE ([COVID-19) ) B =F
—NEFTZABER%E 2HEFRES
HEE R TRBERIERRE S ®
KEHMEZERRETEEBER A&
SOEARR AR e AL — SR EME A
SECHBEEEXRNYE EYERE
KRR HBOERER & MBS RE B B E -
REEBEZYBECOVID- 197 B E - I
SR AREBMU MR RIS HEE

By 8B
&

52. RETIRGFES M BHK

EESER_E_EF-_A-_+=ZHHLER
BERMEAYBHRE-
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
EFEMBHRE

Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five ~AEEBERF2XE EEHAERENT:

years is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December
HEt-A=t-BL%¥E
2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TEL TET

843,618 1,516,655 3,745,148 1,542,397

1186854 4125682  7258,155 8,196,126
(127041)  (327049)  (564966)  (476,395)

1059813 3798633 6693189 7719731

1015290 3708886 6360312 7727208
44,523 89,747 332,877 (7477)

1,059,813 3,798,633 6,693,189 7,719,731

0.53 1.94 333 4.05

(2,116980) 16,348,710 3,418,670 6,520,561
44,523 89,747 332,871 (7477)

(2,072,457) 16,438,457 3,751,547 6,513,084

2019
HK$'000
FAT
Results ES |
Revenue WA 538,986
Profit before tax PRI A4 A 948,910
Income tax expense FERAY (157,258)
Profit for the year KERRM 791,652
Profit for the year attributable to: AR
Owners of the Company /NIE F N 790,167
Non-controlling interests RS 1,485
791,652
Eamnings per share (HK$) BREN (BT
Basic and diluted (note) EARES () 0.41
Total comprehensive (expenses) income  FEEAFEZE
for the year attributable to: (X)) Wasas:
Owners of the Company AREEEA (283,605)
Non-controlling interests FERER 1,485
(282,120)
Final and interim dividends per share BRARBRTHRE
(HK cents) (740) 2
Special interim dividends per share GRRE RI o HRR S
(HK cents) (1) -

- 355 869 380

Note: The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based on  Mf&F :
the profit attributable to owners of the Company for the years and on
the weighted average number of shares in issue during the relevant
years. Diluted earnings per share were the same as the basic earnings
per share as there were no diluting events during the relevant years.
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Summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five

years is as follows: (Cont'd)

Assets and liabilities

Total assets
Total liabilities

Total equity

Attributable to:
Owners of the Company

Non-controlling interests

Net asset value per share attributable to
owners of the Company (HK$)

Number of shares issued

BERARE

EESS
AEER

BB EE

fEfh:
ARREBA
FERiEE

RATHEAAENS
FREEFE(ET)

BETRNEE

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY FH & B #E#E

AEBEBERLFZEE EERBEHRENT:

(&)

At 31 December

R+=ZA=t+-H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THT THET TET FTET
48,311,789 48,690,703 56,063,355 45,775,735 63,055,217
(14,721,428) (14,547,134) (19,570,353) (15,875,880) (22,729,855)
33,590,361 34,143,569 36,493,002 29,899,855 40,325,362
33,568,925 34,062,368 36,385,916 29,804,216 40,247600
21,436 81,201 107,086 95,639 77762
33,590,361 34,143,569 36,493,002 29,899,855 40,325,362
17.60 17.86 19.07 15.62 21.10
1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079 1,907,619,079
“E-NEFFEHR EAEXKEE
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

EEYEMR &R

The following table sets forth the Group's major properties as at 31 December 2019:

TREIAEER-_ZT-NFT_A=+—HZIEYZE:

PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG

Properties held for investment

Location

it B

1. Harcourt House
(excluding 7th, 8th, 9th, 22nd,
23rd, 25th, 26th and 27th floors,
rooms 1004 and 1805)
39 Gloucester Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong
(including 113 car parking spaces)
EBRKE
BRELS
HLITE39%
(7-8:922+23+25"
26J%27# - 1004 %1805 K 5N)
(BEN3MEEN)

2. Causeway Place*
Various shops on ground floor,
mezzanine floor, 1st and 2nd floors and
their respective portions of exterior walls,
together with flats C, I, J, K, L, N, O, P, Q

FIEREME

Lot number

e BR 4w 5%

Certain parts or shares of and
in Inland Lot No. 8573

A 85735
ATHoRHE

Certain parts or shares of and
in Inland Lot No. 7742
iR T7425: 2
ETHAHNE

(each including a flat roof) and H on 3rd floor

Hong Kong Mansion

nos. 1-7 Paterson Street and
nos. 2-10 Great George Street
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
e

ERENEL
BRHE-THRR

AR 12-105%

EERE

wT--EE BREETERR
HEHD ZIMEER

3#C 1) K*L*N-0*P-Q
(BREELZTR) RHERL

* Certain shops have been sold

ETAMCER
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BRYE

Category of

the lease

Usage term

R& HEER

Commercial Long

EES R

Residential/ Long

Commercial RH#
FE/ ¥

Group’s
interest
58
Pz

100%

100%



PROPERTIES IN HONG KONG (contd)

Properties held for investment (Cont'd)

Location

ok

3 Nos. 14-18 Ma Kok Street
Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong
BEMREE
FAH14Z185;

4. Various Portions of
No. 1 Hung To Road
Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong
(comprising 391 workshop units and
77 car parking spaces)
ERNERR
BEEISRETEN
(BHE391E TS B R77{EER)

5. Olympian City 3
1 Hoi Wang Road
South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
(including certain private car parking spaces
and motorcycle parking spaces)
BEH=H
ERABNE
BB
(BEETAREBMNREEES )

6.  Coronation Circle
1 Yau Cheung Road
South West Kowloon, Hong Kong
(including certain private car parking spaces
and motorcycle parking spaces)
hiEE
ERABNE
RAEVH
(BRETAREEMNEEES )

* The Group acquired the remaining 49% interest after 31 December 2019.

SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

EBYWE®

FEREWE (8)
Lot number Usage
R R Jich -3
Tsuen Wan Town Industrial
Lot No. 128 I%
EETInR1285
Certain parts or shares of and Industrial
in Kwun Tong Inland Lot No. 415 T¥
BRENBRM55
ETHoHE
Certain parts or shares of and Commercial
in Kowloon Inland Lot Nos. [SES
11167 and 11168
NEEAHER
1116711116852
ETHoRHE
Certain parts or shares of and Commercial
in Kowloon Inland Lot No. 11073 [SES

BN 11073502
ETHAENE

AEER =T —AE+= A=+ — BB AR T4 -

Category of
the lease
term

HEER

Medium

5]

Medium

o 8

Medium

o 5

Medium

8]

—B-hEEH

FEMEM =R

Group’s
interest
5
Pk

519*

33.33%

25%

15%

EABXEE
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SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES % 2 ¥ 3£ fff &

PROPERTIES IN MAINLAND CHINA

Properties held for investment

Location

it B

1. Hilton Beijing
1 Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
It RAEEEE
ErRmHE R
R=IRALEE - ROTE15

2. Oriental Place
9 East Dongfang Road, North Dongsanhuan Road
Chaoyang District, Beijing
REBEBRE
trRmHE R
R=IRIEEE - WA REKOT
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R (A b ) 3£
FEREME
Category of
the lease
Usage term
Jik=3 HEER
Hotel Short
B IS g Hj
Office Short
BTiE %5 HA

Group’s
interest
5
ik R

50%

50%



SCHEDULE OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES 3 E ¥ K&k

PROPERTIES IN THE UNITED KINGDOM B Y=
Properties held for investment FEREME
Category of Group’s
the lease interest
Location Usage term 5
i 26 A% HEE R Frik gz
1. River Court Commercial Freehold 100%
116-129 Fleet Street SES KA FERE
London, EC4, United Kingdom
River Court
55 fm ZEC4
Fleet Street 116-1295%
2. 14 St George Street Commercial Freehold 100%
14 St George Street [EHES KA
London, W1, United Kingdom
St George Street 1455
2 B W1
St George Street 145%
3. 61-67 Oxford Street and Residential/ Freehold 100%
11-14 Soho Street Commercial KA FERE
61-67 (odd) Oxford Street and FE/THE
11-14 Soho Street
London, W1, United Kingdom
Oxford Street 61-6755 &
Soho Street 11-143%
3 B W1
Oxford Street 61-675% (257 ) I
Soho Street 11-145%
4. 11 and 12 St James's Square and Residential/ Freehold 100%
14 to 17 Ormond Yard Commercial KA FENE

11 and 12 St James's Square and T=E/EE
14 to 17 Ormond Yard

London, SW1Y 4LB, United Kingdom

St James's Square 111255 &

Ormond Yard 14Z175;

HEfmBSWIY 4LB

St James's Square 11 %1257 &

Ormond Yard 14Z 1755

—E-nEER #ABz£E 263
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SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS
VERBBERINR

PROPERTY IN HONG KONG BERYE
Property held for development HERRME
Estimated
gross
Approximate floor area
Estimated site area  (square feet) Group's
Stage of  completion  (square feet) fiat interest
Name of project Lot number completion date HWEEENY LEEEE Usage %8
HEEB RS THREE fHERAH (FFR) (FAHR) B& iKY £
1. Grand Central New Kowloon Superstructure works First half 234,160 1853561  Residential/ 10%
33 Hip Wo Street Inland Lot No. 6514 in progress of 2021 Commercial
Kwun Tong, Kowloon ;e TERETE —Z--F T2/ %
Hong Kong M ER65145% T a3
HE
55
EBR
BAE335HR
Notes:
B 5T
1. The property development rights were granted pursuant to development agreement with the Urban Renewal Authority
MEZREEDBREETREZBII L 2ERBRED
2. Certain residential units were contracted for sale as at 31 December 2019

RIB-NAF+_A=+—H BTEZEMETHLE
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